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Creating a brighter future through chemistry.

Four Strengths of the Mitsui Chemicals Group
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Inclusion in ESG investment indices

Editorial Policy
In compiling this Mitsui Chemicals Report 2019, we sought to present a compre-
hensive overview of our various strategies and performance from both the financial 
and non-financial perspectives with the ultimate goal of creating a platform for mean-
ingful dialogue with all stakeholders. While we have drawn on the disclosure frame-
work for integrated reports issued by the International 
Integrated Reporting Council (IIRC) and the Ministry of the 
Economy, Trade and Industry’s Guidance for Collaborative 
Value Creation, we have tried to avoid a rigid format. Our 
goal has been to provide a useful document that allows read-
ers to gain a deeper understanding of our efforts toward the 
creation of value through innovation over the medium- to 
long-term.

Scope and Principles
• Period:	�April 1, 2018 to March 31, 2019 (FY2018). Please note some data may post-

date April 2019.
• Scope:	Mitsui Chemicals, Inc. and the Mitsui Chemicals Group
	 (Other entities, if included, are identified in the text.)
• Accounting principles: Japanese Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (JGAAP)

Forward-Looking Statements
This report contains forward-looking statements about future plans and strategies as 
well as forecasts and expectations regarding the performance of the Mitsui Chemicals 
Group. Actual results may differ materially from those projected due to a variety of fac-
tors, and the Mitsui Chemicals Group cannot guarantee that any forward-looking state-
ments herein are accurate or that targets will be achieved. (Planned figures are as of 
May 15, 2019.)
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Injection of
resources

Global human resources

17,743 employees

Percentage of
overseas employees

43%

Capital expenditure

¥61.9bn

R&D expenses

¥35.8bn

Financial position

Consolidated total assets

¥1,501.1bn

Net D/E ratio

0.68

Shareholders’ equity ratio

36.8%

Credit ratings  

Japan Credit Rating Agency
(JCR)

A+

Rating and Investment
Information (R&I)

A

Net sales

¥1,482.9bn

Operating income

¥93.4bn

Profit attributable
to owners of parent

¥76.1bn

ROE

14.3%

ROIC

6.0%

  

Blue ValueTM

sales 

¥231.1bn

Rose ValueTM

sales

¥194.0bn

  

Dividends

¥100 /share

Acquisition of
treasury stock

¥10.0bn

Total return ratio

39.0%

Cohesive
society in

harmony with
the environment

Industrial
platforms in

harmony
with local

communities

Health and
well-being
in an aging

society

Four strengths

100 years of
technological

know-how

Diverse range of
products & services

Global platform
& diverse human

resources

Strong
customer base

Input* Output*/Outcome

Helping build 
a better

future society

Creating new customer value and 
solving social challenges through 
our business activities

Five business
activities

Mobility

Health Care

Basic Materials

Food &
Packaging

Next Generation
Business

Foundations for growth

Social trends
Changes in global 
environment
• Climate change and frequent 

occurrence of natural disasters
• Stricter environmental 

regulations
Population increase
• Issues concerning resources, 

energy, water, and food
Maturation of developed 
nations and rise of
emerging countries
• Declining birth rate and 

aging population 
(developed nations)

• Growing need for improved QOL 
(emerging countries)

Advancements in technology
• Increasingly information-based 

society (IoT, big data, AI, etc.)
• Industrial and social paradigm 

shifts

*Actual results as of FY2018

1 2

3 4

Value creation story
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Value Creation Process

Corporate Mission

Contribute broadly to society by provid-
ing high-quality products and services to 
customers through innovation and the 
creation of materials, while keeping in har-
mony with the global environment.

Corporate Target

Constantly pursuing innovation and 
growth to become a chemical group with 
an undisputed global presence.

Triple Bottom Line Management

Together with society we aim to achieve 
sustainable growth and development by 
deepening our triple bottom line manage-
ment approach based on the three axes of 
economy, environment, and society. We 
also seek to engage in management from 
a long-term perspective and implement 
initiatives aimed at solving the challenges 
faced by society.

Corporate Vision

Mitsui Chemicals Group’s Future Vision
https://www.mitsuichem.com/en/corporate/management/
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We believe that broadly helping to solve various issues faced by society through our business activities based on our 
Corporate Mission is the Mitsui Chemicals Group’s reason for existence. Moreover, in recognizing the importance of find-
ing the right balance between the three dimensions (i.e., economy, environment, and society) in order to realize sustainable 
development of society and the Group, we will continue to propel our triple bottom line management approach. With these 
ideas in mind and in light of social trends and our Group strengths, we aim to realize a future cohesive society in harmony 
with the environment, health and well-being in an aging society, and industrial platforms in harmony with local communi-
ties. We will continue to create new customer value and help build a better future society through our business activities.

 P27
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Value creation story

Four strengths of the Mitsui Chemicals Group
100 years of technological know-how + Diverse range of products & services
Ever since we started up our coal chemical business in 1912 in Omuta (Fukuoka), the Mitsui Chemicals Group has con-
tinued to produce numerous different products. And after operations at Japan’s first ethylene plant came online in 
1958, we started to accumulate state-of-the-art technologies in the petrochemicals field. The accumulation of precision 
synthesis technologies derived from coal chemicals and polymer science-based technologies mainly rooted in petro-
chemicals is without doubt the driving force behind our current lineup of competitive products that serve to underpin 
our growth today and going forward.

Making fertilizer from exhaust gas 
produced as a byproduct of the coal 
business was our starting point. 
Since then, we have honed our pre-
cision synthesis technology in the 
course of creating various products.

We have cultivated our polymer sci-
ence by developing resins to meet 
various needs, mainly with our cut-
ting-edge polyolefin technology.

Through a process of developing and im-
proving various methods over the course of 
our long history, we have continued to raise 
the level of our technology so that we can 
stably manufacture high-quality products at 
low cost.

1912 
Started 
operations at 
Mitsui Mining’s 
Omuta Works

1963 
Polyurethane 
material TDI

1932 
Started 
production of 
synthetic dye 
indigo

1958 
Ethylene plant operations 
came online (Japan’s first 
petrochemical complex)

First in 
Japan

1975 
TAFMER™
(alpha-olefin copolymer)

Precision 
synthesis 

technology
derived from

coal chemicals

Polymer 
science

to meet varied
customer needs

Manufacturing 
process 

technology
The bedrock of

our strong competitive
advantage

1915 
Industrialized 
synthetic dye 
alizarin

First in 
Japan
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1987 
TREBON™ 
(insecticide)

1987 
MR™
(plastic ophthalmic lens materials)

2001 
STARKLE™
(insecticide)

1998 
EVOLUE™
(metallocene linear low 
density polyethylene
(gas-phase process))

1995 
APEL™
(cyclic olefin copolymer)

1987 
ICROS™ Tape
(semiconductor 
manufacturing process 
tapes)

1986 
Established Advanced 
Composites, Inc.
(polypropylene compounds)

Our History
https://www.mitsuichem.com/en/corporate/history/index.htm

100 years of
technological

know-how

1

Diverse range of
products & services

2

Global platform
& diverse human

resources

3

Strong
customer base

4

100 years of
technological

know-how

1

Diverse range of
products & services

2

Global platform
& diverse human

resources

3

Strong
customer base

4

World’s
first



06 Mitsui Chemicals Report 2019

Value creation story

Four strengths of the Mitsui Chemicals Group
Strong customer base + Global platform & diverse human resources
We aim to achieve growth as well as strive to solve the challenges of society with a lineup of high added-value, high-
performance products mainly in the three targeted business domains of Mobility, Health Care, and Food & Packaging. The 
backbone of these products is the technology we have honed over our 100-year history. They are rated highly from our 
leading customers worldwide, so much so that we boast a number one or number two share in certain markets.

Global platform & 
diverse human resources

Business segments Main products Main applications 100 years of 
technological know-how Strong customer base <Market share>

Mobility

polypropylene compounds Auto bumper and instrument 
panel materials Polymer science Global No.2 (Share: 21%) 

Asia No.1

TAFMER™ (alpha-olefin copolymer) Auto bumper and instrument 
panel materials Polymer science Global No.2

Asia No.1

APEL™ (cyclic olefin copolymer) Smartphone camera lens 
materials Polymer science Global No.1

(Share: over 50%)

Health Care MR™ (ophthalmic lens materials) Plastic ophthalmic lens materials Precision synthesis 
technology

Global No.1
(Share: 45%)

Food & Packaging

TREBON™ (etofenprox)
STARKLE™ (dinotefuran)

Insecticide Precision synthesis 
technology Japan No.2

ICROS™ Tape Semiconductor manufacturing 
process tapes Polymer science Global No.1

Basic Materials EVOLUE™ (metallocene linear low 
density polyethylene)

High-performance packaging 
materials Polymer science Asia No.1

We are continuing to actively expand 
our global operations—overseas sales 
currently account for 45% of total 
sales. Globalization of our business 
is accelerating with more than 40% of 
employees now based overseas.

Overseas sales ratio

	 1997	 2018

	 16%	 45%
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Value creation story Sustainability Growth strategies Foundations for growth Financial data Company data
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Consolidated  
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155
Overseas-based

107
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17,743
Percentage of
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43%
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Value creation story

Related SDGs and Key Issues

Maximize products 
and services to 
achieve a low-carbon, 
recycling-oriented, 
and cohesive society 
in harmony with the 
environment

Expand sales of environmentally oriented products and services
 �Expand products and services that help realize a low-carbon, 
recycling-oriented, and cohesive society in harmony with the 
environment across the entire value chain.

• Blue Value™ products sales ratio: 
	 30% or more 

• 16% • �New Blue Value™ and Rose Value™ 
certifications: 15 or more

• �Climate change responses (reduction 
of GHG emissions)

• Air environment preservation
• �Water resource protection and control
• Biodiversity
• Industrial waste control
• Efficient use of resources
• �Low environmental footprint products 

and services
• Development of renewable energy

Reduce environmental impact in production and logistics
 �Reduce Greenhouse Gas (GHG) and environmentally harmful 
substance emissions and efficiently utilize resources throughout 
the Group as a whole.

• �GHG emissions reduction rate*1: 25.4% or 
more compared with FY2005 (FY2030) 

• 27.2% • �GHG emissions reduction: 30 thousand tons or 
more compared with the previous fiscal year

• �Energy intensity reduction*2: Continue at 1% 
or above (5-year annual reduction rate)

• -0.3% • ��Energy intensity reduction: 1% or more (5-year 
annual reduction rate), or 1% or more (annual 
reduction rate with FY2009 as base year)

Maximize products 
and services to 
achieve better quality 
of life (QOL) and a 
smart society

Expand sales of products and services that contribute to a 
healthy and happy society

 �Expand products and services that can improve QOL by 
addressing such issues as the declining birth rate and aging 
population, extending healthy life expectancy, and the food 
problem.

• �Rose Value™ products sales ratio:
	 30% or more

• 13% • �New Blue Value™ and Rose Value™ certifications: 
15 or more

• �Shift to urbanization and smart cities
• �Declining birth rate and aging 

population
• �Advancement of medical and 

pharmaceutical fields
• �Food problem

Pursue thorough 
safety, high quality, 
and fairness across 
the entire supply 
chain

Ensure safety

 �Maintain high levels of safety even in the face of diversifying 
human resources, facilities, and technologies associated with 
ongoing global growth and business portfolio transformation. 

• �Incidence of major accidents: Continue at zero • 1 • 0 • �Safety and prevention
• �Product stewardship
• �Quality of products and services
• �Employment and human resources
• �Labor conditions
• �Sustainable procurement
• �Compliance

• �Significant occupational injury frequency: 
Continue at or below 0.15

• 0.33 • 0.15 or less

Provide high-quality products and services

 �Ensure the stable supply of products that satisfy customers’ 
requirements at a high level.

• �Incidence of customer non-conformance:
	 10 ppm or less

• �Number of complaints 
(Company-responsible): 
Increased (compared with the 
previous fiscal year, Mitsui 
Chemicals, Inc.)

• �Number of complaints (Company-responsible): 
Reduce by 10% or more (compared with FY2017, 
Mitsui Chemicals, Inc.)

Implement product stewardship

 �Implement risk management across the supply chain through 
the risk assessment of products and provision of safety informa-
tion to customers and other stakeholders.

• �Product risk assessment implementation rate: 
99% or more (FY2020)

• �Completed assessment of all 
products

• �Formulate new medium- to long-term goal 

• �Provision of latest product safety information: 
Continue at 100%

• 100% • 100%

Continue as a company that is fair and trusted by society

 �Thoroughly comply with all statutory and regulatory require-
ments and prevent misconduct in all global business activities.

• �Incidence of major legal and regulatory 
violations: Continue at zero

• 0 • 0

 Encourage sustainability initiatives of business partners. • �Supplier sustainability assessments 
and improvement support (sustainable 
procurement ratio of 70% or more).

• 44%*2 • �Conduct supplier sustainability assessment in 
collaboration with business divisions and domestic 
affiliated companies.

• �Raise awareness of Purchasing Policy revision and 
Sustainable Procurement Guidelines both within 
and outside the Group

 Enable Group employees to thrive at work and make the most 
of their potential. 

• �Ratio of women in management positions 
(manager-level or above)*3: 10% or more

• 2.9% • 4.0%

• �Increase employee engagement • �Conducted surveys and mea-
sured engagement levels

• �Formulate action plans

2025 Long-Term Business Plan Targets and KPIs FY2018 Results FY2019 Targets

Accelerating our business portfolio 
transformation
(shifting to a customer-driven business 
model)

• Expand three targeted business domains
• Develop next generation businesses
• �Strengthen competitiveness of the Basic 

Materials domain

Enhancing cash generation capabilities
• �Conduct active investments while maintaining 

fiscal discipline
• Improve capital efficiency

Boosting shareholder returns
• Stable and continuous dividend increase
• Flexible acquisition of treasury stock

Operating income ¥200bn ¥93.4bn ¥105bn

Net sales ¥2,000bn ¥1,482.9bn ¥1,540bn

ROS 10% 6.3% 6.8%

ROE 10% or more 14.3% 13.1%

ROIC 8% or more 6.0% 6.4%

Net D/E 0.8 or less 0.68 0.65

Shareholder returns Total return ratio 30% or more

Dividends	 ¥100 /share
Acquisition of
treasury stock  ¥10bn

(Total return ratio 39%)

Dividends ¥100/share
(Total return ratio 30% or more)

Growth investment

¥1,000bn
of which ¥400bn is earmarked for 
strategic investments (total amount 
for 10 years, excl. maintenance 
investments)

Capital expenditure

¥61.9bn
(incl. maintenance investments)

Capital expenditure

¥105bn
(incl. maintenance investments)

R&D expenses ¥70bn ¥35.8bn ¥38bn

Economy, Environment, and Society: Targets and Progress
In aiming to realize a future cohesive society in harmony with the environment, health and well-being in an aging soci-
ety, and industrial platforms in harmony with local communities, as set forth in our 2025 Long-Term Business Plan, the 
Mitsui Chemicals Group has established respective targets for economy, environment, and society, the three dimen-
sions of our management approach. Drawing on the strengths we have accumulated over our 100-year history, we will 
take on the challenge of achieving these goals as a highly profitable, growing, and sustainable company that contrib-
utes to society.
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Business 
strategies

Manufacturing

Management

Related SDGs and Key Issues

Maximize products 
and services to 
achieve a low-carbon, 
recycling-oriented, 
and cohesive society 
in harmony with the 
environment

Expand sales of environmentally oriented products and services
 �Expand products and services that help realize a low-carbon, 
recycling-oriented, and cohesive society in harmony with the 
environment across the entire value chain.

• Blue Value™ products sales ratio: 
	 30% or more 

• 16% • �New Blue Value™ and Rose Value™ 
certifications: 15 or more

• �Climate change responses (reduction 
of GHG emissions)

• Air environment preservation
• �Water resource protection and control
• Biodiversity
• Industrial waste control
• Efficient use of resources
• �Low environmental footprint products 

and services
• Development of renewable energy

Reduce environmental impact in production and logistics
 �Reduce Greenhouse Gas (GHG) and environmentally harmful 
substance emissions and efficiently utilize resources throughout 
the Group as a whole.

• �GHG emissions reduction rate*1: 25.4% or 
more compared with FY2005 (FY2030) 

• 27.2% • �GHG emissions reduction: 30 thousand tons or 
more compared with the previous fiscal year

• �Energy intensity reduction*2: Continue at 1% 
or above (5-year annual reduction rate)

• -0.3% • ��Energy intensity reduction: 1% or more (5-year 
annual reduction rate), or 1% or more (annual 
reduction rate with FY2009 as base year)

Maximize products 
and services to 
achieve better quality 
of life (QOL) and a 
smart society

Expand sales of products and services that contribute to a 
healthy and happy society

 �Expand products and services that can improve QOL by 
addressing such issues as the declining birth rate and aging 
population, extending healthy life expectancy, and the food 
problem.

• �Rose Value™ products sales ratio:
	 30% or more

• 13% • �New Blue Value™ and Rose Value™ certifications: 
15 or more

• �Shift to urbanization and smart cities
• �Declining birth rate and aging 

population
• �Advancement of medical and 

pharmaceutical fields
• �Food problem

Pursue thorough 
safety, high quality, 
and fairness across 
the entire supply 
chain

Ensure safety

 �Maintain high levels of safety even in the face of diversifying 
human resources, facilities, and technologies associated with 
ongoing global growth and business portfolio transformation. 

• �Incidence of major accidents: Continue at zero • 1 • 0 • �Safety and prevention
• �Product stewardship
• �Quality of products and services
• �Employment and human resources
• �Labor conditions
• �Sustainable procurement
• �Compliance

• �Significant occupational injury frequency: 
Continue at or below 0.15

• 0.33 • 0.15 or less

Provide high-quality products and services

 �Ensure the stable supply of products that satisfy customers’ 
requirements at a high level.

• �Incidence of customer non-conformance:
	 10 ppm or less

• �Number of complaints 
(Company-responsible): 
Increased (compared with the 
previous fiscal year, Mitsui 
Chemicals, Inc.)

• �Number of complaints (Company-responsible): 
Reduce by 10% or more (compared with FY2017, 
Mitsui Chemicals, Inc.)

Implement product stewardship

 �Implement risk management across the supply chain through 
the risk assessment of products and provision of safety informa-
tion to customers and other stakeholders.

• �Product risk assessment implementation rate: 
99% or more (FY2020)

• �Completed assessment of all 
products

• �Formulate new medium- to long-term goal 

• �Provision of latest product safety information: 
Continue at 100%

• 100% • 100%

Continue as a company that is fair and trusted by society

 �Thoroughly comply with all statutory and regulatory require-
ments and prevent misconduct in all global business activities.

• �Incidence of major legal and regulatory 
violations: Continue at zero

• 0 • 0

 Encourage sustainability initiatives of business partners. • �Supplier sustainability assessments 
and improvement support (sustainable 
procurement ratio of 70% or more).

• 44%*2 • �Conduct supplier sustainability assessment in 
collaboration with business divisions and domestic 
affiliated companies.

• �Raise awareness of Purchasing Policy revision and 
Sustainable Procurement Guidelines both within 
and outside the Group

 Enable Group employees to thrive at work and make the most 
of their potential. 

• �Ratio of women in management positions 
(manager-level or above)*3: 10% or more

• 2.9% • 4.0%

• �Increase employee engagement • �Conducted surveys and mea-
sured engagement levels

• �Formulate action plans

2025 Long-Term Business Plan Targets and KPIs FY2018 Results FY2019 Targets

Accelerating our business portfolio 
transformation
(shifting to a customer-driven business 
model)

• Expand three targeted business domains
• Develop next generation businesses
• �Strengthen competitiveness of the Basic 

Materials domain

Enhancing cash generation capabilities
• �Conduct active investments while maintaining 

fiscal discipline
• Improve capital efficiency

Boosting shareholder returns
• Stable and continuous dividend increase
• Flexible acquisition of treasury stock

Operating income ¥200bn ¥93.4bn ¥105bn

Net sales ¥2,000bn ¥1,482.9bn ¥1,540bn

ROS 10% 6.3% 6.8%

ROE 10% or more 14.3% 13.1%

ROIC 8% or more 6.0% 6.4%

Net D/E 0.8 or less 0.68 0.65

Shareholder returns Total return ratio 30% or more

Dividends	 ¥100 /share
Acquisition of
treasury stock  ¥10bn

(Total return ratio 39%)

Dividends ¥100/share
(Total return ratio 30% or more)

Growth investment

¥1,000bn
of which ¥400bn is earmarked for 
strategic investments (total amount 
for 10 years, excl. maintenance 
investments)

Capital expenditure

¥61.9bn
(incl. maintenance investments)

Capital expenditure

¥105bn
(incl. maintenance investments)

R&D expenses ¥70bn ¥35.8bn ¥38bn

*1 Mitsui Chemicals, Inc. and consolidated subsidiaries in Japan   *2 Mitsui Chemicals, Inc. only   *3 Mitsui Chemicals, Inc. registered employees

Three basic strategies to provide value to society

3
Strengthen existing
businesses
• Build next-generation plants with the
 use of IoT, AI, and other cutting-edge
 technologies
• All-out streamlining, including
 supply chains

2
Accelerate global
expansion
• Aim to grow the Group 
 globally and reinforce overseas 
 production and sales channels 
 mainly through our own regional 
 expansion and business alliances

1
Pursue innovation

• Promote customer-driven innovation
• Strengthen our ability to propose 
 solutions through R&D and by 
 acquiring peripheral technologies 
 and products

6. �Steadily recover investments and strengthen 
inventory management

7. �Strengthen the Group’s global management 
platform

8. �Promote sustainability management with ESG 
elements at its core

4. �Bolster manufacturing productivity with the use 
of IoT, AI, and other cutting-edge technologies

5. ��Thoroughly ensure safety and globally expand 
safety culture

1. Expand the three targeted business domains
• �Expand investments and businesses mainly by making 

inroads into peripheral fields
• Ensure production capacity to meet demand

2. �Develop new businesses of the next generation 
and accelerate new product development

3. �Further strengthen competitiveness of the 
Basic Materials domain

8 PRIORITIES for FY2019

VISION 2025
https://www.mitsuichem.com/en/corporate/vision/index.htm
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Operating income (right scale)

Net sales/Operating income/ROS

Net sales (left scale)

2014

1,550.1 864.0

745.7

697.1

740.6

810.8

686.1

44

45

42

44

45

598.2 515.2 587.9

672.1

2.71

5.28

8.43
7.79

6.30
6.82

70.9

42.0

102.1 103.5
93.4

105.0

1,343.9

1,212.3
1,328.5

1,482.9
1,540.0

(FY)

(¥ bn) (¥ bn) (%)

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
(Outlook)

Overseas sales/Overseas sales ratio

Overseas (left scale)

Number of women in management positions (left scale)

Japan (left scale)

2014(FY)

(¥ bn) (%)

2015 2016 2017 2018

ROS (right scale)

* ROS: Return on sales

Depreciation & amortization

* This figure includes acquisition of shares of ARRK Corporation ¥23.9 billion.

Capital expenditure/Depreciation & amortization

Capital expenditure

2014

47.5 48.2 48.6 44.1 45.7 49.5
53.0

43.4
45.4

81.2*

61.9

105.0

(FY)

(¥ bn)

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
(Outlook)

Blue ValueTM and Rose ValueTM products sales ratios

Blue ValueTM sales (left scale)

2014

14 15
17 17

14 14
13

16

Target: 30% or more

(FY)

(¥ bn) (%)

2015 2016 2017 2018 2025
(LTBP target)

R&D expenses

2014

32.5 31.5 30.8
33.4

35.8
38.0

(FY)

(¥ bn)

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
(Outlook)

Ratio of female employees

2014

155 11.9 12.0 12.4 12.6
12.6

5.4
6.2

6.7
7.4

7.7

1.8 2.0 2.2 2.7
2.9

181
197

223
234

(FY)

(Persons) (%)

2015 2016 2017 2018

ROIC

* ROIC: Return on invested capital=NOPAT/Invested capital * ROE: Return on equity

4.9

6.0

6.4

7.5

8% or more

(FY)

(%)

2015 2018 2019
(Outlook)

2021
(Plan)

2025
(LTBP target)

ROE

4.55

5.83

15.59
14.90 14.30

13.10

(FY)

(%)

2014 2015 2016 2018 2019
(Outlook)

2017

Significant occupational injury* frequency

0.24

0.18

0.30

0.23 0.24

0.33

0.51

(FY) 2013 2014 2015 2017 20182016

Overseas sales ratio to total sales (right scale)

OverseasJapan Group

Ratio of women in management positions (manager-level or above) (right scale)
Ratio of women in management positions (right scale)

Ratio of female employees (right scale)

China 12.3%

Asia 13.4%

Americas 12.0%

Europe 7.1%

Other 0.6% 0.00

0.21

0.32
0.24

0.82

0.08
0.17

0.29

0.24

0.31

0.22

Ratio of employees with disabilities

2.1
2.2

2.3 2.3
2.4

(FY)

(%)

2014 2015 2017 20182016

Legally required ratio
Blue ValueTM sales ratio (right scale)

Rose ValueTM sales (left scale) Rose ValueTM sales ratio (right scale)

2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0

2.2

* Mitsui Chemicals, Inc. registered employees

Energy intensity

100

0.5

99.5
98.2

93.3
94.6

-0.3

(FY)

(%)

2009 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 20182012

Five-year annual energy intensity reduction rate (right scale)

Energy intensity index (FY2009=100) (left scale)

1.3
1.4

1.0

0.4

94.0 93.493.4

GHG emissions

5,780 5,730
5,580

1,440

3,780

1,480

4,100

1,460

4,260

1,580

4,260

(FY)

(Thousand tons)

2015 2016 2017 2018

* Mitsui Chemicals, Inc. registered employees

* Mitsui Chemicals, Inc.

Japan OverseasScope1

5,220

Japan OverseasScope2

* “Significant Occupational Injuries (SOIs)” refer to occupational injuries that resulted in absence 
from work or death. SOIs also include lighter occupational injuries that, due to the potential 
danger in the cause of the injury, could have led to absence from work or death. SOIs do not 
include those injuries that are not directly related to operations.

* We previously disclosed our GHG emissions as a combination of both Scope 1 and Scope 2 
less the amount of electricity and steam sold, but we now disclose the sum of Scope 1 and 
Scope 2.
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Fact Book
https://www.mitsuichem.com/en/ir/fact_book/index.htm
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1,212.3
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(Outlook)

Overseas sales/Overseas sales ratio

Overseas (left scale)

Number of women in management positions (left scale)

Japan (left scale)

2014(FY)

(¥ bn) (%)

2015 2016 2017 2018

ROS (right scale)

* ROS: Return on sales

Depreciation & amortization

* This figure includes acquisition of shares of ARRK Corporation ¥23.9 billion.

Capital expenditure/Depreciation & amortization
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2014

47.5 48.2 48.6 44.1 45.7 49.5
53.0

43.4
45.4

81.2*
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105.0

(FY)
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Blue ValueTM and Rose ValueTM products sales ratios
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Target: 30% or more

(FY)
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2015 2016 2017 2018 2025
(LTBP target)

R&D expenses

2014

32.5 31.5 30.8
33.4

35.8
38.0

(FY)

(¥ bn)
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(Outlook)

Ratio of female employees

2014

155 11.9 12.0 12.4 12.6
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Significant occupational injury* frequency

0.24
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0.30
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0.33

0.51
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Overseas sales ratio to total sales (right scale)

OverseasJapan Group

Ratio of women in management positions (manager-level or above) (right scale)
Ratio of women in management positions (right scale)

Ratio of female employees (right scale)

China 12.3%

Asia 13.4%
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Other 0.6% 0.00

0.21

0.32
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0.08
0.17
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Ratio of employees with disabilities

2.1
2.2

2.3 2.3
2.4
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(%)
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Legally required ratio
Blue ValueTM sales ratio (right scale)
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* Mitsui Chemicals, Inc. registered employees

Energy intensity

100
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99.5
98.2

93.3
94.6

-0.3

(FY)

(%)
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Five-year annual energy intensity reduction rate (right scale)

Energy intensity index (FY2009=100) (left scale)

1.3
1.4

1.0

0.4

94.0 93.493.4

GHG emissions

5,780 5,730
5,580

1,440

3,780

1,480

4,100

1,460

4,260

1,580

4,260

(FY)

(Thousand tons)

2015 2016 2017 2018

* Mitsui Chemicals, Inc. registered employees

* Mitsui Chemicals, Inc.

Japan OverseasScope1

5,220

Japan OverseasScope2

* “Significant Occupational Injuries (SOIs)” refer to occupational injuries that resulted in absence 
from work or death. SOIs also include lighter occupational injuries that, due to the potential 
danger in the cause of the injury, could have led to absence from work or death. SOIs do not 
include those injuries that are not directly related to operations.

* We previously disclosed our GHG emissions as a combination of both Scope 1 and Scope 2 
less the amount of electricity and steam sold, but we now disclose the sum of Scope 1 and 
Scope 2.

11Mitsui Chemicals Report 2019

Value creation story Sustainability Growth strategies Foundations for growth Financial data Company data

Non-Financial Highlights



12 Mitsui Chemicals Report 2019

Value creation story

Pursuing sustainable growth as a	 “strong” and “good” company

Tsutomu Tannowa
Representative Director,
President & CEO

CEO Message
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Pursuing sustainable growth as a	 “strong” and “good” company

Progress on our Long-Term Business Plan

As we flexibly respond to changes in society, 
I can sense we are making steady progress under 
our Long-Term Business Plan

Guided by the formulation of our 2025 Long-Term Business Plan, the Mitsui 
Chemicals Group continues to implement initiatives aimed at solving the challenges 
faced by society. Fiscal 2018 was the second year of this plan. In looking back on 
that 12-month period, the environment surrounding the global economy changed 
significantly mainly because of trade friction involving the US, a Chinese economic 
slowdown, and heightened geopolitical risks. And the pace of this change contin-
ues to accelerate. At the same time, it is becoming increasingly clear what issues 
the chemical industry and society at large must address; namely, climate change 
and problems pertaining to plastic waste.
	 That said, looking at the megatrends from a higher perspective, I feel there to be 
no major differences compared to our outlook as of the time we put together our 
long-term plan. We originally formulated it in order to swiftly respond to these kinds 
of changes in the business environment and we initially assumed that would involve 
taking such changes in our stride and moving forward by flexibly responding on a 
rolling basis.

	 Fiscal 2018 operating income regrettably declined year on year owing partly to 
one-off negative factors, but net income reached a record high. We have imple-
mented structural reforms and other measures thus far and they are starting to 
yield results. I can sense that we are making steady progress under our Long-Term 
Business Plan.

Initiatives in three targeted business domains

Expansion in Mobility and Health Care domains drove 
YoY growth in operating income in the three targeted 
business domains
Aiming to strengthen ability to propose solutions

We continue to see solid growth in the Mobility domain despite a slight slowdown 
in the pace of increase in global automobile production volume. The automotive 
industry is currently in the midst of a major once-in-a-century period of transforma-
tion, as symbolized by the key acronyms CASE and MaaS.
	 Regardless of how this transformation proceeds, the need for lighter weight, 
safety, and greater comfort will only continue to increase up ahead. In line with this 
trend, I think the fields in which we can leverage our strengths—namely, our broad 
lineup of functional polymeric materials, advanced technological capabilities, and 
product quality—will further expand.
	 Moreover, the ability to propose solutions to our customers even in the area 
of manufacturing will be crucial in the future. In 2017 we incorporated ARRK 
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In 2025, Mitsui Chemicals will enter a new stage

(Corporate expenses, etc. -10)

Mobility Health Care

Food & Packaging

Basic Materials

Next Generation Business
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Corporation into the Group through an M&A deal and inte-
grated their design, prototyping, and analytical functions. 
Furthermore, in March 2019 we set up a Design & Solution 
Center with the aim of strengthening our product develop-
ment capabilities and we are continuing to beef up our ability 
to propose total solutions to customers with a view to utiliz-
ing it in the three targeted business domains.
	 In the Health Care domain, sales are increasing steadily 
for vision care materials, an area in which we possess con-
siderable expertise in terms of technological capabilities and 
customer base. Going forward, we will step up our efforts 
in developing materials that offer added value not only in 
terms of performance, but also functionality. While our 
TouchFocus™ next-generation eyewear is a BtoC product, a 
field that we have little experience in, market recognition is 
growing steadily, so I think there are prospects for taking this 
product to overseas markets.
	 In addition to premium disposable diapers, for which we 
have boosted sales thus far, we continue to expand appli-
cations for our high-performance nonwovens in automo-
tive, healthcare, and other industrial materials fields. In April 
2019 we established our Industrial Materials Development 
Department for the purpose of advancing such developments. 

And even though reorganizing our dental materials business 
presented a challenge, we continue to put in place a platform 
for expanding sales by wasting no time in implementing ini-
tiatives such as bolstering our sales framework and launching 
digital-related products.
	 In the Food & Packaging domain, sales of industrial films 
are currently at somewhat of a standstill largely as a result 
of the downturn in the semiconductor market caused by the 
impact of the US-China trade conflict. From a longer-term per-
spective, however, we expect demand to be driven mainly 
by further developments in AI and IoT and the rollout of 5G 
networks, and we are continuing to push ahead with strat-
egies such as strengthening our operations in Taiwan. We 
also expect demand for packaging film for food products to 
increase in line with the need to reduce food loss, which is 
why we intend to work hard on developing products that offer 
new features.
	 In our agrochemicals business, we are making steady 
progress on developing new pipelines. We have concluded 
a global license agreement with an influential agrochemical 
manufacturer in Europe for our new mainstay insecticide as 
we aim to expand into global markets.

Next Generation Business and
Basic Materials domains

The Next Generation Business steadily 
coming to fruition
Structural reforms in the Basic 
Materials domain to continue

We are currently addressing the Next Generation Business 
domain in order to create new solution businesses with an 
eye to the next 10 or 20 years. In the energy field, we are mak-
ing progress in our power generation and solar power diagno-
sis businesses. In the latter, we plan to launch a certification 
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 See Sustainability Management on page 25.

business in India in fiscal 2019. In the medical field, our rapid 
bacteriological identification system has reached the clinical 
trial stage. Given that this system helps to quickly diagnose 
sepsis, an infectious disease with a particularly high mortal-
ity rate, I think the technology is quite valuable from the view-
point of solving social challenges.
	 We are also aggressively pursuing open innovation and 
corporate venture capital projects through partnerships with 
start-up firms and pushing ahead with the development of 
models for physicians to practice surgery on and improve 
their skill sets.
	 All of these businesses will play a part in solving the chal-
lenges faced by society, and although we still have hurdles 
to overcome before they can start contributing to profits, we 
hope to steadily nurture them one by one going forward.
	 In the Basic Materials domain, we will continue to imple-
ment the structural reforms we have carried out thus far. I 
believe structural reforms to be a never-ending topic. As 
its name suggests, the basic materials business is the cor-
nerstone of our Company’s growth domains and underpins 
the foundation of our society. In order to shore up our long-
term competitiveness as a chemical corporation, we will con-
stantly endeavor to streamline our production activities and 
work even harder to improve quality.

Linking greater investments to business results

Earmarking ¥430 billion for investment 
over next three years
Carefully selecting projects that deliver 
ample returns

Under our Long-Term Business Plan, we intend to actively 
pump managerial resources into growth investments.
	 It is important that these investments are linked steadily 
to growth and our basic policy is to ensure enough produc-
tion capacity to meet demand. Accordingly, we will carefully 
select projects from which we expect to generate ample 
returns on investment.
	 Another key strategy for expanding business is the use 
of M&As. However, M&As with the simple aim of expansion 
do not lead to sustained growth. As a general rule, I believe 
we should avoid engaging in M&As in business domains iso-
lated from our own. In other words, we should target areas in 
which there is potential for synergies with our existing busi-
nesses. The incorporation into the Group of technologies and 
know-how we currently do not possess should serve as new 
powers for further growth.
	 In undertaking these growth investments, we give due 
consideration to the cost of capital and endeavor to strike the 
right balance between return on investment and growth tak-
ing ROIC as an indicator. We will continue to concentrate our 
investments in the three targeted business domains and at 
the same time aim to steadily improve ROIC in the future.

Sustainability management

Incorporating sustainability into 
management, dealing with risks, and 
aptly seizing growth opportunities

As symbolized by the spread of the SDGs, sustainability has 
taken hold as a keyword and calls for companies to address 
ESG issues are mounting. In looking back on fiscal 2018, I 
think this trend gained even more momentum. Stakeholders 
are increasingly focusing on the business strategies of com-
panies with regard to how they accurately gauge risks and 
opportunities and incorporate them into management, as well 
as how quickly they can transform their business models. 
From now on, creating social value will be crucial to enhanc-
ing corporate value.
	 As such, we established our Corporate Sustainability 
Division in 2018 in order to engage in sustainability manage-
ment with ESG elements at its core. More than a year has 
passed since then and sustainability continues to steadily 
take root in our Company’s management. It is already an 
inseparable point of view when management considers an 
investment or puts together a budget. Sustainability top-
ics are even routinely discussed at Company-wide Strategy 
Committee meetings and Board of Directors meetings and 
we are making every effort to sensitively reflect the needs 
of society.
	 The disclosure of ESG-related information is also a criti-
cal component for management, hence our proactive efforts 
to engage in dialogue with investors and various other stake-
holders. Unlike results shown in financial statements and 
the like, ESG initiatives are much harder to express on paper 
because they are conceptual and not easily represented with 
figures. In this regard, our Blue Value™ and Rose Value™ 
have been well received as unique indices to help visualize 
our Company’s initiatives to address social challenges. We 
intend to steadily expand our Blue Value™ and Rose Value™ 
product lineups going forward.
	 For our employees too, identifying the value of addressing 
sustainability issues in day-to-day operations is not easy. That 
is why I am creating more opportunities to speak directly with 
employees. I use my own choice of words to ensure that they 
gain an easy understanding of the significance of our sustain-
ability management. By continuing to implement these kinds 
of activities step-by-step, we are fostering a climate condu-
cive to tackling sustainability issues on a Group-wide basis 
and leveraging that momentum to keep moving forward.

 See CFO Message on page 18.
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Plastic waste and climate change

Promoting a circular economy model 
for the entire value chain and advancing 
global partnerships

Of the challenges facing society today, the problems of plas-
tics and how to tackle climate change are gaining prominent 
attention. The Mitsui Chemicals Group is deeply implicated in 
these issues as a chemical company that emits large volumes 
of greenhouse gases and manufactures plastics. Although 
these issues pose risks, they also afford us business oppor-
tunities. From a long-term perspective, I believe the execu-
tion of appropriate and swift business decisions will be key.
	 We cannot prescind the two issues of plastics and climate 
change. The Group’s basic approach is to implement initia-
tives from both perspectives to encourage a switch to a cir-
cular economy across the entire value chain.
	 The three Rs (reuse, reduce, and recycle) for plastics is 
an initiative that Japan has continued to pioneer. The Group 
intends to promote a circular economy model by expanding 
the use of biomass plastics as well as strengthening its recy-
cling initiatives. Marine plastic waste is a problem concerning 
trash that has escaped this cycle and cooperation on a global 
level will be essential if a solution is to be found. As such, we 
are addressing this issue by participating in the Alliance to 
End Plastic Waste (AEPW) and other global alliances.
	 As for climate change, we formulated a long-term pol-
icy with a view to the year 2050. In addition, we support 
the recommendations of the Task Force on Climate-related 
Financial Disclosures (TCFD) and we are striving to actively 
disclose information about how climate change affects our 
businesses.

Global human resources development

Creating an environment where a 
diverse workforce can thrive is key to 
also accelerating our global strategy

At any point in history, human resources will always be one 
of our most important management resources. We are pro-
ceeding with the creation of a workplace environment where 
employees of all walks of life can thrive irrespective of gen-
der, nationality, or other factors.
	 Globalization is the major keyword when it comes to 
human resources. The Mitsui Chemicals Group currently has 
170 business sites in 30 countries and regions, while 43% of 
all our employees are based overseas. I think entrusting man-
agement to employees who best understand local issues will 
be essential to further business expansion up ahead. To that 
end, hiring and nurturing local employees is a challenge we 
must concentrate our efforts on going forward. In April 2019 
we established our Global Human Resources Division in order 
to strengthen global human resources management and gov-
ernance. The acceleration of our global expansion is also a 
key strategy in our Long-Term Business Plan. We therefore 
intend to keep strengthening the platform on which this strat-
egy is based.

Safety initiatives

“Safety is our top priority”
All employees recognize anew this 
uncompromising policy and ensure 
safety

I believe that safety is, more than anything else, the most 
important commitment for management to make. Whenever 
I get the chance, I tell our employees that safety is our top pri-
ority. And one of the stated goals in our Long-Term Business 
Plan is to pursue thorough safety, high quality, and fairness 
across the entire supply chain.
	 To ensure safety in our operations, we must never forget 
the explosion and fire that occurred in 2012 at our resorci-
nol production facility at the Iwakuni-Ohtake Works. We have 
been extremely diligent about safety and repeatedly made 
improvements by working together with production sites. 
Nevertheless, a fire broke out again at the Osaka Works in fis-
cal 2018. I took this matter very seriously to heart and person-
ally talked with employees at the worksite to check whether 
the safety initiatives there might have turned into mere for-
malities and whether or not each and every employee was 
facing up to the situation earnestly. 

CEO Message

 See Climate Change and Problems with Plastic on page 30.

 See Human Resources Strategy on page 57.
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	 We hope to continue steadily implementing activities 
aimed at thoroughly ensuring a Group-wide safety aware-
ness once again. At the same time, we will look to establish 
a framework and introduce technology aimed at making our 
prevention measures more sophisticated and fulfill our social 
responsibilities by seeking guaranteed safety across all pro-
cesses of the supply chain.

To our stakeholders

Channeling the collective strengths of 
all employees to achieve sustainable 
growth

We will continue to forge ahead towards our 2025 goals in our 
Long-Term Business Plan by flexibly responding to changes 
on a rolling basis. Our activities will mainly revolve around 
the expansion of the three targeted business domains, but 
we also intend to keep securing stable earnings in the Basic 
Materials domain.
	 In fiscal 2019 we are forecasting growth in both sales and 
profit; our operating income target is ¥105 billion. As we shift 
to a stage of steadily recovering investments made thus far, 
we expect an increase in operating income to ¥120 billion in 
fiscal 2020 and ¥140 billion in fiscal 2021.

	 Recently, in order to convey to employees our Group’s 
approach to sustainability in an easy-to-understand way, I 
have been using the words “strong company” and “good 
company.” A strong company is one that has earnings power, 
which materializes in its financial results. I believe that a good 
company, on the other hand, is one whose management plat-
form is based on the intangible value like a vibrant corporate 
culture.
	 Companies that are not strong cannot survive, but compa-
nies that are not good have no point in surviving. By channel-
ing the collective strengths of all employees, we will aim to 
be a sustainable corporate group that takes pride in being a 
“company not merely strong but also good.”
	 Chemistry underpins the foundation of society and is an 
industry that harbors considerable potential—so much so 
that it may well be the source of innovation in various forms 
in the future. In meeting the expectations of all our stake-
holders, we will continue to generate new value and aim to 
achieve sustainable growth for both society and the Mitsui 
Chemicals Group.

Creating new customer
value and solving social

challenges through
business activities

2018 2019 2021 20252004 2006 2011 2014 2016 2017(FY) 2008

Restructuring

Extensive
business

restructuring

Recovery

Transformation
of business

portfolio

Growth

Shifting to a
customer-driven
business model

Leap

Actualization of
corporate target

91.7
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income

¥200bn

103.5

93.4

105.0
140.0

(¥ bn)

 See Safety & Prevention on page 75.
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CFO Message

1. Initiatives for improving investment efficiency and lowering capital costs

At Mitsui Chemicals, we make use of portfolio management, 
KPI management, and the optimization of investment evalua-
tions to improve investment efficiency.
	 As part of portfolio management, we assess all our busi-
nesses based on ROIC* and profit growth rate and identify 
issues in each business. If ROIC is lower than the WACC in a 
particular business, we implement measures aimed at trans-
forming its portfolio, for example, by formulating a remodel-
ing strategy in the three-year rolling plan we execute annually 
to discuss among management.
	 In KPI management, we break down ROIC into indica-
tors that can be managed at the business division level; they 
include profit-and-loss statement-related metrics such as net 
sales and operating income, as well as balance sheet met-
rics like the cash conversion cycle. We will then expedite 
the actions required for improvement by monitoring each 

indicator. We intend to deepen our KPI management activities 
up ahead by more closely linking each indicator to employee 
evaluations.
	 As for initiatives to optimize our investment evaluations, 
IRR is the main criterion on which we base our investment 
decision-making. We evaluate investment projects with ref-
erence to our hurdle rate, which is based on capital costs 
and takes into account risk factors. We also make efforts 
to improve our investment evaluation process by annually 
reviewing past projects and analyzing the factors why the 
results of some investments diverged considerably from 
plan. We are currently examining a number of investments 
centering on production capacity expansion for products 
whose demand is expected to rise up ahead. We intend to 
carefully select projects for investment by first making fully 
sure of their economic viability.
*ROIC: Return on invested capital

Improving investment efficiency

Enhancing 
corporate

value

Portfolio management

KPI managementImproving investment efficiency

Optimizing investment evaluations

Lowering earnings volatility

Optimal capital structureLowering capital costs

Stronger communication with investors



19Mitsui Chemicals Report 2019

Value creation story Sustainability Growth strategies Foundations for growth Financial data Company data

In recognizing the importance of management that is 
always conscious of capital costs, we aim to maximize 
corporate value with measures that improve investment 
efficiency and lower capital costs

Masaharu Kubo
Representative Director,
Executive Vice President & CFO

In aiming to lower capital costs, we are working to lower 
earnings volatility, achieve an optimal capital structure, and 
strengthen communication with investors.
	 First of all, let me please go through our initiative for low-
ering earnings volatility. In the past, we experienced a slump 
in Company-wide earnings when those products such as 
phenol, purified terephthalic acid, and polyurethane mate-
rials sank deep into the red. At the time, these products 
commanded a high export ratio to China and other Asian 
markets, but margins on exports deteriorated sharply when 
supply-demand conditions worsened as Chinese manufac-
turers expanded or built new plants. In response, we made 
the decision to embark on structural reforms accompanying 
large extraordinary losses in fiscal 2013. Since then, we have 
retired our production facilities, which included the closure of 
production sites, based on the principle of local production 
for local consumption. Accordingly, we have been successful 
in downgrading the size of our production capacity to meet 
domestic demand. As a result, the ratio of local production 
for local consumption for the aforementioned three products 
now stands at 80%. At the same time, we have introduced a 
formula method to link product prices to raw material costs in 
an effort to minimize the impact from fluctuations in market 
prices. The price formula ratio for our mainstay products in the 
Basic Materials domain has now improved to 70%. These ini-
tiatives have been the catalyst behind our successful switch 
to a stable earnings structure even for the Basic Materials 
domain, which includes products generally regarded as being 
susceptible to earnings volatility. Going forward, we will look 

to further stabilize earnings by reinforcing the competitive-
ness of crackers and other products.
	 We are pursuing an optimal capital structure through 
which we can balance financial soundness and minimiz-
ing capital costs. Owing to the aforementioned slump in 
Company-wide earnings, the net D/E ratio at one time dete-
riorated as far as 1.44, but thanks to the benefits of subse-
quent structural reforms, it has now improved to around the 
0.70 level. Our credit rating has also been upgraded from A 
to A+ by Japan Credit Rating Agency, Ltd. (JCR) and from A– 
to A by Rating and Investment Information, Inc. (R&I). While 
we expect to see an increase in interest-bearing debt as we 
step up the pace of investments, we will endeavor to keep 
the net D/E ratio and our credit ratings at current levels and 
find the right balance between financial soundness and min-
imizing capital costs.
	 In order to strengthen communication with investors, we 
have continuously engaged in dialogue to ensure they have 
a solid understanding of our Company’s management cir-
cumstances, including the aforementioned initiatives imple-
mented thus far. Many of the investors we have met with in 
person have mentioned that they gained a good understand-
ing about our earnings stability and future growth prospect. 
Meanwhile, in terms of the broader stock market’s percep-
tion, I get the feeling that market participants have yet to 
erase the image that our earnings are highly volatile. For this 
reason, we will continue to provide more opportunities to 
engage in dialogue.

Lowering capital costs
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Cash flows and net D/E ratio

3. Management targets

Our 2025 Long-Term Business Plan sets out the following 
numerical targets: net sales of ¥2 trillion, operating income 
of ¥200 billion, ROE of 10% or more, and a net D/E ratio no 
higher than 0.8. We also recently set a new ROIC target of 
8% or higher. We intend to ramp up the pace of our initiatives 
going forward with the aim of achieving these targets.
	 Our three-year rolling plan for 2019–2021 calls for operat-
ing income of ¥140 billion and net income of ¥100 billion in 
2021. Restricting our investments caused earnings to plateau 
over the last few years, but we think benefits from various 

investment projects will begin to materialize from around 
2021 and beyond.
	 We also recently disclosed ROIC for each of our business 
segments to serve as a yardstick to quantitatively measure 
the transformation of our business portfolio. We forecast an 
improvement in Company-wide ROIC from 6.0% in 2018 to 
7.5% by 2021. By business segment, ROIC for the Mobility 
segment currently hovers at a high level. Invested capital will 
increase up ahead as we expand our capital expenditure, but 
we aim to keep ROIC at a high level, buoyed by profit growth. 

2. Investment plan

Over a three-year period from 2014 to 2016, we took steps 
to improve the Company’s financial structure. As a result, the 
net D/E ratio has improved to around 0.70 as already men-
tioned, but at the same time, cutting back on investments has 
limited our capacity to expand sales of mainstay products. 
That is why our 2025 Long-Term Business Plan formulated in 
fiscal 2016 calls for growth investments to the tune of ¥1 tril-
lion over a 10-year period. Roughly 90% of this figure will be 
spent on our three targeted business domains and we plan to 
allocate ¥600 billion to capital expenditure aimed at expand-
ing production capacity and strengthening competitiveness, 
while ¥400 billion will fund M&As and other strategic invest-
ments. That said, our basic approach to investment is that the 
amount we have earmarked is not our only concern. We will 
continue to carefully select projects with a strong likelihood 
of ample returns on investment.
	 Also, with the aim of achieving the objectives set out in 
the 2025 Long-Term Business Plan, every year we put in 

motion a strategic and numerical three-year rolling plan. For 
2019–2021 we have earmarked ¥430 billion for investments 
and 75% of this, or just over ¥300 billion, will be allocated to 
investments for growth and streamlining, while the remain-
ing ¥100 billion or so will be directed towards maintenance 
investments, including facility upkeep. The investments for 
growth and streamlining will center on new installation or 
upgrading of facilities in the three targeted business domains 
because of the many products that require greater production 
capacity to meet growing demand, particularly in the Mobility 
domain. We will also invest in the Basic Materials domain 
with the aim of strengthening our competitive edge mainly 
by diversifying the raw materials for our cracker and install-
ing new gas turbines for utility plants. Even though funds for 
M&A are not included in the figure mentioned above, in the 
event that we do consider an M&A deal, we will scrutinize the 
Company’s financial standing and strategic compatibility.

CFO Message
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4. Shareholder returns

While our top priority is the enhancement of corporate value 
through business growth and expansion, we also see the 
return of profits to our shareholders as a key management 
priority. Our policy on shareholder returns is to continuously 

increase dividends in line with performance trends and aim to 
achieve a total return ratio of 30% or more by flexibly acquir-
ing treasury stock depending on the share price and market 
conditions.

In the Health Care segment, invested capital will increase to a 
certain extent, but we anticipate an improvement in ROIC on 
the back of profit growth driven by greater sales of vision care 
materials and an earnings recovery in nonwoven fabrics and 
dental materials, both of which remained sluggish in 2018. 
In the Food & Packaging segment, we aim to improve ROIC 
by expanding sales of agrochemicals, turning around sales 

of ICROS™ Tape, which were tempered by a slowing semi-
conductor market from the second half of 2018, and bring-
ing the new Taiwan plant on stream. In the Basic Materials 
segment, even though invested capital is going to rise due 
to higher capital expenditure, we forecast an improvement in 
ROIC along with increased profitability mainly from stronger 
competitiveness.

FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17 FY18 FY19 (Outlook)

Annual dividend per share (Yen) 25* 40* 70* 90* 100 100

Profit attributable to owners of 
parent (¥bn) 17.3 23.0 64.8 71.6 76.1 76

Total return ratio (%) 29.0 34.9 21.6 32.1 39.0 30% or more

*On October 1, 2017, Mitsui Chemicals conducted a 5-to-1 share consolidation. All dividends are re-calculated based on this share consolidation. 

Operating income and net income ROIC
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Discussion on Sustainability

Mr. Kazuo Tase
President & CEO,
SDG Partners, Inc.

Tsutomu Tannowa
Representative Director, 

President & CEO

Top management leadership is 
essential

—�The Company has thus far deepened 
its triple bottom line management 
approach and is working to engage in 
management with ESG elements at 
its core. Mr. Tase, you have a wealth 
of knowledge about sustainability. 
What do you think are the key ele-
ments required for a company to pro-
mote sustainability strategy?

 Tase  I think top management must 
show leadership by fully understanding 
and identifying with the significance of 
promoting sustainability strategy. If they 
don’t, employees are unlikely to follow 
suit. In the case of Mitsui Chemicals, I get 
the feeling that the president understands 
the essence of sustainability and executes 
business decisions accordingly.

 Tannowa  I too agree with your opinion that 
top management’s comprehension of sus-
tainability is a prerequisite. Also import-
ant I think is how top management can 
communicate its ideas to employees. We 
established the Corporate Sustainability 
Division in 2018 and one of its objectives is 
to ensure that employees understand and 
make sense of sustainability management. 
We also wanted to externally demonstrate 
how serious Mitsui Chemicals is about 
addressing ESG issues. We want to place 
pressure on ourselves, in a positive way, as 
we take steps towards promoting sustain-
ability strategy.
	
 Tase  Is there anything you keep in mind 
in terms of employees’ understanding of 
sustainability?

Looking ahead to the future and 
working towards our goals 

 Tannowa  I usually explain the significance 
of sustainability management to employ-
ees by using the expression “a company 
not merely strong but also good.” A com-
pany must have financial strength, as 
demonstrated in earnings results and the 
like, but at the same time, if it isn’t a “good 
company,” so to speak, by possessing 
non-financial intangible value, then there is 
really no point in surviving.

 Tase  I tend to liken financial and non-fi-
nancial factors to the muscle strength and 
internal organs of an athlete. Even with 
muscle strength and skills an athlete can’t 
keep winning without healthy internal 
organs. In business, companies with an 
uneven balance of financial and non-finan-
cial strengths have little prospect for sus-
tainable growth, in my opinion.
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Conceiving our future targets 
from a long-term perspective 
and working towards them

—�The Group has formulated its Long-
Term Business Plan. What are your 
thoughts on the importance of a long-
term perspective?

 Tase  Recently when talking with the 
younger generation of company execu-
tives, the importance of a long-term per-
spective is often raised. Many of them 
think that medium-term business plans 
might as well be laid to rest. Mitsui 
Chemicals has already switched from 
medium-term plan to long-term plan, 
which I think was a very forward-thinking 
approach. What were the reasons behind 
that decision?

 Tannowa  While I personally strongly pushed 
for it, we realized that in these times of 
such volatile change in the business en-
vironment, a pre-established plan would 
be meaningless. We decided to go with 
a long-term plan because even if it’s a bit 
vague, for example, we would still be bet-
ter off framing our future targets and work-
ing towards them. The idea behind this 
is that if conditions change, implement-
ing a rolling plan to flexibly factor in those 
changes is a more realistic approach.

 Tase  I’m sure it was a big decision to 
make, but were there any concerns voiced 
within the Company?

 Tannowa  I think there were some concerns 
among employees who were used to a rigid 
management system of preparing a budget 
based on a medium-term plan. However, 
things do not always proceed as pre-es-
tablished under a medium-term plan. We 
decided it would be better to shift to long-
term goals in the sense that it would encour-
age a change in mindset among employees.

 Tase  I think it’s very important to steer 
the Company toward a goal that is slightly 
further away. This approach also applies to 
how we should address social challenges. 
For example, providing food to impover-
ished and hungry children will satisfy their 
hunger at that moment, but it doesn’t 
solve the underlying problem. It goes 
without saying that tackling poverty itself 
is crucial. I want companies to have an 
awareness of whether their approaches 
will really lead to their long-term goals. It’s 

important that companies employ a com-
bination of inductive short-and-medium 
term perspectives with a deductive long-
term outlook.

Management must look ahead 
to the future and change 
accordingly

—�Mr. Tase, you have also said that the 
process for reflecting current trends 
into management is essential to pro-
moting sustainability strategy.

 Tase  In a way, ESG approaches can be 
said as a function to foresee outlook for 
the future. Discussing matters that man-
agement needs to know about at the 
right time is the key. My guess is that 
you intentionally positioned the Corporate 
Sustainability Division under the direct 
control of the president as a way to reflect 
important topics concerning the future 
into management.

 Tannowa  As you say, I frequently engage in 
discussion with the Corporate Sustainability 
Division. Those discussions are then brought 
to the table at the meetings of the Corporate 
Sustainability Committee and the Board of 
Directors. At Board meetings in the past, 
most agenda items concerned recent busi-
ness matters or investments, but there have 
been more signs recently that Board mem-
bers want to discuss matters from an ESG 
perspective. Social challenges are character-
ized by the trends of the times and differ in 
significance and impact. We must be sure to 
engage in deductive arguments and ask our-
selves what we should do now by consid-
ering the influences these issues may have 
in 20–30 years’ time. Through these discus-
sions, I think the measures we take and our 
management priorities will change.

 Tase  Management anticipates the future 
and makes changes accordingly. That is 
what sustainability management is all 
about. For example, a scenario where peo-
ple use self-driving cars on a daily basis is 
no longer a pipe dream in 10 years’ time. If 
it does happen, the notion of distance will 
lose all meaning and land prices and urban 
living will change dramatically. I think it is 
vital for management to always be atten-
tive to such changes in society and acutely 
decipher what those trends mean. When 
looking ahead of the situation of chemi-
cal industry in 10 years’ time, how do you 
analyze the current state of the industry?

 Tannowa  I feel that the potential of chem-
istry is growing. There is always a role that 
chemistry can play in sparking innovation. 
Not surprisingly, the biggest issues for the 
chemical industry and Mitsui Chemicals are 
climate change and plastic waste. These 
problems are expected to become even 
more severe in 10 years’ time, so I think 
we need to draw up a major framework in 
which we outline the scenarios and exam-
ine what measures we can implement.

 Tase  General consumers tend to forget 
about the life cycle assessment point of 
view when considering the problem of 
plastic waste. Simply saying that we have 
to reduce plastic because it ends up as 
waste fails to address the essence of the 
problem, I think.

 Tannowa  Appropriate treatment and dis-
posal of plastic products after use would 
be ideal. However, the situation is that the 
environment is suffering as a result of inap-
propriate waste management. It is import-
ant that we use scientific data to confirm 
environmental impacts at each stage of a 
product’s life cycle before making com-
prehensive assessments. Naturally it is 
our responsibility as a company that man-
ufactures plastic to consider what we can 
do and how we should take action. At the 
same time, problems need to be solved 
in cooperation with various parties across 
the entire supply chain, for example, the 
local governments and administrations 
that are tasked with collecting and pro-
cessing waste. We must realize that the 
problem of plastic is not something that 
can be dealt with shortsightedly in a cer-
tain way. I am personally aware of this 
and I intend to make my thoughts known 
from both a Company and industry point 
of view.

 Tase  I would certainly like to see a com-
pany with thorough knowledge of plastics, 
like Mitsui Chemicals, taking a leading role 
and engaging in fundamental debate. I 
also think general consumers struggle to 
understand the whole picture of this prob-
lem. I hope that you can provide consum-
ers with easy-to-understand information 
and develop superior products that help 
find a solution.
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I think it would be wonderful if your prod-
ucts could also demonstrate their impact 
on society in the future.

Fulfilling major social 
responsibilities but also 
seeking profitability

—�Finally, please describe your expecta-
tions for the Mitsui Chemicals Group.

 Tase  My assessment of Mitsui Chemicals 
so far is that it has upheld some major 
social responsibilities. Even if society is 
transformed in the future, I’d like to see 
the Company continue to fulfill its core 
social responsibilities and be even more 
profitable through those efforts. I expect 
it to maintain the right balance between 
contributing to society and growing as a 
company.

 Tannowa  Mr. Tase, your job involves tackling 
social challenges from various approaches 
in different parts of the world. We kindly 
ask that you cast a strict but warm eye 
over our Group’s initiatives on addressing 
social challenges and sustainability man-
agement. Please let us know if we appear 
to be veering off track.

Putting in place a scheme 
under which diverse human 
resources can thrive

—�Mr. Tase, in addition to the environ-
ment, what other issues do you attach 
importance to?

 Tase  I have an impression that diver-
sity and inclusion such as SDG’s gender 
equality and women’s empowerment 
are where Japanese companies’ efforts 
are most needed. What’s the situation at 
Mitsui Chemicals?

 Tannowa  In the past it was normal for 
production sites of chemical companies 
to have few female workers, but we are 
placing as many women as possible into 
the three rotating shifts. While we need 
to improve our facilities and systems to 
facilitate this, the very idea of what our 
worksites should be like continues to 
change. In management as well, two of 
our three outside directors are female as 
of this year. Our challenge is that we have 
few female employees to begin with, so 
if we can steadily increase the ratio of 
female recruits going forward, we should 
be able to have more women in manage-
rial positions or key postings in the future. 
We think this will set in motion a virtu-
ous cycle.

 Tase  What about diversity from a broader 
point of view?

 Tannowa  We are actively appointing staff 
hired overseas to key positions. And we 
established our Global Human Resources 
Division with the aim of making active use 
of talented human resources.

 Tase  Nurturing employees who are capa-
ble of flexible thinking as the next-gen-
eration of managers is a really important 
initiative, I think.

 Tannowa  At Mitsui Chemicals we have 
established a Key Talent Management 
(KTM) system based on which we create 

succession plans and assign roles in a 
series of distinct stages to nurture employ-
ees right through to senior management. 
We have a Human Resource Advisory 
Committee to discuss on the assignments 
of our top management. The Committee 
hears the opinions of outside directors 
and assumes accountability. In other 
words, we have a very strong awareness 
of responsibility to make discussions in an 
open and transparent manner.

Need to also demonstrate 
social impact, a leading 
indicator of profit

—�How have the Company’s unique Blue 
Value™ and Rose Value™ indices and 
products been received?

 Tase  I think society calls for various solu-
tions from Mitsui Chemicals as an industry 
leader. Your Blue Value™ and Rose Value™ 
indices and products seem to represent a 
suitable response to those requests.

 Tannowa  Our Blue Value™ and Rose Value™ 
visualize our contributions to solving social 
challenges as environmental contribution 
value and QOL improvement contribution 
value respectively. We started disclosing 
this information in 2015 because these ini-
tiatives became able to deliver objectiv-
ity and benefits for all our stakeholders to 
evaluate.

 Tase  In addition to simply selling prod-
ucts that contribute to society, it also 
seems that your initiatives are financially 
viable. Is this true?

 Tannowa  It would be meaningless to 
just promote our products without a goal, 
which is why we are committed to increas-
ing the sales ratios of Blue Value™ and 
Rose Value™ products as a KPI in our Long-
Term Business Plan. We believe growth in 
these products can also help achieve sus-
tainable economic growth. This is why we 
now focus on the value of contributions to 
the environment or improvements to quality 
of life when assessing investment projects.

 Tase  Investors are becoming increasingly 
interested in how much a certain product 
or service impacts society. In other words, 
whether it changes society for the better 
or whether it reduces a negative impact. 
They think social impact is a leading indi-
cator of profit and a company’s contribu-
tion to society will be returned in the form 
of profits over the medium- to long-term. 

Discussion on Sustainability

Interviewer: �Ken Migita, 
Senior Director and General Manager of 
Corporate Sustainability Division

Mr. Kazuo Tase
President & CEO
SDG Partners, Inc.

Graduated from School of Nuclear Engineering, 
Faculty of Engineering, University of Tokyo; 
Visiting Professor at New York University School 
of Law.
2017  Established SDG Partners, Inc.
2014  �Assumed the office of Director, Global 

Management Institute at Deloitte 
Tohmatsu Consulting, Japan.

2005-2014  �Worked at the United Nations; 
served as Chief of Human Security 
Unit in UN Office for Coordination 
of Humanitarian Affairs, and later 
Acting Director of UN Information 
Center in Pakistan.

1992-2005  �Worked at Japan’s Ministry of 
Foreign Affairs
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Incorporation of ESG elements into management/strategies

To engage in sustainable management, it is key that we view 
the social challenges for SDGs and other initiatives as business 
opportunities, promote innovation, minimize future risks, and 
reinforce management resilience. The Group’s management peri-
odically meet to discuss strategies in order to accurately grasp 
changes in social demands from the international community and 
reflect them into management from a long-term perspective. In 
fiscal 2018 we formulated policies on the SDGs and ESG and 
integrated ESG elements into our budget-drafting process.
	 One of KPIs that we set for the Group in our 2025 Long-Term 
Business Plan is to expand sales of our Blue Value™ and Rose 
Value™ products that contribute to the environment and society. 
In aiming to achieve this goal, we are taking steps to specifically 
incorporate them into business plans and targets. In addition, we 
are encouraging each and every employee to change their ways 
of thinking by organizing social challenge workshops to brain-
storm the creation of new businesses and new products that are 
driven by the need to solve social issues. We are also deepening 
discussions with business and R&D divisions.
	 Moreover, from fiscal 2019 we started utilizing a system that 
reflects long-term views of new target investments into our 
investment plan. The system helps us visualize mainly invest-
ments related to Blue Value™ and Rose Value™, contributions 
to the SDGs, and changes in GHG emissions. These matters are 
then discussed at investment deliberation meetings.
	 We have predominantly focused our strategy discussions 
on climate change and plastic waste—two serious issues for 
chemical companies—because we consider it very important to 
demonstrate concrete measures as soon as possible. We sup-
port the recommendations of the Task Force on Climate-related 
Financial Disclosures (TCFD) and took the decision to participate 
in the Alliance to End Plastic Waste (AEPW). We have also for-
mulated and publicly released policies stating our commitment to 
these causes.

Sustainability Management

The SDGs and other initiatives that aim to solve the challenges faced by society continue to gain momentum worldwide and com-
panies are increasingly being asked to take action. For a sustainable society to be realized, it is essential that companies themselves 
must achieve growth, but at the same time create social value by providing solutions. To this end, it is now even more important 
that companies accurately identify opportunities and risks from an ESG perspective and reflect them into management.

Sustainability in the Mitsui Chemicals Group
In addressing global social challenges highlighted in the SDGs and other initiatives, we aim to achieve sustainable development in 
society and the Group by implementing the following:
• Seek business opportunities and strive to solve challenges through business activities
• Recognize future risks for the Group and uphold our corporate social responsibility

Challenges
Incorporation of ESG elements into management/
strategies
• �Reflect ESG considerations in management and strategy dis-

cussions at Board meetings and Company-wide Strategy 
Committee meetings 

• �Generate business involving business and R&D divisions and 
promote innovation

Improvement of ESG information disclosure
• �Boost appeal to institutional investors, customers, and sus-

tainability rating agencies
• Strengthen ESG dialogue

In deepening our triple bottom line (economy, environment, 
and society) management approach and committing to a man-
agement that places ESG elements at its core, the Group estab-
lished the Corporate Sustainability Division in April 2018. We are 

now working to incorporate ESG elements into management/
strategies and improve how we disclose ESG information to our 
stakeholders.

Breakdown of new large-scale target investments decided 
in fiscal 2019 (for FY2019-2021)

Blue Value™
products

  10%

Environment-related
capex

34%

Environment-related investments
(incl. Blue Value™ products) 

64%

Blue Value™ &
Rose Value™

products 

20%

Rose Value™
products

10%

Other
22%

Blue Value™ / Rose Value™ candidate products

4%

Blue ValueTM/ Rose ValueTM

40%

Sustainability Management
https://www.mitsuichem.com/en/sustainability/mci_sustainability/management/index.htm
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Key Issues (Materiality)

Selection of key issues

Review of key issues

In aiming to realize a future cohesive society in harmony with the 
environment, health and well-being in an aging society, and indus-
trial platforms in harmony with local communities, we have clearly 
defined our commitment to developing society and the Group 
through our business activities. Based on this approach, we 
have selected key issues mainly with reference to the UN Global 
Compact, to which we became a signatory in 2008, international 

guidelines, and the opinions of stakehold-
ers. We also referred to the characteris-
tics of our businesses and the regions in 
which we operate to identify issues from 
two angles: (1) the contributions our busi-
ness activities make to society; and (2) 
the various impacts they have on society. 

We are currently conducting a review of the key issues based on 
the recognition that making progress toward resolving the key 
issues will help us achieve the targets of our 2025 Long-Term 
Business Plan and contribute to solving the challenges of society. 
We intend to once again identify issues in consideration of how 
important the SDGs and other social initiatives are to stakeholders. 

We will also examine their importance from our point of view 
with regard to executing strategies aimed at realizing the Group’s 
Corporate Mission and our long-term business plan. We will then 
combine these two perspectives to reselect key issues. We also 
plan to hold internal and external hearings and have the Corporate 
Sustainability Committee confirm their validity.

Pick out issues from the requirements of ISO 26000, the GRI, and other international guidelines, as well as 
through engagement with various stakeholders. Identify environmental and social issues the chemical industry 
must help resolve from the standpoint of contributing to society through business activities.

Step 1: 
Identification

Step 2: 
Prioritization

For each issue, assess the degree of importance to both stakeholders and the Group. Itemize common items 
so that the perspectives of stakeholders can be cross-referenced with the level of importance to the Group, and 
consider what measures the Group needs to implement. Assess the degree of importance to the Group in light 
of the Group’s Corporate Mission, Action Guidelines, and business strategies. Determine priority with a quantita-
tive assessment and then identify the key issues.

Have the Corporate Sustainability Committee periodically review the process for identifying key issues.Step 4:
Review

Solicit opinions from external experts and have the Corporate Sustainability Committee confirm the complete-
ness that all the particular items are covered and the validity of the identified issues.

Step 3: 
Validation

P
erio

d
ic review

s

Issues for which the Group’s business 
has an impact on society

Climate change responses (reduction of 
GHG emissions)

Air environment preservation

Water resource protection and control

Biodiversity

Industrial waste control

Efficient use of resources

Stable supply of industrial materials

Optimization of production

Safety and prevention

Product stewardship

Quality of products and services

Employment and human resources

Labor conditions

Stakeholder engagement

Issues for which the Group’s business 
can contribute to society

Low environmental footprint products 
and services

Development of renewable energy

Shift to urbanization and smart cities

Declining birth rate and aging population

Advancement of medical and pharma-
ceutical fields

Food problem

Underlying issues

Sustainable procurement

Compliance

Related issues

Key issues

Low

High

High

Im
p

o
rtan

ce to
 stakeh

o
ld

ers

Importance to
the Mitsui Chemicals Group

Key Issues (Materiality)
https://www.mitsuichem.com/en/sustainability/mci_sustainability/materiality/index.htm
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Blue Value™ and Rose Value™ — Visualizing Contributions to the 
Environment and Society

Our Blue Value™ and Rose Value™ help visualize the contribu-
tions our products and services make to the environment and 
society and enable us to share those values with stakeholders so 
we can realize a future cohesive society in harmony with the envi-
ronment and health and well-being in an aging society. We eval-
uate our products and services according to application using our 
own distinctive yardsticks: the Blue Value™ Index for assessing 
environmental impacts and the Rose Value™ Index for assessing 
improvement in quality of life (QOL). Those that make significant 
contributions to the environment or improvements to QOL are 
certified as Blue Value™ and Rose Value™ products, respectively.

Features
• �Visualization of contributions to the environment and soci-

ety through our business activities
• �Ability to check application-specific contributions at each 

stage of the product life cycle
• �Developing and providing products and services with high 

contribution value and sharing it with stakeholders
• �Aim to realize our ideal future society by building a Blue 

Value™ and Rose Value™ chain

Providing value through the Blue Value™ and Rose Value™ chain

Suppliers Mitsui Chemicals Group Customers Consumers Environment

Raw 
materials

End 
products

Manufac-
turing Products Process-

ing Use Disposal

Screening and certification process

Setting KPIs and initiatives for expanding Blue Value™ and Rose Value™ products

The person in charge of sales and marketing first assesses the 
potential Blue Value™ or Rose Value™ product or service using 
the aforementioned indices and then consults with and submits 
an application to the secretariat. The review board deliberates 
on the supporting evidence and certifies the product or service 
if it satisfies the criteria. The deliberations focus on whether the 
product’s concept and selling point are consistent with the area 

in which it offers contributions, as well as to check the level of 
those contributions. In order to certify products and services with 
an emphasis on appropriateness and objectivity, our assessment 
methods and screening criteria have been designed based on the 
advice of external experts. We also ask these experts to present 
their opinions prior to the review board regarding the candidate 
product’s level of contribution.

The sales ratio of Blue Value™ and Rose Value™ products is set 
as one of our KPIs in our 2025 Long-Term Business Plan. Growth 
in the sales ratio for certified products demonstrates that we are 
making steady progress toward achieving our ideal future soci-
ety. As an initiative for expanding sales, we have continued to 
reflect them into our long-term business strategies and invest-
ment plans. In fiscal 2019 we plan to incorporate Blue Value™, 
Rose Value™, and SDG perspectives into our Stage Gate System 

for the development of new products with the aim of recording 
steady growth from the initial stages of creating new businesses 
and new product ideas.
	 By bringing to bear Blue Value™ and Rose Value™ initiatives, 
we hope to offer solutions for the SDGs and other social chal-
lenges and contribute to the sustainable development of both the 
Group and society.

Person in charge Secretariat

ExpertsLCA*

Corporate 
Sustainability 

Committee

Review Board Certification
Application

check
Corporate Sustainability 

Division

Chemicals Safety Department

Chair:	� GM of RC & Quality Assurance 
Division

Members:	� GM of Corporate Sustainability 
Division

	 GMs of business divisions
	� GM of R&D Planning & 

Coordination Division
	� GM of Planning & Coordination 

Division, and others

Consultation/
application Submission

Advice
Report

* �Life cycle assessment: A technique to quantitatively assess environmental impacts associated with all the stages of a product’s life, such as development, manufacture, distribu-
tion, use, and disposal.

Blue Value™ only

17% 16%
14% 15%

17%

Target
30%

Blue ValueTM products
Sales ratio

14% 14% 13%

Target
30%

Rose ValueTM products
Sales ratio

2014(FY) (FY)2015 2016 2017 2018 2025
（LTBP target）

2016 2017 2018 2025
（LTBP target）

Confirmation of progress
Greater promotion

Blue Value™ / Rose Value™
https://www.mitsuichem.com/en/sustainability/mci_sustainability/contribution_value/
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Blue Value™ and Rose Value™ — Visualizing Contributions to the Environment and Society

Blue Value™ 
— Environmental contribution value
Many chemical products pass through various stages; for exam-
ple, they are manufactured and processed into end products and 
then disposed of after use. We visualize from a product steward-
ship perspective how we could reduce a product’s impact on the 
environment at each stage of its life cycle. By sharing this infor-
mation with various stakeholders, we believe we can further con-
tribute to environmental protection. With this idea in mind, we 
devised the Blue Value™ standard for environmentally friendly 
products in 2015 with the aim of achieving a future cohesive soci-
ety in harmony with the environment.
	 We use the Blue Value™ Index—our own LCA-based envi-
ronmental impact assessment index—to evaluate products and 
services depending on their application and certify them as Blue 

Value™ if they significantly contribute to protecting the environ-
ment in the following three categories: (1) reducing CO2; (2) con-
serving resources; and (3) coexisting with nature.
	 We carry out comparative assessments against market-stan-
dard products and our existing product lineup because a require-
ment for Blue Value™ certification is that not only must the 
product have a higher score in either of the evaluation catego-
ries, it must not be inferior in all categories for each stage of its 
life cycle. Moreover, the use of qualitative and semi-quantitative 
assessments means products can be easily evaluated, but when-
ever required, the department responsible for LCAs can tech-
nically and quantitatively assess the superiority of a product’s 
environmental contributions. 

MESSAGE  Expectations from Blue Value™ advisor
Environmental problems, social issues, and technological change are some of the challenges we 
now face as we enter an unchartered era of major transformation. I believe companies that can 
depict the future with an indefinite number of scenarios will adapt to a truly sustainable society 
and be the driving force behind it. By taking these problems into consideration, the Blue Value™ 
and Rose Value™ initiatives can be placed at the core of business and are groundbreaking at the 
forefront of ESG thanks to their active contributions to solving contemporary issues. I hope they 
will further grow in intensity, evolve, and demonstrate a new approach for Japanese companies.

Dr. Norihiro Itsubo
Professor, Faculty of Environmental Studies
Dean, Graduate School of Environmental and Information Studies
Tokyo City University

Contributions
Environmental impact assessment index — Blue Value™ Index

Evaluation categories Related assessment items

Reducing CO2 • �Reduction of GHG emis-
sions

• �Saving of energy, elec-
tricity, fuel

• �Lighter weight and vol-
ume reduction

• Long service life
• Natural energy sources
• Non-fossil raw materials
• Environmental cleanup

The above items are 
assessed for their contri-
butions to any of the eval-
uation categories

Conserving resources
• �3Rs, ease of sorting, con-

servation of resources

Coexisting with nature • �Ecosystem conservation 
(human health)

• �Ecosystem conservation 
(environmental organisms)

• �Prevention of environ-
mental contamination

*�GHG emission-related global warming substances, chemical substances harmful to ecosystems, and environmental pollutants are all substances for which characteri-
zation factors have been calculated in LIME2.

*�LIME2 (Life-cycle Impact assessment Method based on Endpoint modeling): Damage assessment-type life cycle environmental impact assessment method based on 
environmental conditions in Japan.

Earth blue

Instead of green, which is associated 
with nature and ecology, blue represents 
something much bigger—the earth.
It is also our corporate color and signifies 
harmony with the global environment and 
our contributions to society.

Environmental impact 
based on life cycle 

assessment (LIME2*)

Global warming

Consumption of 
resources and fuel

Waste

Environmental pollution, 
etc.

Reducing CO2

Conserving 
resources

Coexisting with 
nature

Blue Value™
contributionsEnvironmental 

impact
assessment 

index

Blue Value™ 
Index

Products and 
applications

Realizing a sustainable society

Cohesive society in harmony 
with the environment

Relevant SDGs
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Rose Value™ 
— QOL improvement contribution value
In 2016 we devised the Rose Value™ for products and services 
that help improve QOL in order to demonstrate the kind of value 
our Group can provide in aiming to realize health and well-being in 
an aging society in the future.
	 We use the Rose Value™ Index—our own QOL improvement 
assessment indicator developed in accordance with the targets of 
the SDGs and other needs of society—to evaluate products and 
services in consideration of sustainable procurement and certify 
them as Rose Value™ if they significantly contribute to improving 

QOL in the following three categories: (1) addressing declining 
birth rate and aging population; (2) extending healthy life expec-
tancy; and (3) addressing food problems.
	 We use qualitative and easy-to-understand evaluation criteria 
incorporating mainly universal design, universal health coverage, 
and food security perspectives to carefully examine whether the 
value of the functions and concept of a potential Rose Value™ 
product or service contributes to improving QOL in the evaluation 
categories.

MESSAGE  Expectations from Rose Value™ advisor
In the past, companies were allowed to think that they were contributing to society by developing 
technologies and manufacturing products that serve a useful purpose. However, a once-in-a-cen-
tury dramatic paradigm shift of seismic proportions is now taking place in numerous industries. 
I would like to see companies that engage exclusively in business-to-business operations once 
again reflect on what kinds of needs their own technologies, products, and services are address-
ing from the viewpoint of people’s livelihoods. Having an exceptional level of sensitivity regarding 
society serves as a source of competitiveness. I believe that assessing products and services with 
the Rose Value™ Index for improving QOL will provide an important clue on how to go about this.

Mr. Eiichiro Adachi
Counselor, Japan Research Institute, Limited

Contributions QOL improvement assessment index — Rose Value™ Index evaluation categories

Addressing declining
birth rate and
aging population

Improving products, buildings, and 
spaces in the lives of a broad range 
of people, including infants, children, 
expectant mothers, the elderly, and the 
disabled

• Improving comfort in people’s lives
• Enhancing nursing care

Extending healthy
life expectancy Extending independent living during 

which people can maintain their own 
physical and mental well-being without 
relying on daily or ongoing medical or 
nursing care

• Supporting physical well-being
• �Advancing medical care and 

pharmaceuticals
• �Preventing and taking action against 

infectious diseases
• �Improving accessibility to nutrition 

and water

Addressing food problems
Improving food productivity, consump-
tion without waste, and ensuring reli-
able, safe, and stable food supply

• Improving food productivity
• �Guaranteeing safe and stable food 

distribution
• Reducing food loss and food waste

La Vie en rose 

Days brimming with happiness and 
hope for people from all walks of life.

Challenges and needs of 
society (SDG targets)

Aging population
growth

High-quality healthcare 
and welfare

Stable food supply

Food loss and waste, etc.

Addressing declin-
ing birth rate and 
aging population

Extending healthy 
life expectancy

Addressing food 
problems

Rose Value™
contributionsQOL 

improvement 
assessment 

index

Rose Value™ 
Index

Products and 
applications

Realizing a sustainable society

Health and well-being in
an aging society

Relevant SDGs
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Climate Change and Problems with Plastic

Plastics are a material that brings convenience to our lives and 
have also helped solve challenges in society by, for example, 
reducing food loss and improving energy efficiency thanks to 
its advanced functionality. At the same time, its impact on cli-
mate change is considerable because the manufacturing of plas-
tic requires the use of fossil resources and energy, which emits 
large volumes of GHGs. Moreover, marine plastic waste has also 
become a major problem in recent times.
	 As a chemical company whose products and services are 
mainly based on plastics, the Mitsui Chemicals Group is keenly 

aware that climate change and the problems pertaining to plas-
tic waste are serious issues for society that must be earnestly 
addressed. To resolve these issues, a transition is needed from 
a so-called one-way economy of consuming resources and dis-
posing of products to a circular economy whereby resources 
are collected and products are recycled and reused. To that end, 
we believe an integrated approach is key to addressing climate 
change and the problems with plastic together. We intend to 
introduce an LCA perspective and work towards realizing a circu-
lar economy from both angles.

Plastic strategies

In addressing issues concerning plastic waste, the Mitsui 
Chemicals Group focuses on the following two strategies with a 
view to the entire value chain. By implementing these strategies 

and measures to address the problem of marine plastic waste, 
we aim to encourage the recycling of resources and promote a 
circular economy model.

Raw 
materials

Plastic products
Reduce

Plastics

Material recycling

Collection

C
o

n
su

m
p

ti
o

n

From linear economy to circular economy
Toward more recyclable products

Energy 
recovery

2. �Biomass 
strategy

1. �Recycling 
strategy

ReuseChemical recycling

• Bio-polyol (ECONYKOL™)

• Bio-polypropylene development

• Bio-polyurethane (STABiO™)

• Bio lens monomer (Do Green™)

Expanding biomass plastics
Addressing climate change and contributing to resource recycling

Recycle

Chemicals
Biomass

Fossil materials

Recycling of plastic resources1. Recycling strategy

Our Group has thus far provided highly functional plastic products 
that contribute to reducing weight and volume. In addition, we 
intend to actively participate in the recycling of used plastic. We 
aim to make use of open innovation by examining a broad range 

of possibilities, including the use of recycled raw materials, chem-
ical recycling of plastic from automotive scrap, and the design of 
products that consider recycling such as packaging made with a 
single material (to create mono-materials).

CountermeasuresIssues
Plastic problems

Problem of
marine plastic waste Microplastics

Infrastructure 
and systems

Reuse Lighter and/or 
Thinner 

Reduce Longer
operating life

Material Recyclable
• Mono-materials
• Change in materials
• �Processing 

technologies

Chemical

Energy recovery

Spontaneous decomposition
(compost, biodegradation)

Bioplastics

Biomass plastics

Renewable energyEducation and 
enlightenment

To circular economy loop

Regulations and self-
imposed restrictions

Recycle

Leakage Waste collection 
(cleanup)

Climate change

Paris Agreement

Preventing 
leakage

Reducing 
CO2

Circular economy

Bioplastics
Industry initiatives

Climate change 
measures in each 

country

Collection, 
sorting, and 
post-processing

Reduction in 
volume used



Car-to-car recycling with technology to turn auto scrap plastic into oil

In Japan, pursuant to the Automobile Recycling 
Law, metal is recovered from discarded automo-
biles and then waste plastic is recovered from 
shredder dust. Waste plastic accounts for around 
30% of shredder dust, most of which is used as 
a fuel. We are working together with automotive 
companies and the like to develop chemical recy-
cling technology so as to break down waste plas-
tic contained in shredder dust and turn it into chemical raw materials (feedstock recovery).

Pursuing ease of recycling with packaging materials made from 
mono-materials

Packaging film for food products poses the problem of being difficult to recycle 
because it is made by pasting together multiple materials with different character-
istics in order to create a highly functional product that is hard to break and suitable 
for long-term storage. We are currently developing and proposing films and sheets 
made from mono-materials with the aim of realizing an easier recycling process.
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Sights set on world’s first bio-polypropylene commercial application

There are significant hurdles associated with manufactur-
ing polypropylene from biomass materials and the tech-
nology has yet to be demonstrated on an industrial level. 
We are taking on the challenge of conducting world-first 
bio-polypropylene manufacturing trials by harnessing our 
new proprietary technology in which fermentation is a 
key reaction. By mainly using non-edible plants as the 
biomass raw material and converting the raw material 
residue to electricity, we aim to establish a sustainable 
technology that can be put to effective use.
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from sugar solution 
By-products (waste)

Su
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biomass plantation

Power supply

Biomass (waste)

Fertilizer for

Bio-
polypropylene
manufacturing

Biomass
plantation
(e.g. sorgo)

Biomass power
generation

Fertilizer
production

Reduction in
CO2 emissions (estimate)

4.2t
per ton of propylene

Manufacturing
process

World’s first 

IPA method

Targeted
commercialization

Year 2024

Production output
target

100KTA
in year 2030

IPA method of Mitsui Chemicals

Biomass materials

Bio IPA

Bio-propylene

Bio-polypropylene

Fermentation

Dehydration

New technology

New technology

Polymerization

World’s first

Expanding lineup of biomass plastic products2. Biomass strategy

Plastics are usually manufactured from petroleum, which means 
the consumption of fossil resources is inevitable. In compari-
son, biomass plastics made from plants—which grow by absorb-
ing carbon dioxide—can curtail carbon dioxide emitted during the 
manufacturing process. We believe that a shift to biomass mate-
rials encourages the recycling of resources, curbs the use of new 

fossil resources, and helps mitigate climate change.
	 We possess a number of biomass plastic products, including 
ECONYKOL™ (bio-polyol), STABiO™ (bio-polyurethane), and Do 
Green™ (bio lens monomer). We will strive to expand this lineup 
by mainly aiming to establish bio-polypropylene manufacturing 
technology.

Problem of marine plastic waste

The problem of marine plastic waste owes to plastics that have 
escaped the process for recycling resources. Stopping waste 
from flowing into rivers and the sea is of utmost importance. 
Given that waste management and collection requires the devel-
opment of social infrastructure—an issue much too big for com-
panies to address single-handedly—we aim to tackle the issue of 
marine plastic waste by participating in the Alliance to End Plastic 
Waste (AEPW) and other global alliances.

Signatories to the AEPW include global companies 
involved in the plastic value chain, such as P&G, Dow, 
and PepsiCo. The initiative aims to reduce plastic waste 
and contribute to a sustainable society by investing a total 
of US$1.5 billion over the next five years. As of July 2019, 
the AEPW has 39 corporations actively participating.

Polypropylene
• �Accounts for roughly 20% of global plastic production out-

put. Demand expected to grow up ahead.
• �Used for a broad range of applications, such as auto parts, 

consumer electronics, medical equipment, housing, and 
food packaging.

Chemical recycling

Automobiles

Wrecking and 
shredding

Auto parts

Waste plastic

Polypropylene

Liquefaction 
process

Crackers / 
polypropylene 

plants

Feedstock
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Climate change policy

We believe that priority must be afforded to solving climate 
change-related issues in order to realize an ideal future society.
	 The Mitsui Chemicals Group takes into account foreseeable 
opportunities and risks from a long-term perspective with a view 

to the year 2050 and tackles climate change issues with two 
approaches: mitigation and adaptation. With this in mind, we for-
mulated a policy on addressing climate change that covers the 
entire global value chain.

Climate Change and Problems with Plastic

Realizing a healthy and sound society resistant to climate change risks

Improved water security
Damage from wind, floods, and drought are expected to increase 
as unrelenting global warming causes major changes in climate 
phenomena. Population increase and economic development are 
also expected to trigger large-scale water shortages. Owing to 
the fact that a lot of water is required in the manufacturing of 
chemical products—for example, for heating/cooling and product 
purification—changes in the available water supply or its quality 
could have a negative impact on our business activities. Given 
that the Mitsui Chemicals Group maintains production sites in 
multiple regions around the world, we believe that it is necessary 
to conduct risk assessments and take measures in accordance 
with local conditions.

Realizing a low-carbon society by reducing GHG emissions

Low-carbon manufacturing
Chemical products use raw materials derived from fossil resources. 
And they are manufactured through a number of processes in which 
fossil fuels are converted to steam or electricity. For these reasons, 
the chemical industry emits far more GHGs than other industries. 
We believe we can contribute to greatly reducing GHG emissions 
in the manufacturing of our chemical products up ahead by imple-
menting various measures. For example, switching to low-carbon 
raw materials and fuels, cutting down on energy used in manufac-
turing by mainly using high-performance catalysts and installing ener-
gy-efficient equipment, and making active use of renewable energy.

GHG reduction contributions by products
Chemical products are used in a broad range of end products and 
can contribute to reducing GHGs at each stage of the product 

life cycle. Within the Mitsui Chemicals Group, we certify those 
products that are environmentally friendly as Blue Value™ prod-
ucts. One of the contribution categories used in our certifica-
tion assessment is CO2 reduction—we therefore evaluate how 
much a product reduces GHGs at each stage of its life cycle. 
Furthermore, the sales ratio of Blue Value™ products is one KPI 
set in our 2025 Long-Term Business Plan. We intend to accel-
erate the development of products that fully reflect our Blue 
Value™ perspectives.

Improved recycling technology
We think promoting the recycling of resources is also an import-
ant challenge both in terms of reducing the use of fossil fuels and 
lowering GHG emissions. As outlined in our plastic strategies, we 
intend to work on designing products that can be easily recycled.

Expanding lineup of adaptable products
It is expected that the rise in temperature increase associated 
with climate change will have a serious impact on health and 
the basic needs of humans, i.e., food, clothing, and shelter, as 
well as agricultural produce and ecosystems. Within the Mitsui 
Chemicals Group, we certify those products that help improve 
QOL, mainly in regards to extending healthy life expectancy and 
addressing food problems, as Rose Value™ products. As part of 
the certification process, we evaluate a product’s contributions to 
preventing infectious diseases or minimizing food loss, for exam-
ple. Moreover, the sales ratio of Rose Value™ products is one KPI 
set in our 2025 Long-Term Business Plan. We intend to acceler-
ate development and expand our lineup of adaptable products 
that fully reflect our Rose Value™ perspectives.

Contribution example of reduced GHG emissions throughout the life cycle of chemical products

Suppliers Mitsui Chemicals Group Customers Consumers Environment

Raw 
materials

End 
products

Manufac-
turing Products Process-

ing Use Disposal

• Use of bio-based raw materials
• Use of recycled raw materials

• ��Low-carbon fuel	 • ��Fewer processes; centralization
• ��Use of renewable energy	 • Installation of energy-efficient equipment

• ��Reduction of energy consumption
• ��Extended product life

• Waste reduction
• Improved recyclability

• ��Quality/performance 
reduces GHG emissions

• ��Weight saving
• Volume reduction

Life cycle stages

Realizing a low-carbon society by
reducing GHG emissions

Realizing a healthy and sound society resistant to
climate change risks

Mitigation Adaptation

Opportunities and risks Opportunities and risks

Low-carbon manufacturing

Strengthening of value chain resilience

Product-driven GHG reductions

Improved recycling technology

Maximization of value chain contributions

• Energy conservation and renewable energy
• Switching to alternative raw materials and fuels

Improving water security

• Risk management at production sites
• Effective use of water resources

Expanding lineup of adaptable products

• Rose Value™ products
• Disaster prevention/mitigation products

• Blue Value™ products

• Innovation in materials and design
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Climate Change and Problems with Plastic
https://www.mitsuichem.com/en/sustainability/mci_sustainability/climate_change/

Supporting the recommendations of the TCFD

In January 2019, the Mitsui Chemicals Group announced its 
support of the recommendations of the Task Force on Climate-
related Financial Disclosures (TCFD). As a chemical company, 
we intend to earnestly tackle climate change, deepen our under-
standing of the opportunities and risks that affect our businesses, 
and endeavor to actively disclose our initiatives. The recommen-
dations of the TCFD urge companies to disclose information 
about climate change-related governance, business strategies, 
risk management, indicators, and targets. In line with the TCFD’s 
recommendations, the Group will take the following approach.

The TCFD was set up by the Financial Stability Board. 
In June 2017 it announced recommendations calling for 
financial institutions, corporations, and governments to 
disclose the business impacts of climate change in their 
financial reports. According to the TCFD, 792 institutions 
worldwide have expressed their support for the recom-
mendations (as of June 2019).

1. Materiality assessment of climate change-related risks 
Qualitatively analyze risks and opportunities concerning climate 
change in our key businesses

2. Identification and determination of scope of scenarios
Forecast the changes in our business environment concerning 
climate change (scenarios) and examine their impacts

3.Quantification of business impacts
Quantify impacts on future business strategies and financials 
based on our scenarios and reflect them in strategies

4. Identification of potential measures
Determine the measures for climate change strategy and select 
management control indicators

As a first step, we assessed the impacts of climate change on the Group’s businesses. Going forward, we plan to use this information to 
perform a scenario analysis of the climate change impacts on our businesses and disclose the results.

1) Assessment scope
Selected key business domains in the Group susceptible to the impacts of climate change.
(1) Mobility, (2) Petrochemical feedstocks, (3) Agriculture, (4) Health Care, (5) Electricals and electronics, (6) Packaging, (7) Energy 
solutions

2) Assessment method
1. Identification of climate change risks and opportunities

Identify risks (both physical and those pertaining to the transition to a low-carbon society) and opportunities based on the informa-
tion disclosure framework presented in the TCFD’s Final Report.

2. Picking out major risks and opportunities
Pick out the particularly major risks and opportunities from those identified above in light of their potential occurrence and impact on 
business (human loss, financial impacts, etc.). When doing so, take into account factors such as trends in international discussions, 
the Group’s business regions, and case examples at other companies.

3) Assessment results

Materiality assessment of climate change-related risks

Assessment items Group-wide Specific business domains

Physical 
risks/
opportunities

Acute  Heightened risk of wind or rain damage (floods/storms)

Chronic
 Heightened risk of rising sea levels (high tides)
 Heightened risk of freshwater scarcity

  �Changes in arable land and development of new 
agricultural technology (3)

  Wider distribution of pests, weeds, and bacteria (3)
  �Wider prevalence of infectious diseases caused by 

climate change (4)

Risks and 
opportunities 
pertaining 
to shift to 
low-carbon 
society

Policies and 
legislation

 �Risks from introduction of, and increases in, carbon 
pricing
 Increase in litigation risks

  Impacts on business from shift to EVs (1) (5)
 �Restrictions on use of synthetic chemical fertiliz-
ers (3)

Technologies
  Uptake of renewable energies
  �Accelerated development of CCU technology and 

advanced recycling technology

 Uptake of biomass plastics (1) (2) (6)
 �Faster transition to low-GHG emissions technology 
(2) (5) (6)

Markets

  Spread of circular economy
  Transition to renewable raw materials
 Calls for manufacturers to use renewable energy
 �Higher prices for scarce resources due to shift to EVs 
and transition to a hydrogen-fueled low-carbon society

 �Decrease in auto manufacturing and sales volume 
owing mainly to increase in ridesharing and carshar-
ing (1)
 �Shortage of naphtha due to decline in oil production 
output (2)
  Increased demand for renewable energy (7)

Reputation  Increased investor approaches

(  denotes risks;  denotes opportunities)*External data used include IPCC RCP2.6, RCP8.5, IEA B2DS, and SDS. 
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At a Glance

*�Circle graph does not include 
Company-wide development and 
other costs, while the total of 
net sales and operating income 
includes. Accordingly, the per-
centages for each business seg-
ment do not add up to 100%.
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• Energy Solutions

• Medical Solutions

• Elastomers
Ethylene-Propylene Terpolymer (Mitsui EPT™), Alpha-olefin copolymer (TAFMER™),
Liquid polyolefinic oligomer (LUCANT™)

• Performance Compounds
Adhesive polyolefin (ADMER™), Thermoplastic olefinic elastomer (MILASTOMER™), 
Engineering plastics (ARLEN™)

• Overseas PP Compounds

• Performance Polymers
Specialty polyolefins (TPX™, APEL™, HI-ZEX MILLION™, MIPELON™, LUBMER™, 
RAYPROM™), Semiconductor manufacturing material (Mitsui PELLICLE™)

• Vision Care Materials
Ophthalmic lens materials (MR™, RAV7™), Photochromic lens materials (SunSensors™)

• Nonwovens
Nonwovens (SYNTEX™, TAFNEL™, AIRYFA™), Breathable films (ESPOIR™), 
Polyolefin synthetic pulp (SWP™, KEMIBESTO™)

• Personal Care Materials
Acrylamide, Medical materials

• Dental Materials
Restoratives (Charisma™, Venus™), Adhesives (Super-Bond™, iBOND™), Artificial teeth, 
Denture materials (PALA™), Impression (Flexitime™), 
Digital equipment / materials (cara™, DIMA™)

• Coatings & Engineering Materials
Polyurethane resins (TAKENATE™, TAKELAC™), Packaging adhesives, Polyolefin resins, 
Coating resins, Sealants for displays

• Packaging Films
Biaxially oriented polypropylene films, Cast polypropylene films,
Linear low-density polyethylene film (T.U.X™)

• Industrial Films & Sheets
Semiconductor and electronic components manufacturing process films (ICROS™ Tape), 
Foam sheets, Encapsulant sheets for solar cells (SOLAR ASCE™, SOLAR EVA™)

• Agrochemicals
Insecticides, Fungicides, Herbicides, Non-crop specialty chemicals, 
Pet medication ingredients

• Petrochemicals
Ethylene, Propylene, High density polyethylene, 
Metallocene linear low density polyethylene (EVOLUE™), Linear low density polyethylene, 
Polypropylene, Olefin polymerization catalysts

• Basic Chemicals
Phenol, Bisphenol A, Acetone, Isopropyl alcohol, Methyl isobutyl ketone, 
Purified terephthalic acid, PET resin, Ethylene oxide, Ethylene glycol, Hydroquinone, 
Meta/Para-cresol, Ammonia, Urea, Melamine, Semiconductor gas

• Polyurethane Raw Materials
TDI (COSMONATE™), MDI (COSMONATE™), PPG (ACTOCOL™, ECONYKOL™)

Main Products

• �Agricultural System Solutions

• IoT Solutions

• Corporate Venturing

Mobility

Health
Care

Food &
Packaging

Basic
Materials

Next 
Generation
Business
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Net sales Operating income

Sales by product Sales by region
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¥395.4bn
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Mobility

Koichiro Sato
Managing Executive Officer,
Business Sector President,
Mobility Business Sector

Challenges and needs of society
Owing to the globally growing awareness of the need for envi-
ronmental conservation, countries worldwide are tightening CO2 

emission regulations, while demand for better fuel efficiency in 
automobiles and the shift towards electric vehicles continues to 
progress year after year. In addition, the development of auton-
omous driving systems, car sharing, and other changes in the 
environment surrounding the mobility business are creating 
diversified new demand, particularly in the areas of automotive 
electronics and improving comfort.

Business vision
Mitsui Chemicals defines “mobility” as the various modes of 
transportation for both people and things, but most notably auto-
mobiles. In our Mobility domain, we aim to achieve sustainable 
growth in global markets by providing solutions to meet diversi-
fied needs and bolstering the competitiveness of each business.

Market analysis and strategies

Opportunities and risks

• Growing demand for lighter weight
• Growing demand for safety and comfort
• �Emergence of new demand mainly for electrification and 

autonomous driving systems
• Regional disparities in market growth

Strengths

• Extensive lineup of materials
• Advanced technological capabilities and product quality
• Customer base
• Technical support
• Ability to propose total solutions across the value chain

Basic strategies

• �Generate expanded business opportunities from lighter weight and battery material trends
• �Generate business opportunities from the integration of vehicles and ICT
• �Beef up proposal capabilities by anticipating demand from the initial stages of automotive development

In addition to globally expanding 
our existing businesses, we aim to 
quickly seize on new market opportu-
nities that arise from developments 
in CASE and growth in ICT-related 
markets. We will continue to develop 
new customer-oriented products and 
businesses and propose solutions 
centering on our technological know-
how in materials.

Value chain

Resources of the Mitsui Chemicals Group

Delivering customer value Delivering consumer value

Polymers Compounds Parts and materials Painting and assembly Final product

Materials manufacturers Parts manufacturers Automobile manufacturers Consumers

Extensive product lineup and 
technological know-how
• Polymer science
• Composite materials
• Molding technology

Lighter weight
Improved strength

More efficient and simplified 
manufacturing process

Low fuel consumption
Safety and reliability

Comfort
Environmentally friendly

Solutions
Proposing functionality 
rather than materials

Needs

We aim to deliver customer and consumer value by harnessing the Group’s various materials, components, molding technology, and development support capabilities to 
provide real and tangible solutions.
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1  In-vehicle camera lenses

APEL™

• Compact
• Safe and reliable
• Lightweight

Electrification and automation

Lighter weight Lighter weight

3  Exterior materials

Glass fiber-reinforced plastic 
materials/carbon fiber-
reinforced plastic materials, etc. 
MOSDIO™*1

• Lightweight
• Improved fuel efficiency

Comfort and safety

Lighter weight

4  Fuel tanks

Adhesive polyolefin 
ADMER™

• Lightweight 
• �Higher degree of freedom 

in design

Lighter weight

2  Bumpers

PP compounds
PRIME POLYPRO™
TAFMER™

• Lightweight
• Impact resistant
• Designable

Global	 No.2 

Asia	 No.1
Global	 No.1

Function-specific lineup of strategic products
Plastics account for roughly 100 kilograms, or 10%, of the 
total weight of an automobile and makes up 70% of the 
30,000 parts used. The Mitsui Chemicals Group meets var-
ious social needs with highly functional polymeric materials 
and performance compounds—areas that we excel in.

Customer needs identified from market trends

Macro trends

Trends and customer needs in mobility industry

Environmental regulationsTechnological innovationLifestyle changesEconomic growth in emerging countries

Improved fuel efficiency

Lighter weight

Comfort and safety

Rising income levels
Growing preference for 

high-end goods
Car sharing Autonomous driving

Improved cruising range

Improved fuel efficiency

Improved fuel efficiency

9  Parts around engine

ARLEN™

• Improved fuel efficiency

8  Gear lubricant oil additives

Liquid polyolefin oligomer 
LUCANT™

• Improved fuel efficiency
• Longer service life

*1 Can be used for rear-door and hood interior panels.
*2 �Aiming for commercialization for automobiles by 2020. Integral injection molding eliminates processes that use screws or welding. It provides the same 

strength as metal parts at half the weight by combining polypropylene (PP) resin with aluminum.

Comfort and safety

Lighter weight

Comfort and safety

Comfort and safety

Lighter weight

5  �Metal/resin integral molding parts

POLYMETAC™*2

• Lightweight and compact 
• �Fewer production processes 

and lower assembly costs
• �Improved design

6  Interior surfaces

Thermoplastic elastomers 
MILASTOMER™

• Low density, lightweight
• Designable
• Recyclable

7  Door sealing

Ethylene-Propylene 
Terpolymer Mitsui EPT™

• Good processability
• �Good weatherability and 

heat resistant
• �Good sound absorption/

insulation

Asia	 No.2 Asia	 No.4Global	 No.3 

Asia	 No.2

2

9

5

1

6

8

7

4

3

Electrification and automation
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Environmental regulations and rise of EVs are making vehicles increasingly lighter 

Reducing the amount of CO2 emissions in order to prevent 
global warming is a challenge for the automotive industry 
today.
	 This challenge to reduce emissions lies in realizing lower 
fuel consumption in vehicles, therefore as a countermeasure, 
automakers are making car bodies lighter. At the same time, 
powertrain electrification and the shift to electric vehicles are 
also making cars lighter so as to improve cruising range. 
	 With the outlook for even stricter regulations to be enforced 
worldwide between 2020 and 2025 on fuel efficiency and 

TAFMER™

Share Market 
growth rate*

Global No.2 6%

Asia No.1 9%

Japan No.1 —

*FY2016-2019

PP compound

Share Market 
growth rate*

Global No.2 (21%) —

Asia No.1 —

Japan No.1 —

*FY2016-2019

Increased
capacity in
Thailand

+13kt/year
(June 2020)

Increased
capacity in

India
+12kt/year
(Oct 2020)

New base in
the Netherlands

30kt/year
(June 2020)

Europe

50kt/year

China

3.5kt/year
(Sept 2020)

Japan

3.5kt/year
(Sept 2019)

U.S.

3.5kt/year
(Oct 2019)

Asia

630kt/year

U.S.

440kt/year

PP compound bases

GFPP bases

PP compound 
production base

PP compound 
R&D base

China

Japan Ohio
Tennessee

Brazil

Mexico

exhaust gas that contains CO2, it is estimated that CO2 emis-
sions will need to be reduced by around 40% compared to 
2016 levels in order to comply with the tougher restrictions. 
If we were to achieve this target by making cars lighter, a fur-
ther reduction in total vehicle weight of around 25% would be 
required.
	 Many automobile manufacturers are now making the 
switch from traditional metal parts and components to those 
made from plastics as a means to realize more lightweight 
vehicles, and this shift is expected to further accelerate.

Challenges of automotive industry and lighter car bodies
Growth in polypropylene (PP) compounds and other automotive parts

Pursuing top global share

Growth and expansion of PP compound business

The Group’s automotive material PP compound business boasts 
the second-highest global share and the top share in Asia. We 
also maintain a leading share among Japanese automakers, while 
in North America we already hold a share of roughly 30%, having 
received a high evaluation and built a solid track record supplying 
compounds to US auto manufacturers.
	 PP compounds are materials that enhance impact resistance 
and rigidity because other polymers and additional agents, such 
as elastomers and talc, are added to polypropylene, which has 
superior moldability. Currently, around 50–60 kilograms of PP 
compounds per car are used to make components such as bum-
pers and instrument panels. 
	 Our superior proprietary compound recipes and the know-how 
to design the resins, or in other words the raw materials, have 

enabled the Group to provide high-quality products meeting var-
ious customer needs. And that is why we have been rated very 
favorably. Moreover, we have built a system capable of quickly 
accommodating the global strategies of automobile manufactur-
ers, by maintaining eight production bases and five R&D bases in 
key regions around the world. In the past our share of the mar-
ket in Europe was not high; we, therefore, have taken steps to 
expand our business there by setting up a development base. As 
we expect this to boost sales in Europe going forward, we estab-
lished an in-house production base in the Netherlands with the 
aim of commencing operations in 2020.
	 We also plan to beef up our production bases in Thailand and 
India in order to tap demand in the growing Asian market. Up 
ahead, we aim to further consolidate our business drawing on our 
technological superiority and supply capabilities. To this end, we 
will make sure to identify growth markets and augment produc-
tion capacity in order to meet demand growth and increased mar-
ket share.

Further initiatives for metal alternatives

Glass fiber-reinforced polypropylene

Glass fiber-reinforced polypropylene (GFPP) is a compound mate-
rial made by impregnating fibrous glass with polypropylene resin. 
It is lightweight and strikes the right balance between rigidity and 
impact resistance because of the long glass fibers, and increas-
ingly adopted for use in the rear doors of cars as a replacement 
for metal. Our GFPP also has a nice appearance, which helps 
shorten the manufacturing process at automakers because it can 
be used without being coated. 
	 Given the growth in global demand for lighter materials, auto 
manufacturers are examining whether they can use other materi-
als to replace the metal components in other parts of the car, like 
sliding doors, on top of rear doors. Fiber-reinforced resins are cer-
tainly a strong candidate. GFPP in particular costs less to make 
than carbon fiber, which is 
why demand is expected to 
increase in the future. We 
intend to establish a solid 
three-pronged global produc-
tion framework consisting of 
bases in Japan, China, and 
the US that will enable us to 
meet growing demand for 
lightweight materials globally.

Mobility
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Fiscal 2025 target

Operating income of ¥70 bn + new businesses
Expanding production capacity for many of the Group’s products in the next business term is essential for 
translating growing demand into business opportunities. Accordingly, we will steadily increase production 
capacity in line with the business plan for each product. In addition to expanding and reinforcing existing 
businesses, we will endeavor to promote the mobility strategy across the entire Group and strengthen our 
ability to provide solutions to customers.

Growth strategies

• �Continually bring to market new differentiated products 
and raise production capacity as part of ongoing efforts to 
expand existing businesses.

• �Work to enhance our product portfolio in the Mobility busi-
ness by addressing demand for multi-material solutions, 
establishing technology for fiber-reinforced composite 
materials, and expanding customer support functions.

• �Anticipate customer needs by harnessing open innovation 
and collaboration with the aim of promoting new business 
development in new markets and facilitating a shift towards 
downstream processes and services.

Investment strategies

• �For polymer product lines that require large-scale produc-
tion facilities, we will aggressively invest in further strength-
ening our competitive advantage by expanding production 
capacity in optimal locations to meet global demand growth.

• �For compound products, we will continue to strengthen our 
customer-oriented global supply system by expanding pro-
duction capacity in a timely manner to ensure local produc-
tion for local consumption.

Fiscal 2019 plan

We anticipate firm sales growth for our major products 
driven by an increase in auto production volume and growth 
in ICT-related markets. In our existing businesses, we plan to 
raise production capacity at the appropriate timing to man-
age growing demand. In addition to capacity expansion for 
PP compounds, we are undertaking other large-scale invest-
ment projects this year, including new production facilities for 

the EUV pellicle business to keep up with developments in 
next-generation semiconductors, and capacity expansion for 
the LUCANT™ business, which has minimal impact on the 
environment (reduces fuel consumption and extends service 
life). We intend to accelerate the development of new prod-
ucts and work on creating new businesses with the aim of 
executing mobility business strategies for long-term growth.

Blue Value™ and Rose Value™ products in the Mobility domain

Reduces CO2

Conserves resources

Reduces CO2

Reduces CO2

Reduces CO2

Bumper and instrument 
panel materials

PP compounds
Reduce GHG emissions by 
roughly 13% by not requir-
ing painting processes.

Adhesive polyolefin for 
plastic fuel tanks

ADMER™
Lightens fuel tanks by 10–30% 
with the use of plastic instead 
of metal.

Bumper and instrument 
panel materials

TAFMER™
Reduces energy consumption 
during polymer manufacturing 
with the use of high-productiv-
ity catalysts.

Lubricant additive for 
automobiles

LUCANT™
Improves fuel efficiency by 
reducing temperature depen-
dence of lubricant’s viscosity and 
maintaining appropriate viscosity.
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Health Care

Challenges of society
Interest in health is growing due to the declining birth rate and 
aging population in developed countries and economic growth in 
emerging countries. Customer values have diversified and indi-
vidual preferences and needs are expanding. Customers now 
look for “care” depending on their lifestyles.

Business vision
We aim to establish new growth platforms for the Mitsui 
Chemicals Group by leveraging chemical innovation to create and 
provide products and services that help improve QOL.

Market analysis and strategies

Specific strategies

Vision care
• �Further expand busi-

ness by developing and 
bringing new products 
to market

Nonwovens
• �Maximize production and sales through 

strategic alliances with customers
• �Steadily execute production capacity 

expansion plans

Dental materials
• �Expand business by 

launching products that 
support and promote 
digitalization

Opportunities and risks

Vision care
• Global market growth
Nonwovens
• �Growing export market for premium baby diapers and sta-

ble growth in domestic adult diaper market
• �Intensifying competition in East and Southeast Asia
Dental materials
• �Rapid changes in trends (shift towards smaller instruments) 

and expansion in digital dental technology market

Strengths

Vision care
• Broad product lineup
Nonwovens
• �Consistent technological capabilities, from base resins to 

processing
• �Strong customer base
Dental materials
• �Global brand power
• �R&D capabilities ranging from raw materials to dental 

materials

Basic strategies

• Expand existing businesses by steadily tapping growth demand
• Step up development of new products and businesses that help improve QOL
• Harness M&As and alliances to expand and reinforce business platforms

Market growth rate for key products

Vision care Ophthalmic lens materials (MR™, RAV7™) 4%

Nonwovens SYNTEX™ (high-performance spunbonded nonwoven hygiene materials) 6%

*FY2014-2018

Osamu Hashimoto
Member of the Board, Senior 
Managing Executive Officer
Business Sector President, 
Health Care Business Sector

By strengthening and expand-
ing our existing businesses and 
establishing new growth plat-
forms through peripheral and 
downstream business develop-
ment, we aim to provide products 
and services that improve quality 
of life (QOL) to achieve health and 
well-being in an aging society.
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Vision care
A world leader in ophthalmic lens materials
The Mitsui Chemicals Group develops plastic ophthalmic lens 
materials, ranging from low refractive to high refractive indices. 
In particular, our MR™ brand of high refractive lens material is 
rated highly as a lens brand of its own by contributing to the 
superb quality of the world’s top brand lenses.
	 In addition, our US affiliates SDC Technologies and FSI 
Coating Technologies have respectively developed and now 

globally distribute high-quality abrasion-resistant coatings and 
high-quality anti-fog coatings.
	 The Group’s role now is to not only offer a full lineup of lens 
materials for vision correction but also provide solutions to 
address health, comfort, and other diverse needs of society.
	 Armed with such consumer benefits, we are taking steps to 
further expand our global number one market share.

Materials
technology

Lens
manufacturers

Opticians Consumers

*Quality of View is a scale for measuring a person’s quality of life and level of satisfaction regarding their eyes, such as optimization of vision, vision comfort, eye health
 management, and disease prevention.

Creating a business model to deliver Quality of View*

Gathering feedback

Proposing value

Commercial-
ization

Value chain

Coating materials

High-quality coating materials
that add value to lenses

Excellent optical
performance standard; 
thin and light, even
for strong prescriptions

Chinese standard at
reasonable prices

Abrasion-resistant
coatings

Anti-fog coatings

1.74

1.67

1.60

Polycarbonate

1.56

1.50

Glass

Lens materials

Global standard with 
excellent optical
performance

High refractive
index

Medium
refractive index

Low refractive
index

Expanding market share in all segments from mass market to high end 
with lens materials in a wide range of refractive indices

Global market share 45%

Developing new technologies to meet diversifying social needs, including eye health and aging

Pursuing eye health, comfort, and harmony with the environment by controlling light

Light wavelength control technology that cuts harmful UV light 
and some high-energy visible light

Photochromic technology that controls the light passing through 
the lens by adjusting the color depending on the amount of 
ultraviolet light

Light wavelength control technology that protects the eyes 
from glare and supports brightness and contrast sensitivity

Polarization technology that enables clearer sight by eliminating 
diffuse reflections

Sights set on full-scale expansion of TouchFocus™ next-generation e-eyewear for near 
and far vision. Whenever you want, just one touch.

Since launching in February 2018, TouchFocus™ eyewear has 
been favorably received by consumers for its innovative func-
tionality, sophisticated design, and custom-made fit. In October 
of the same year it was selected for the prestigious Good 
Design Award Best 100, and sales have steadily increased at 
partner department stores and retailers. The product lineup was 
expanded to include frames with a metal front and additional 
frame designs for women. Color lenses became available in the 
spring, and photochromic lenses in the summer. TouchFocus™ 
eyewear is planned to be offered at 100 stores nationwide by 
the end of fiscal 2019 . There are plans to offer TouchFocus™ in 
the two major markets of China and the US in the near future, 
with a consolidated sales target of 50,000 units by 2022.

TOPICS

MRTM

https://www.mitsuichem.com/en/special/mr/
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Nonwovens
High-performance nonwovens for hygiene materials boasting excellent softness 
and stretchability

Dental materials
Accelerating our contribution to digitalization in dental care

In East and Southeast Asia, the use of disposable diapers has 
become more widespread and high-quality, high-performance pre-
mium disposable diapers are growing in popularity. In addition to such 
basic features as being leakproof, breathable, and unlikely to cause 
diaper rash, consumers now demand a higher level of functionality, 
including comfort and a snug fit. The Mitsui Chemicals Group has 
applied its technology to satisfy these consumer needs by develop-
ing highly acclaimed nonwoven fabric that demonstrates excellent 
softness and stretchability. We further boosted our supply capac-
ity in fiscal 2018 mainly by installing new equipment for high-per-
formance nonwoven at two bases in Japan, raising production to 
15kt per year at Nagoya Works and 6kt at Sunrex Industry Co., Ltd. 

Dental materials are increasingly being made out of plastics, 
rather than metal. By bringing to bear our development capabili-
ties in materials, we aim to contribute to improving quality of life 
in the field of dental care with innovative products and services 
needed by dental surgeons and laboratories alike.
	 Digitalization in dental care is advancing, driven by the use of 
3D printers. It is particularly important that safe and high-perfor-
mance materials are used with 3D printers.
	 We have thus far accumulated assets in this business through 

We are fully leveraging our three Asian production bases in Japan, 
Thailand, and China to ensure a reliable supply of high-performance 
nonwovens to meet growing demand. Moreover, we are stepping 
up efforts to expand this business into new domains, for example 
medical applications, in a bid to maintain and expand our top-level 
share of the Asian market for high-performance nonwovens.

AIRYFA™—new high-strength soft nonwoven
Our new product AIRYFA™ is a high-performance nonwoven 
that is gentle on the skin, providing both softness and strength. 
By capitalizing on our proprietary polyolefin spinning technology 
to produce a hollow and thin fiber structure, this textile is char-
acterized by a superior level of softness and even texture. We 
have thus been able to develop a nonwoven fabric that offers 
both softness and strength, a feat conventional technology was 
hitherto unable to achieve. After bringing the production base in 
China online in February 2019, we now have a tripolar Asian sup-
ply framework in place spanning Japan, Thailand, and China.

acquisitions and investments—we gained a global business plat-
form from Kulzer and acquired digital technology platforms from 
DENTCA and B9Creations. In addition, with the aim of further 
deploying AI technology in the field of dental care, we are cur-
rently undertaking joint development of computer-aided design 
(CAD) software with 9DW Corp.
	 We intend to bring together all of these capabilities within the 
Group in an effort to expand our global dental materials business.

HighLow

High

Uniformity

S
tren

g
th
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High orientation

AIRYFA™

Conventional
products

History of dental materials

1981
2013

2014
2018

• �Established Sun Medical 
Co., Ltd.
Established dominant position 
in domestic dental industry with 
development of Super-Bond™ 
over 30-year period

• �Acquired dental materials business of 
world’s sixth largest dental materials 
maker Heraeus Kulzer GmbH*
Acquired global business platform
(sales offices in 22 countries)
*Now Kulzer GmbH

• �Invested in US-based DENTCA, Inc., 
a company possessing digital-based 
denture manufacturing technology

Laid groundwork for
digital dental techniques

• �Acquired Italy’s EGS srl, a 
company possessing scanner 
and CAD software

Laid groundwork for
digital dental techniques

• �Invested in US-based 3D printer 
venture firm B9Creations, LLC.

Laid groundwork for
digital dental techniques

• �Commenced joint development 
of CAD software with 9DW 
Corp., a company possessing AI 
technology

Laid groundwork for
digital dental techniques

Value chain and market structure

Raw materials

Polypropylene

Processing

Nonwoven fabric

Products

Diapers

Application of nonwoven fabric in super premium disposable diapers

: denotes MCI’s nonwovens

Tape type Pants type

Top sheet

3D gathers

Soft nonwoven fabric

Back sheet

Soft nonwoven fabric

Waist gathers   Stretchable nonwoven fabric
Spunbonded nonwoven fabric + elastic

Spunbonded nonwoven fabric,
Air-through nonwoven fabric

Fastening tape

Health Care
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Fiscal 2025 target

Operating income of ¥45 bn + new businesses
We expect the growth investments undertaken in each business thus far to gradually start contributing to 
earnings. In addition to strengthening existing businesses and expanding overseas, we are enhancing our 
ability to provide healthcare solutions by expanding our lineup of new products, as well as bolstering and 
furthering the creation of new businesses.

Growth strategies

• �To meet diversifying needs as a global leader in the vision 
care materials field, we will continue working to expand 
and strengthen our business platform by stepping up oper-
ations in peripheral businesses.

• �In nonwovens, we will continue expanding and strengthen-
ing business by developing high-performance products and 
pursuing global development.

• �In dental materials, we will continue working to strengthen 
our growth platform by better meeting local needs and tap-
ping into digitalization and other new markets.

Investment strategies

• �In vision care materials, we will continue considering 
growth investments, including production capacity expan-
sion to accommodate growth in customer needs.

• �In nonwovens, we will expand production capacity for 
high-performance nonwovens with an eye to the burgeon-
ing Asian market. We will also continue considering invest-
ments in the applications of growing industrial filters and 
medical materials.

• �In the dental materials field, we will continue to actively pro-
vide digital workflow solutions by focusing investments in 
markets that are taking off, including 3D printers and ink.

Fiscal 2019 plan

In vision care materials, we intend to accurately respond to 
demand growth in ophthalmic lens materials and develop 
new technologies and products to meet increasingly diversi-
fied needs such as eye health.
	 In nonwovens, we will accurately respond to growth in 

demand for premium disposable diapers mainly in Asia and 
work on expanding AIRYFA™ and other new products.
	 In dental materials, we will continue to beef up our devel-
opment of total solutions for digital workflow in addition to 
executing region-specific sales plans.

Blue Value™ and Rose Value™ products in the Health Care domain

Extends healthy life expectancy

Addresses declining birth rate and 
aging population

Conserves resources

Conserves resources

Reduces CO2

Reduces CO2

Extends healthy life expectancy
Addresses declining birth rate and 

aging population

Ophthalmic lens materials

MR™
Contributes to vision correction, eye 
health, and comfort.

Nonwoven fabric for disposable 
diapers

SYNTEX™
Pursues the basics of being leakproof, 
breathable, and unlikely to cause dia-
per rash, as well as a higher level of 
functionality, such as comfort and a 
snug fit.

Ophthalmic lens materials

Do Green™ MR-174™
Reduces fossil resource consumption 
with use of bio-based raw materials.

Nonwoven fabric for disposable 
diapers

AIRYFA™
Reduces amount of waste by using 
a fiber structure that offers both soft-
ness and strength. Disposable diapers 
support comfortable living for babies 
and their carers.
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Coating &
engineering

materials
35%

Japan
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42%
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 (Outlook)
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182.5

195.8 199.4
210

20.3 20.6
19.9
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Net sales Operating income
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Food & 
Packaging

Challenges and needs of society
Rapid growth in the world’s population has led to severe short-
ages of food, making it imperative that measures are taken to sta-
bilize agricultural production and address the issues of food loss 
and waste. In addition, food safety and security and reducing our 
environmental footprint are now matters of urgency for society.

Business vision
We aim to drive sustained growth throughout the Mitsui Chemicals 
Group by maximizing the use of resources within and outside the 
Group to establish a next-generation pipeline platform and acceler-
ate our expansion overseas and in new business domains.

Takayoshi Shimogori
Member of the Board, Senior 
Managing Executive Officer
Business Sector President, Food & 
Packaging Business Sector

By bringing together the collective 
strengths of the Mitsui Chemicals 
Group, we continue to push ahead 
with the development of businesses 
that help solve challenges faced by 
society; namely, the need to boost 
food production, reduce food loss, 
and ensure food safety and security.

Market share and market growth rate of key products

Agrochemicals
Market share Market growth rate

Global — 3.6%*1

Asia — 3.2%*1

Japan 10% 0.1%*2

*1 FY2017-2022 *2 FY2018

T.U.X™ high-performance sealant film
Market share Market growth rate*

Japan 34% (Japan No. 1) 1%

*FY2018

Market analysis and strategies

Basic strategies

• Focus on high-growth and high added-value markets
• Expand businesses by tapping growing demand overseas, mainly in Asia
• Develop core products through collaboration among business divisions

Opportunities and risks

• Growing needs to address environmental issues
• �Need to boost food production and reduce food loss to 

counter long-term population growth
• �Growth in demand for packaging materials driven by rising 

living standards in Asia and advancement of food process-
ing sector

• �Shrinking domestic demand and uncertainty surrounding 
China and emerging economies

Strengths

• Lineup of high-performance products
• R&D capabilities in designing and creating new materials
• �Development know-how leveraging collaboration with part-

ner firms
• Healthy relationships with important customers

Specific strategies

Agrochemicals
• �Reinforce our capacity to 

pioneer global markets by 
establishing a market-in 
framework

Coating & engineering materials
• �Focus on high added-value 

markets
• �Develop and launch high-per-

formance products
• �Develop next-generation core 

products

Functional films & sheets
• �Bolster our ability to open up overseas packag-

ing markets
• �Strengthen our industrial film supply 

capabilities
• �Beef up our development of high-performance 

and environmentally friendly products
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Coating & engineering materials
Extensive lineup of products and 
a broad range of applications

To better meet the varied needs of consumers, we are devel-
oping a wide range of applications for products in our exten-
sive lineup of coating and engineering materials, including 
TAKENATE™, TAKELAC™, and CHEMIPEARL™, all of which are 

Functional films and sheets (Packaging films field)
High-performance food packaging 
materials and expansion in Asia
The packaging materials market in Asia has considerable growth 
potential thanks to rising living standards and the development of 
the region as a food processing and export hub. The Group has a 
lead on our rivals with production bases in Asia for products like 
T.U.X™, a high-performance sealant film, and EVOLUE™, one of 
the raw materials used in the former’s production for which we 
boast a roughly 60% market share in Asia. Other products include 
multi-material adhesives to meticulously meet consumer needs; 
namely, TAKENATE™, TAKELAC™, and ADMER™. We continue 
to expand our operations in Asia through cross-organizational 
marketing and technical support.

Functional films and sheets (Industrial films and 
sheets field)
Strengths of ICROS™ Tape and further 
expansion
ICROS™ Tape is a surface protection tape used during silicon 
wafer backgrinding in the post-fabrication process for semicon-
ductors. Of the major competitive manufacturers of this kind of 
tape, we are the only company that manufactures and processes 
resins, and we possess the largest share of the global market 
because we differentiate ourselves with resin design and film 
forming technologies.

Establishment of new plant
Demand for semiconductors is expanding on the back of IoT and 
other technological innovations. Accordingly, we are setting up 
a new plant for ICROS™ Tape in Taiwan where the demand is 
stronger than anywhere else in the world. We aim to increase our 
supply capacity by 50%, build a stable supply system, and further 
expand business.

TOPICS

AdFresh™ — special packaging material for 
long-term storage and imports/exports

AdFresh™ is a packaging film manufactured using our special 
polymers. Although the film is processed without micropores, 
it functions as a modified atmosphere film to suppress the 
respiration of fruits and vegetables based on its gas perme-
ability, thus keeping produce fresh over long storage periods.
	 The effectiveness* of the product is currently being 
tested at sites where fruit is harvested and distributed. And 
with the aim of application for long-term storage and export, 
we are also taking part in consortiums for leading-edge and 
regional strategy projects implemented under the govern-
ment’s scheme for subsidizing innovative technology devel-
opment and emergency deployment businesses.
	 We are currently engaged in marketing activities with the 
aim of bringing this product to market in fiscal 2019.
*�AdFresh™ has demonstrated long-term storage of grapes (Shine Muscat 
variety; roughly 5 months), persimmons (Fuyu; 4.5 months; see case 
example), and apples (Orin; 3 months). We have also confirmed that the 
product helps control anthracnose (dark spots on skin) in mangoes (Irwin).

After 4.5 months
Appearance and eating quality almost 

the same as when harvested

Fuyu persimmons stored in refrigerator (at 0°C for roughly 4.5 months)

After two months
Soft flesh, discoloration, and rot

Unpackaged

used in high-performance packaging materials. We were the first 
in the world to develop the specialty isocyanates FORTIMO™ and 
STABiO™. These products join a lineup that includes meta-xy-
lylene diisocyanate (XDI), a high-performance product that enjoys 
wide market recognition. We are developing a broad range of 
applications for this lineup of specialty isocyanates as well as 
derivative products that incorporate them. All our products cre-
ate new customer value and are expected to help strengthen and 
expand the coating & engineering materials business.

Sealants
Example: Sealing materials for construction

Elastomers
Example: Injection-molded items

Coatings
Example: Car paint

• STABiO™
• U-VAN™

• TAKENATE™/TAKELAC™
• CHEMIPEARL™ 

• TAKENATE™
• HIPRENE™

• FORTIMO™
• TAKENATE™

Adhesives
Example: Packaging materials

Competitors ICROS™ Tape

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018(FY)
0

100
(%)

Global share of ICROS™ Tape

What is ICROS™ Tape?
Application of ICROS™ Tape

Grinding of
wafer underside

Removal of tape
Dicing

Substrate

Bonding

Packaging
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High-performance packaging, packaging materials

Agrochemicals
High-performance agrochemicals to help ensure stable food supply

Agricultural production will likely continue to expand over the 
medium- to long-term due to growing demand for produce, 
driven by global population increase and economic development 
in emerging countries. In order to bring to market agrochemical 
products that boost crop yields in line with local needs, Mitsui 
Chemicals Agro, Inc. is working to strengthen its overseas busi-
ness platforms, especially in Asia.
	 For the insecticide dinotefuran and other active ingredients, 
the company is drawing on the expertise of its partners to develop 
agrochemical products and accelerate registration and market 
launch in more countries. For next generation active ingredi-
ents, we are currently developing the insecticide TENEBENAL™ 
(name of substance: broflanilide) together with a major global 
manufacturer in response to demand for use in agricultural and 

non-crop settings. We aim to successively release products with 
TENEBENAL™ as the active ingredient starting in 2019. Owing 
to the active ingredient’s novel mode of action, these new prod-
ucts will contribute to controlling chemical-resistant pests. We 
are also making preparations to bring to market products contain-
ing the herbicide CYRA™ as the active ingredient.
	 Mitsui Chemicals Agro, Inc. possesses advanced agrochem-
ical discovery technologies backed by a long track record of 
molecular design, organic synthesis, and biological evaluation. 
As it continues to discover highly unique active ingredients and 
develop agrochemical products, the company will help to enhance 
comfort in people’s lives by improving crop yields, extending life 
expectancies by preventing infectious diseases, and improving 
housing amenity.

Fungicide — Tolprocarb
Mitsui Chemicals Agro, Inc. received
Society Award for Achievement from

Pesticide Science Society of Japan
In 2015 we launched domestic sales of tolprocarb, a pad-
dy-field rice fungicide developed by Mitsui Chemicals Agro, 
Inc. Tolprocarb was rated highly for its novel mode of action 
against rice blast disease and the company was awarded the 
2019 Society Award for Achievement (technology category) 
from the Pesticide Science Society of Japan. In fiscal 2019 
we have expanded the number of product formulations con-
taining tolprocarb to 17.

Herbicide — CYRA™
Joint development with ZEN-NOH

Mitsui Chemicals Agro, Inc. in collaboration with the National 
Federation of Agricultural Cooperative Associations (ZEN-NOH), 
is stepping up development of the active ingredient CYRA™ 
(name of substance: cyclopyrimorate), a herbicide for pad-
dy-field rice discovered by the company. In 2018 it submitted 
an agrochemical registration application for mixed formulations 
containing CYRA™ as the active ingredient. CYRA™ is effective 
against broadleaf and Cyperaceae weeds found extensively in 
paddy fields and the company aims to harness its novel mech-
anism of action and contribute to boosting rice yields by devel-
oping further products that meet the needs of farmers.

Domestic market for paddy-field rice fungicides: ¥40bn

Domestic market for paddy-field rice herbicides: ¥70bn

Food & Packaging

Polymer raw materials

Raw materials Polymers Films and bottles

Convenience, reliability, reduction in environmental impact

Printing and labeling Packages

Polymers for high-
performance packaging Films and sheets, bottles

Coextrusion multilayer, 
orientation, coating

Adhesives

Laminate processing, 
resin processing,
vapor deposition,

sputtering processing

Packaging field

Agrochemicals, 
seeds, fertilizers, new 
agricultural systems

Cultivation and 
harvesting

Post-harvest 
treatment

Transportation
(low temperature)

Packaging (plastics and others)

Processing Sale
Consumers

Reducing food loss and waste, ensuring food safety and securityBoosting food 
production

Food field

Together with four major global crop 
protection companies*1 and backed by 
the support of the Bill & Melinda Gates 
Foundation and the IVCC*2, the Mitsui 
Chemicals Group has released a joint 
statement regarding an initiative to sup-
port the research, development, and sup-
ply of innovative products that will help 
eradicate malaria by fiscal 2040.
*1 BASF SE, Bayer AG, Sumitomo Chemical Co., Ltd., and Syngenta AG
*2 Innovative Vector Control Consortium

Vision for eradicating malaria by 2040
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Fiscal 2025 target

Operating income of ¥40 bn + new businesses
We recognize the need to boost food production, reduce food loss and waste, ensure food safety and secu-
rity, and reduce environmental impacts as part of our efforts to address issues faced by society. In addi-
tion to focusing on high-growth and high value-added markets, we aim to tap growing demand overseas, 
especially in Asia, to further expand our business. In addition, we will endeavor to promote collaboration 
between business divisions in developing core products for the next stage of growth.

Growth strategies

• �In agrochemicals, we will continue to sustain growth from 
next generation active ingredients, reinforce R&D, and 
strengthen our overseas business platforms.

• �In coating & engineering materials, we will endeavor to 
steadily generate real demand for new products and brands 
and expand the scale of each product cluster by accelerat-
ing our overseas expansion.

• �In functional films & sheets, we will aim to accelerate our 
overseas expansion of food packaging films and expand 
business scale for industrial films.

• �In order to accelerate growth in the food packaging busi-
ness, we will launch businesses offering solutions for main-
taining food quality and expand our packaging materials 
business on a Group-wide basis.

Investment strategies

• �In agrochemicals, we will steadily push ahead with capital 
investments in next generation active ingredients and aim 
to further accelerate growth.

• �In functional films & sheets, we will actively carry out cap-
ital investments with the aim of bolstering our business 
platform for packaging films and expanding the scale of 
industrial films.

Fiscal 2019 plan

Despite the risk of higher raw material prices, in fiscal 2019, we expect to be able to ensure a stable earnings base by expand-
ing sales against a backdrop of firm domestic demand and growth in overseas operations. We will further step up marketing 
in mainly Asian markets to expand sales of our specialty isocyanate products, high-performance packaging materials, mainstay 
insecticides, and the next generation active ingredient TENEBENAL™.

Blue Value™ and Rose Value™ products in the Food & Packaging domain

Reduces CO2

Reduces CO2

Conserves resources

Addresses food 
problems

Addresses declining birth rate 
and aging population

Addresses food 
problems

Extends healthy life 
expectancy

Reduces CO2

Conserves resources

Addresses food 
problems

Addresses food 
problems

Milky-white food 
packaging film

ECONEIGE™
Delivers a white finish 
by diffusing light on lay-
ers of air created inside 
the film. Reduces the 
amount of resin used by 
20%-30% without the 
need for white printing.

Insecticide

TREBON™
Contributes to sta-
ble crop production 
and helps boost food 
production.

Food packaging materials

CMPS™
Easy-open film that even 
children and the elderly can 
manage.

Keep-fresh film

SPASH™
Suppresses wilting and 
discoloration of fruits 
and vegetables and con-
tributes to a reduction in 
food loss. Reduces GHG 
emissions by reduc-
ing the amount of food 
wastes.

Insecticide

VECTRON™
Controls mosquitos, a car-
rier of infectious diseases 
like malaria. Contributes to 
the eradication of malaria.

Sealant film

T.U.X™
Saves energy by using a 
lower heat seal tempera-
ture, while its improved film 
strength means less resin is 
used. Its excellent sealing per-
formance and impact resis-
tance reduces the amount of 
food wasted in food produc-
tion and distribution.

Hybrid rice

Mitsuhikari
F1 hybrid rice cultivar with 
superior high yield and taste. 
Mitsuhikari’s delayed harvest-
ing has the advantage of dis-
persing the concentration of 
harvesting resources, and 
results in the improvement of 
food productivity. 
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Basic
Materials

Mission of the Basic Materials domain
Centering on petrochemicals and basic chemicals, we provide 
materials in a wide range of fields in this business, such as auto-
motive, housing, consumer electronics, infrastructure, and food 
packaging. We aim to forge a presence in Asia, secure stable 
earnings, and build a cornerstone business by providing distinc-
tive technologies, expanding our lineup of value-added products, 
and further strengthening our cost competitiveness.

Business vision
We are substantially improving our earnings structure by steadily 
executing business restructuring. At the same time, we are 
working to further strengthen competitiveness of the basic 
raw material ethylene. We are also mounting an effort to sta-
bilize operations and improve profitability by expanding sales of 
EVOLUE™ and other ethylene-based high value-added polymers.
	 Despite the uncertainty and volatility in the environment sur-
rounding this business, we are striving to further deepen its opera-
tions by continuing to implement thorough cost reductions, expand 
our differentiated products, and maintain our high operating rate by 
sticking to our local production for local consumption approach. In 
doing so, we aim to build a stable earnings base that is resistant to 
changes in market prices and the supply-demand balance.

Market analysis and strategies

Basic strategies

Deepen our cornerstone business by completing its restructuring, strengthening cost competitiveness, expanding distinctive val-
ue-added derivative products, and actively addressing environmental issues

Opportunities and risks

• Shift to the high-performance packaging domain/market
• Growing need to address environmental issues
• Influx of US shale and polyolefins
• Economic slowdown mainly owing to US-China trade friction
• Bulk and commodity product price volatility in Asia
• �Influx of imported products and worsening export terms of 

trade due to the strong yen
• �Shrinking domestic demand and slowing economic growth 

in China

Strengths

• ��Globally competitive naphtha crackers
• ��Metallocene and other polyolefin catalytic technologies
• Distinctive differentiated products and derivatives
• �Global expansion of polyurethane system house business 

based on high-performance polyols

Specific strategies

Petrochemical feedstocks 
& licensing

• �Further strengthen com-
petitiveness of crackers 
and expand catalyst and 
licensing businesses

• �Further deepen petro-
chemicals business, 
including production bal-
ance and distribution

Polyolefins
• �Expand value-added 

fields using polyolefin cat-
alytic technologies

• �Build long-term relation-
ships of trust with cus-
tomers in Japan

• �Enhance cooperation with 
the Mobility domain

Polyurethanes
• �Accelerate global expan-

sion leveraging advanced 
formulation design tech-
nology utilizing high-per-
formance materials

• �Expand eco-friendly 
products such as 
biomass-based 
polyurethane

Basic chemicals
• �Secure stable earnings 

through implementation of 
thorough cost reductions, 
promotion of local production 
for local consumption, and 
reinforcement of derivatives

• �Actively adopt AI, IoT, and 
other sophisticated produc-
tion technologies

Tadashi Yoshino
Managing Executive Officer,
Business Sector President, 
Basic Materials Business Sector 

By leveraging the competitive 
advantage of our domestic bases 
and tapping into the Asian mar-
ket in added-value fields, we aim 
to secure stable earnings and 
build a framework that serves as 
a cornerstone business and sup-
ports the Group as a whole.
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1. Building a stable earnings base

(1) Improving resistance to price volatility
Ever since the global financial crisis of 2008, there has been a 
supply glut for many products in the Asian market owing to the 
construction of new production facilities for various petrochem-
ical products as part of China’s enormous economic stimulus 
package. We previously maintained a high export ratio for com-
modity products like phenol, purified terephthalic acid (PTA), and 
polyurethane materials, but deteriorating profitability on exports 
to Asia meant earnings on these products fell sharply into the red. 
	 In response, we made the decision to embark on structural 
reforms followed by booking large extraordinary losses in fiscal 
2013 and since then we have continued to take steps towards 
building a stable earnings base. We downgraded the size of our 
production capacity to meet domestic demand through measures 
such as retiring our production facilities for the aforementioned 
phenol, PTA, and polyurethane materials, which also included 
the closure of plants based on a strategy of local production for 
local consumption. At the same time, we have introduced a for-
mula method to automatically link changes in raw material cost to 
product prices for those three products and other key materials 
such as domestic polyolefins in an effort to improve our resilience 
against fluctuations in market prices. As a result of these initia-
tives, earnings volatility has been greatly reduced—the weight-
ing of local production for local consumption for phenol, PTA, and 

polyurethane materials has now reached 80%, while the price 
formula ratio of mainstay products together with domestic poly-
olefins now stands at 70%.

(2) Preparing for the risks posed by shale
Currently there are concerns that the supply-demand balance for 
ethylene and polyethylene in Asia will deteriorate as a result of an 
influx in cheap polyethylene as more shale gas-based crackers are 
expanded or newly built in North America. To counteract this, we 
are working to increase our ratio of captive ethylene consumption 
and develop derivative products with more added value. In 2014 
we withdrew from Keiyo Ethylene Co., Ltd., closed our general-
purpose polyethylene plants, and took steps to expand capacity 
for the production of EVOLUE™ and other ethylene-based high 
value-added polymers. As a result, our captive consumption 
of ethylene is now quite high at 80%, while the export ratio, 
which is susceptible to overseas market conditions, is less than 
10%. In addition, our weighting of ethylene-based high value-
added polymers has reached 90%. This has enabled us to 
shift to a product mix which makes it difficult for shale-derived 
polyethylene, most of which is for general use, to take the place 
of. Going forward, we will make every effort to minimize the risks 
posed by shale with various measures that enable us to provide 
more added value.

Reducing volatility through steady restructuring

Carrying out business reforms to establish stable earnings base with
operating income of around ¥30bn

Petrochemicals

Phenols

Polyurethane
raw materials

PTA & PET

Sale of PTA business in Indonesia (–500KTA)

FY13 FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17 FY18 FY19
(Outlook)

–16.5 –6.5 1.0

38.5 38.9
27.8

33

Operating income
(¥ bn)

Restructuring measures
Investments aimed at creating more added value 
and strengthening competitiveness

Further
strengthen cracker
competitiveness

PH & BPA: Shutdown of 3 plants (Japan & Singapore; –410KTA)

Shutdown of all plants at 
Kashima Works (–117KTA)

Restructuring in Thailand (shift to JV with PTTGC) PTA reduced from 50% to 26% (1,440KTA)
Investment stake lowered PET reduced from 60% to 26%    (100KTA)

Shutdown of MDI plant at 
Omuta Works (–60KTA)

Establishment of
JV with SKC

Start of large-scale XDI 
production (+5KTA)

MDI capacity expansion in South Korea (+100KTA)

MDI capacity expansion in 
South Korea (+60KTA)

PPG capacity expansion in
South Korea (+40KTA)

Start of phenol production in China (+250KTA)
Integration of operations with BPA

Start of αMS (+20KTA)

New EVOLUE™ plant in Singapore (+300KTA)

Withdrawal from Keiyo Ethylene 
(approx. –170KTA)

Start of Nghi Son refinery operations
Securing competitive raw materials

Transfer of organic 
acid business (–47KTA)

Start of IPA production
from AC (+60KTA)

General-use PE & PP: Shutdown of 
3 plants (–280KTA)

Measures to address lagging cracker
operations at Ichihara Works
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2. Further strengthening our competitiveness and exploring growth potential

The competitiveness of our crackers compares favorably with 
the new large-scale crackers in Asia and have been rated highly 
by specialized overseas agencies for their superior energy effi-
ciency. This is the source of competitiveness in our derivative 
products including our lineup of high value-added products out-
side of the basic materials field. Up ahead, we intend to further 
reinforce this competitive advantage mainly by reducing and sta-
bilizing input costs through diversification of raw materials and 
improving energy efficiency with the installation of gas turbines. 

Fiscal 2025 target

Operating income of ¥30 billion
The impact of new and expanded facilities for mainly polyethylene derived from shale gas is expected to be felt in Asia 
from 2019 through 2020. Still, we will aim to build a basic materials business with a strong presence in the Asian market 
by reinforcing our cost competitiveness through constant implementation of cost reductions, as well as shifting to high 
value-added products.

Growth strategies

• �We aim to further boost earnings by deepening our cornerstone busi-
ness, while expanding our differentiated products and derivatives with 
high profit margins in the Basic Materials domain.

• �We plan to sustain and further enhance our competitiveness by estab-
lishing a local production for local consumption system and an optimal 
production system for bulk and commodity products.

Investment strategies

• �Given that our upstream crackers have been con-
firmed to be highly competitive, we plan to carry 
out the large-scale investments we have exam-
ined thus far in order to reduce costs.

Blue Value™ and Rose Value™ products in the Basic Materials domain

Coexists with natureReduces CO2 Conserves resourcesReduces CO2

Exhaust gas reduction agent

AdBlue™
Reduces NOx emissions.
Contributes to fuel efficiency.
*�AdBlue™ is a trademark of the German 

Association of the Automotive Industry.

Seat cushion material

ECONYKOL™
Reduces fossil resource con-
sumption with use of bio-based 
raw materials.

We also plan to streamline production and distribution in our 
existing businesses by actively employing AI, IoT, and other high-
ly-advanced technologies.
	 For our distinctive added-value products, we will work on achiev-
ing business growth by maintaining and expanding our share in 
growth markets. Moreover, we aim to explore the growth potential 
of this cornerstone business by acquiring new business opportuni-
ties. To this end, we will further beef up initiatives for addressing 
environmental issues and strengthen collaboration with customers.

Expand sales 
of olefin-based 

polymers, plan to 
expand facilities, 
and improve C3 

shortage position 

Energy 
efficiency

Install new gas turbines
 (30MW class; Osaka)

• �Lower costs by increasing amount of privately generated 
power and effectively utilizing high-temperature waste heat

• Reduce CO2 emissions by 70,000 tons/year

Address 
derivatives

Expand capacity for high-
purity propylene (Ichihara)

• �Boost propylene purification capacity for polymers
• �Tackle strategies for strengthening propylene-based derivatives
• �Improve propylene shortage position

Eliminate facility 
bottlenecks

Expand cracking furnace 
(Ichihara)

• Lower costs by improving olefin yield
• Improve cracker maintenance and equipment stability

Diversify raw 
materials

Boost propane cracking 
capacity (Osaka)

• Shale-derived propane cracking
• �Increase diversification of raw materials at Osaka cracker 

(from 23% to 40%)

FY18 FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23

Fiscal 2019 plan

Despite concerns of an economic slowdown, we expect our 
naphtha crackers and production plants for derivatives to con-
tinue operating at high capacity on the back of stable domes-
tic demand for petrochemicals. At our overseas bases we 
anticipate strong sales of EVOLUE™, commercial operation 
of which started in fiscal 2016 in Singapore, and we expect 

operating rates to increase up ahead.
	 We have transformed the earnings structure for basic 
chemicals and polyurethane materials into one that is resis-
tant to market price volatility by having optimized their produc-
tion structure. We will continue to take measures aimed at 
strengthening the business platform for Basic Materials.

Basic Materials
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Next
Generation
Business Creating solution businesses at the 

boundaries and in the peripheral areas

Drawing on the knowledge of the Mitsui Chem-
icals Group, we are taking on the challenge of 
new possibilities in the New and Next Genera-
tion Businesses freshly added to our targeted 
business domains in the 2025 Long-Term Busi-
ness Plan. We have already started sowing the 
seeds to ensure our businesses bear an abun-
dance of fruits in 10 to 20 years’ time.

Mission of the Next Generation Business domain

Fiscal 2025 target

Operating income of ¥25 billion
(incl. new businesses in other targeted business domains)

Made from organic piezoelectric material, PIEZOLA™ is a flexi-
ble and highly sensitive sensor line that can be cut to any desired 
length and affixed to a surface for measurement. The extremely 
thin (ø0.4mm) coaxial linear structure of the sensor line can be 
used for applications previously thought impossible because 
it can be affixed to uneven surfaces where the use of conven-
tional ceramic sensors was impracticable, in a grid-like fashion 
at any width on broad surface areas, or wrapped around the sur-
face of cylinder- or cone-shaped objects. Given its high sensitiv-
ity and non-pyroelectric properties (impervious to temperature 
changes), it is particularly well-suited to monitoring the vital signs 
of the human body. As it can be used on seats or beds to monitor 
breathing, pulse rate, and other vitals, we are working with many 

IoT solutions
Development of PIEZOLA™, a flexible piezoelectric sensor

Hirofumi Zenkoh
General Manager,
Next Generation Business 
Development Division

The mission of our Next Generation Business is to leverage open 
innovation to create new businesses in our three targeted busi-
ness domains as well as solution businesses at the boundaries 
and in the peripheral areas of these three domains. Various initia-
tives will be implemented through collaboration between each 
business sector, the New Health Care Business Development 
Division, the New Mobility Business Development Division, the 
Next Generation Business Development Division, and the Robot 
Materials Business Development Division.
	 The mission of the Next Generation Business Development 
Division in all of this is to come up with new business models. 

Underpinned by a “think globally, act locally” policy, the Division 
aims to create new business models based on the idea of mar-
keting the Group’s knowledge. All of the ongoing projects in the 
four core fields of agriculture, IoT, energy, and medical originated 
from cooperation with mainly overseas public organizations, 
including start-up firms and universities. Moreover, the Division’s 
Corporate Venturing Department is working to expand open inno-
vation-driven businesses mainly through the creation of new 
diagnostics and solution businesses owing to the integration of 
information and materials.

customers to test its application in society, for example, to help 
monitor residents in nursing care facilities.
	 In October 2017, we were presented with the Semi-Grand 
Prix prize for PIEZOLA™ in the Connected Industries category of 
the CEATEC AWARD 2017.

Conductor ConductorPiezoelectric material

Coaxial linear structure of piezoelectric sensor (enlarged view)

ø0.4mm
(400µ)
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Next Generation Business

We are able to diagnose the overall condition of a solar power 
generation plant. We do this by accurately forecasting solar panel 
service life with technology that can predict deterioration in solar 
panel encapsulants, a product manufactured and sold by Mitsui 
Chemicals Tohcello, Inc. for more than 25 years. We also draw 
on our experience in developing and operating the Tahara Solar-
Wind™ power generation facility, as well as data accumulated at 
the prototype power plants located in the Mobara Branch Factory 
and Sodegaura Center. In recent years, we have worked together 
with investment funds to share data on the volume of power gen-
erated at plants nationwide, which have helped us make even 
more accurate forecasts. In addition, we can offer our services 
to solar power generation plants that have installed increasingly 
popular storage battery facilities and predict changes in electric-
ity sales volume that may result from restricted output. Moreover, 
in the fast-growing Indian market, we have opened a solar panel 
testing and certification lab and are currently making preparations 
to begin accepting BIS certification* testing from December 2019.

*�BIS (Bureau of Indian Standards) certification is comparable to Japan’s JIS certi-
fication but obtainable only through accredited organizations in India.

ECRIOS™ is a colorless and transparent polyamide acid var-
nish that exhibits excellent heat resistance, chemical resistance, 
toughness, and dimensional stability. It has the potential to be 
used in next-generation electronics; for example, as a heat-resis-
tant base material in place of glass, as a flexible circuit board, or 
as a binder.
	 ECRIOS™ was adopted for use in the world’s first ultrathin 
organic solar battery that boasts exceptional heat resistance and 
energy conversion efficiency. The battery was recently developed 
by an international joint research group comprising members 
from the National Institute of Physical and Chemical Research 
(also known as Riken), Toray Industries, Inc., the Japan Science 
and Technology Agency, and other organizations.
	 ECRIOS™ was utilized in the substrate layer of the solar bat-
tery and significantly contributed to making the battery ultrathin 
(only 3µm) and heat resistant by improving surface flatness and 
thermal stability. Given that the solar battery is flexible and highly 
resistant to heat, it can be fastened to fabrics with an iron without 

IT materials
Development of transparent polyimide varnish—ECRIOS™

Energy solutions
Diagnostics business for solar power generation

impacting on the fabric’s freedom of design and elasticity. The 
research group’s use of ECRIOS™ should serve as a springboard 
from which we can expand its use to various applications outside 
of next-generation electronics.

Polyimide liquid 
solution—ECRIOS™

World’s first ultrathin organic solar battery

End of
operation

Resale, etc.

Operation

Solar power generation project

life cycle

Inspection

Construction

Planning

Technical due
diligence on

planning

Power plant
acceptance check

Technical due
diligence on

solar modules

Data analysis of
actual yields

Technical
assessment

of asset value

Reduces CO2

Business rollout in India

Scope of our diagnostics business

During project planning
(before construction)

Future rolloutCurrent plan

Prior to panel shipment
to project

During project planning,
after construction, in operation

Prior to mass production by
manufacturer

IEC certification
(for each panel model)

BIS certification*

(for each project)
*Required by Indian government

Panel diagnostics
(for each project) Power plant diagnostics

• Panel disassembly
• Parts quality check
• Service life estimate, etc.

• Defect checks in construction, planning, 
 and equipment
• Expected power output calculation, etc.
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Sepsis is a bacterial infection with a high mortality rate. Every 
year, 20–30 million people around the world develop sepsis, 
which kills about 10 million. More than one hundred types of 
bacteria can cause sepsis, therefore identifying which one has 
caused the infection as quickly as possible can significantly 
increase the survival rate. To address this issue, together with 
Toyama University we jointly developed a world-first revolution-
ary system capable of identifying the bacteria causing sepsis 
within about five hours after taking a blood sample—a process 
that currently takes around two to three days. We aim to file a 
new drug application in Japan in 2019 while conducting trials 
with multiple medical institutions, as well as launch the system 
in overseas markets.

TOPICS

Jointly developed a model eyeball for glaucoma surgery training

In a joint research project* with Nagoya University and the 
University of Tokyo, we developed a model eyeball for glau-
coma surgery training that can be mounted in a humanoid eye 
surgery simulator. Glaucoma surgery usually involves making 
a thin cut in the sclera (the white part of the eye) to release 
intraocular pressure before it is closed up again. However, 
the lack of good enough model eyeballs to practice on has 
meant physicians have been unable to fully acquire the basic 
skills and engage in preoperative training. In this research 
project, by creating the structure of the sclera required for 
glaucoma surgery, we successfully developed a model eye-
ball with a hollow structure on which incisions and suturing 
can be performed. This model has enabled eye surgeons to 
practice their glaucoma surgery technique, which was not 
possible in the past.

*�This research project was undertaken as part of the ImPACT program 
spearheaded by the Council for Science, Technology and Innovation in 
Japan’s Cabinet Office.

Medical solutions

Rapid identification system for	 Joint research project adopted into 
sepsis-causing bacteria	 AMED’s ACT-M

Social issue

• Glaucoma: Leading cause of blindness in Japan
• 200,000 operations performed every year in Japan
• �The lack of sophisticated surgery training dum-

mies means physicians rely on real experience to 
improve their skills

Technology

Sophisticated model eyeball developed with a 
combination of materials

Numerical
data

Bacteria is
identified

DNA
amplifier

Query to
MCI

database

Rapid bacteriological identification system

Completed in 5 hours*2

after blood testingHMCI’s*1 enzymes + other reagents

Test kit

Mitsui Chemicals’ products

Only a few milliliters needed

In September 2018, the joint research project between Mitsui 
Chemicals and Toyama University was adopted into the basic 
scheme of the Acceleration Transformative Research for Medical 
Innovation (ACT-M) program of the Japan Agency for Medical 
Research and Development (AMED). The program aims to assist 
collaborative R&D between industry and academia. The research 
project was rated very highly after being implemented under 
AMED’s set-up scheme (ACT-MS) of the same project between 
August 2016 and March 2018.
	 Given these developments, we continue to engage in the 
research. Our main subject of research is the quantitative determi-
nation of the bacterial count in blood, which through a process of 
clinical research, has the potential to be useful in medical treatment 
in the future.

*1 Hokkaido Mitsui Chemicals, Inc. 
*2 Experienced genetic testers using three samples

Presentation of research results
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R&D Strategy

Basic Policy

In order to strengthen our proprietary tech-
nologies and materials, we continually refine 
current core technologies and make efforts 
to acquire and incubate new technologies by 
reviewing our technology platforms.

4 laboratories
2 centers: Mobility Development 
Center (MDC) and Mitsui Chemicals 
Singapore R&D Center (MS-R&D)
1 Planning & Coordination Division, etc.

These sites emphasize the development of 
technologies and human resources.

We have researchers with varied back-
grounds in fields such as polymers, 
organic synthesis, and biotechnology.

Technical service, product variations development, 
new product development, process technology 
development, new business development, 
cornerstone technology & innovative technology 
development

The R&D Center conducts activities in pursuit of the 
following four objectives: creation of business oppor-
tunities, creation of new functions, profit generation, 
and sustainability.

Conducting more innovative R&D more quickly
At Mitsui Chemicals, we have various ongoing R&D projects, big and small, that aim to 
enhance current and future corporate value of the Group. In recent years, however, the way 
to proceed with our projects has become increasingly diversified.
	 Not only do we undertake conventional projects to develop and provide customers with 
highly functional and high-quality materials, we are quickly transitioning to projects in which 
we go one step further to also propose to our customers solutions that help solve social 
trends and challenges based on our proprietary technologies and materials. Furthermore, sus-
tainable projects that contribute to global environmental protection, or those that improve 
people’s livelihoods are growing in importance.
	 Under these circumstances, in order to more quickly execute more innovative research and 
development, we relentlessly strengthen, expand, and review the functions, organizations, 
and technologies tied to each project and also focus on developing the human resources to 
support this process.Kiyoshi Ito

General Manager, 
R&D Planning & Coordination Division
R&D Center

10
locations

6
functions

30
technology 
platforms

Led by our R&D Center, we pursue innovation in materials to 
address various social challenges in the areas of the global envi-
ronment, resources, energy, and food. In doing so, we can con-
tribute to the realization of a cohesive society in harmony with the 

environment and health and well-being in an aging society, which 
eventually leads to the sustainable development of our society.

Research and Development (R&D) Strategy

Our R&D strategy—which aims to maintain and enhance current 
and future corporate value—is comprised of five parts: (1) func-
tions; (2) organizations; (3) technologies; (4) human resources 

(that tie together the first three parts); and (5) individual R&D proj-
ects. We endeavor on a daily basis to reinforce and expand each 
of these parts with various measures based on the basic policy.

INTERVIEW
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Opening of new integrated product development site

Construction of the new Design & Solution Center (D&SC) in the city of Sanjo, Niigata 
Prefecture has been completed. The site, which brings together the Mitsui Chemicals 
Group’s product development capabilities, including design, analysis, molding, prototyping, 
and evaluation, has started providing solutions in the Mobility domain. By pooling all of these 
previously dispersed functions in one place, the D&SC can harness the Group’s collective 
strengths to meet the increasingly sophisticated and diversified issues and needs of custom-
ers and quickly create prototypes and appeal their potentials. Up ahead, we aim to leverage 
this advantage to further accelerate growth in new businesses and expand our range of new 
products. The site has started providing solutions in the Mobility domain for now, but in the 
future, we plan to turn it into a manufacturing development hub for all three targeted business 
domains—including Health Care and Food & Packaging.

Functions Organizations

Establishment of MI Development & Promotion Department

In the conventional development process for materials, we accumulated data on the prop-
erties of materials through repeated verification by experiment and the correlation between 
material’s chemical structure or production condition and desired product attributes by taking 
into account the intuition and experience of researcher or technicians. In recent years, how-
ever, materials informatics (MI) has garnered a lot of attention. MI uses AI and big data anal-
ysis technology to derive the correlation between a product’s attributes and the material’s 
chemical structure and production requirements. In Mitsui Chemicals, we have established 
the MI Development & Promotion Department at our Sodegaura Center with the goal of step-
ping up the pace of research and development by introducing MI-based analysis technology. 
By using MI to analyze the data we have accumulated on materials at our R&D sites, we are 
gaining a lot of new knowledge about our materials products, particularly catalysts and res-
ins. Going forward, we hope to delve deeper into MI-based analysis technology to create new 
added-value for the materials products of the Mitsui Chemicals Group.

Organizations Technologies

PHYTO Renaissance Inc.
(Est. June 2018)

Tierraponica Inc.
(Est. July 2018)

New technology:
Microbiota-activated 
cultivation technology

New technology:
Plant cell culture technology

Launch of 0 to 1 Project with Chitose Group

Mitsui Chemicals and the Chitose Group, a collective of biotechnology startups, launched the 
“0 to 1 Project,” an open innovation initiative to simultaneously develop businesses and tal-
ents. In order to respectively commercialize Mitsui Chemicals’ plant cell culture technology 
and the Chitose Group’s microbiota-activated cultivation technology, the two companies of 
PHYTO Renaissance Inc. and Tierraponica Inc. were established. The project aims to get the 
businesses of both of these companies on track for growth.
	 Businesses must go through a series of phases, starting from 0 to 1, followed by 1 to 10, 
and then 10 to 10,000, with each phase requiring entirely different funding levels, human 
resources, and organizational structures. This project aims to tap the extensive experience 
the Chitose Group has in launching new businesses (0 to 1 phase) and share its skills and 
know-how with large companies by fostering businesses and human resources to lead them.

Human 
resources 

development

Exfola™ wins the Chemical Society of Japan award for technical development

Mitsui Chemicals received the 2018 Chemical Society of Japan Award for Technical Development 
in recognition of outstanding creativity and results relating to technology in the Japanese chem-
ical industry. This award recognized Mitsui Chemicals’ utilization of proprietary catalyst and syn-
thesis technologies to successfully develop Exfola™, a new block polymer in which polyolefin 
and silicone are bonded together. The award also acknowledged the Company’s accomplish-
ment in commercializing Exfola™ as a polyolefin surface modifier and cultivating applications 
and customers. Exfola™ gives polyolefin the unique characteristics of silicone resin (release 
characteristics, water and oil repellency, abrasion resistance) and thus resolves issues seen 
with conventional silicone-based modifiers, such as incompatibility with polyolefin materials and 
poor moldability. For these reasons, it is used in food packaging and bottles because little food 
clings to its surface. Exfola™ is expected to be used in food packaging to help reduce food loss, 
in optical film for LCD panels, and in protective film for building materials. Going forward, we will 
step up the development of new applications in the health care field.

Technologies Functions

Awards ceremony
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TOPICS   Mitsui Chemicals named in Derwent Top 100 Global Innovators 2018-19 Report
In recognition of our intellectual property activities in Japan and overseas, Mitsui 
Chemicals was named in the Derwent Top 100 Global Innovators 2018-19 Report by 
Clarivate Analytics, a global data services company. This is the third time we have been 
selected, following 2015 and 2017. Leveraging proprietary evaluation criteria based on 
its own patent database, Clarivate Analytics recognizes companies that are innovative, 
strive to comply with intellectual property rights protection, and develop inventions that 
have global influence. Of the four key criteria, Mitsui Chemicals was again recognized 
for “globalization” as having a strong global reach.

Intellectual Property Strategy

The Mitsui Chemicals Group recognizes intellectual property to be 
the intangible assets that contribute to business, which broadly 
include patents, confidential know-how, utility models, designs, 
brands (trademarks), copyrights, as well as rights under contract, 
trade secrets and the like. We believe that strategically design-
ing and utilizing the best mix of our intellectual property is key 
to accomplishing sustained competitive advantage. At the same 
time, we respect the legitimate intellectual property rights of 
other companies and ensure compliance by taking appropriate 

responses and actions wherever necessary.
	 Under our 2025 Long-Term Business Plan, we intend to review 
our policy on acquiring and utilizing intellectual property in close 
collaboration with business divisions, R&D divisions, production/
technology divisions, and other relevant departments within and 
outside of the Group. By constructing business-specific intel-
lectual property portfolios, we aim to maximize the business 
opportunities afforded by intellectual property and minimize any 
business risks associated with intellectual property.

Reinforcement of IP platform

Invention

Promotion/discovery
Strategic applicationConstruction

IP rights clearance/contract management

IP information survey/analysis & utilization

Design

IP portfolio

Use of AI 
technologies

Efficient
outsourcing

Program to foster employees 
with strong IP mentality and 

skills

Strengthening 
IP capabilities at 

worksite

Acquisition of wide-ranging 
IP personnel from not only 

chemical industry

Intellectual property (IP) strategy framework

Shifting our weight to consulting-based activities to proactively 
propose intellectual property strategies
In line with the Company’s current pursuit of customer-driven innovation, we are looking to 
shift the weight of activities conducted by the Intellectual Property Division. Specifically, we 
want to engage in more consulting-based activities and spearhead proposals on intellectual 
property strategy instead of simply performing agency-like duties that sees us responding 
to intellectual property requests from business divisions and R&D divisions. As intellectual 
property experts, we aim to contribute to each stage of the intellectual property portfolio con-
struction process for each business; namely, making overall business forecasts, thoroughly 
visualizing what kind of intellectual properties the business in question will require to drive 
future growth, and taking steps to acquire what are and will be needed. To achieve this, it is 
crucial that we deepen collaboration with mainly R&D divisions, business divisions, and pro-
duction/technology divisions to gain a more specific understanding of what may be indis-
pensable now as well as in the future. We also recognize the increasing importance of taking 
an overview of the business as a whole, for example, by acquiring patents that make our 
products easier to use from an end user’s perspective, so as to avoid any conflicts of rights.
	 While pushing ahead with this kind of aggressive intellectual property strategy, given that 
the number of patent applications worldwide, especially in China, is growing year by year, we 
must be more prepared than ever before to ensure that those patents do not pose any risk 
to our Company’s businesses. In order to produce significant results with our limited human 
resources, we aim to be an intellectual property department that contributes to the exponen-
tial growth for the future by effectively leveraging AI technology and outsourcing.

Masayoshi Yamaguchi
General Manager,
Intellectual Property Division

Basic Strategy

INTERVIEW

Intellectual property:
https://www.mitsuichem.com/en/techno/ip/
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Human Resources Strategy

Basic Strategies

Overview of Key Talent Management

Progress in Fiscal 2018

• �Held meetings of the Divisional Key Talent Management Committees in all 
divisions (both business and functional), selected key talents, and formu-
lated individual development plans (placement and training).

• �In the Company-wide Key Talent Management Committee which brings all 
management in one place, reviewed and confirmed the direction of individ-
ual development plans (placement and training) for those management can-
didates selected from over 150 General Managers and Directors at Mitsui 
Chemicals and its affiliates, as well as plans for those key talents selected 
from Supervisors at Mitsui Chemicals (and equivalent positions at affiliates).

• �Revised succession plans for the 100 critical positions based on the busi-
ness strategies for fiscal 2018.

• �As part of our increasing diversity, shared and confirmed the individual 
development plans for female management candidates who had been 
selected as key talents.

Specific Plans Going Forward

(1) �Conduct follow-ups on individual development plans 
(placement and training) for those management candi-
dates selected from among General Managers (includ-
ing presidents at affiliates) and Directors at Mitsui 
Chemicals, and conduct individual discussions to sup-
port the development plan for those who have been 
newly selected.

(2) �Continually review the individual development plans for 
those key talents selected from Supervisors at Mitsui 
Chemicals (and equivalent positions at affiliates).

(3) �As in fiscal 2018, revise succession plans for the 100 
critical positions based on our new strategies.

(4) �Strengthen the assessments of management candidates.

(1)	 Key Talents and Management Candidates
Among the Group’s worldwide human resources, those who 
consistently demonstrate a high level of performance and 
competence, potential, and enthusiasm are identified as key 
talents. Among such key talents, those who have the poten-
tial to become future leaders are selected as management 
candidates.

(2)	 Key Talent Management Committees
The Key Talent Management Committees have been estab-
lished as a body to select key talents/management candi-
dates, approve development plans, and review their results. 
The Committees review the work experience of selected 
human resources, and determine where they should be 
assigned based on five perspectives: managerial view 
point, business restructuring, new business development, 
Company-wide projects, and the operations of overseas sub-
sidiaries and affiliates.

Reports presented at Board of Directors’ meetings

Reports on selection/development and training status, 
succession plan for each important position, etc.

Each Key Talent Management Committee selects key 
talents/management candidates, approves 

development plans, and reviews their results.

Company-wide Key Talent 
Management Committee

Committee members
President, Responsible officers

Divisional Key Talent 
Management Committee

Committee members
Heads of each division

Management candidates Key talents

Key Talent Management: Developing Future Leaders

The Mitsui Chemicals Group sets out three basic strategies: 
(1) pursuing innovation, (2) accelerating global expansion, and 
(3) strengthening the competitiveness of existing businesses 
in our 2025 Long-Term Business Plan. Human resources will 
serve as one of our most valuable management resources in 

the implementation of these strategies. The Group will continue 
working on enhancing our corporate value and achieving the 
Long-Term Business Plan targets through comprehensive man-
agement of recruiting, development and training, placement, and 
utilization of human resources.

It is a pressing task for the Group to recruit, develop, and train 
future leaders, as well as human resources who are capable of 
managing our overseas subsidiaries and affiliates, the number of 
which are increasing due to overseas development and M&As. To 
this end, the Group has introduced the Key Talent Management 

system, which began operations in fiscal 2016.
	 We will further develop this system, in order to promote the 
development and training of employees who will ensure the con-
tinued growth for the Group.

Example of Activity

Appointment of locally-hired employees at overseas affiliate
One example of implementing an individual development plan for management candidates through 
deliberations at the Key Talent Management Committee is the appointment of a locally-hired 
employee of an overseas affiliate to a top position in the company. This initiative has actually con-
tributed to promoting localization. At Mitsui Chemicals India, one of our major affiliates, employees 
assigned from Japan had served in the position of the president since the company was established. 
At the same time, we had provided opportunities for Mr. Suraj Arya, who had consistently demon-
strated outstanding performance and potential, to participate in several global training sessions in 
a planned manner, while simultaneously appointing him to the position of the vice president. This 
approach had provided him an opportunity to learn corporate management from a higher perspec-
tive. As a result, Mr. Arya assumed the position of the president of Mitsui Chemicals India in July 
2018, and has been undertaking various challenges in order to accelerate business growth in India.

Selecting

Suraj Arya
Mitsui Chemicals India Pvt. Ltd.
President



Status of Initiatives for HR Challenges

Key HR challenges Items 2018 progress and outstanding issues

Establishing globally-unified HR tools and policies 
across each business site around the world by overcom-
ing regional differences. 

Common competencies (qualification 
requirements)

Requirements drafted and rolled out to 
some regions

HR database
Compilation completed with the excep-
tion of some subsidiaries

Grading system Expanding in a phased manner

Secondment system, compensation 
system, etc.

Policy revisions planned

Building a holistic communication network that enables 
all HRs from every country to connect globally beyond 
their region or nation.

Communication platform
Considering launch of new shared 
system

Securing, developing, and training an outstanding pool 
of talents with a range of different backgrounds who can 
work effectively on a global stage.

Talent management
Increased identification and ongoing 
development of talent

Human Resources Management
https://www.mitsuichem.com/en/sustainability/society/employee/
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Growth strategies

Launching the Global Human Resources Division and enhancing our global human resources 
management framework

1986- 2010

Employees

Accelerated toward becom-
ing a global company
Established our first U.S. 
production base

 Acquired ACOMON  �Acquired the den-
tal materials business 
from Heraeus Holding 
GmbH

 Acquired ARRK CorporationAccelerated toward global 
management

2011

12,868

2012

12,846

2013

14,271

2014

14,363

2015

13,447

2016

13,423

2017

17,277

2018 2019

Phase1

Appointed 
a Global 
Specialist
(1 person)

Phase2

Established a Global HR 
Group in the Human 
Resources Division
(4 persons)

Phase3

Revamped the global HR organization
Established a virtual multinational organization that includes regional HQ 
HR (HRDAC; 14 persons)

Phase4

Launched a permanent 
Global Human Resources 
Division

Example of Activity  Starting HR meetings in Europe

The Group holds HR meetings for each region, in order to implement our global 
HR measures. The history of holding the meetings is longest in Asia, with the 13th 
meeting held in fiscal 2019.
	 The ARRK Group, which joined our Group in 2018 through transfer of shares, 
has approximately 2,000 employees in Europe. We now have over 3,000 employ-
ees in Europe, including Mitsui Chemicals Europe, Kulzer Group, and ACOMON, 
making Europe our largest area outside of Japan. Accordingly, as a new under-
taking, we held HR meetings with all HRs in the European region gathered in one 
place at Kulzer (Hanau) in fiscal 2018 and ARRK Engineering (Munich) in fiscal 2019, 
in order to explore matters on which we can cooperate.

History of Group Globalization and Global HR

Global Human Resources Strategies

Since the founding of Mitsui Chemicals in 1997, the Group’s con-
solidated companies have grown in number to a total of 155, and 
our consolidated employees (as of March 31, 2019, excluding con-
tract employees) have increased to 17,743 persons. The overseas 
sales ratio has expanded to 45%. With the progress of business 
globalization, we have worked to build a framework on a global 
basis in the area of human resources management, including the 
operation of overseas bases, as well as post-merger integration 
(PMI) for cross-border M&As. In order to further accelerate these 
efforts, we established the Global Human Resources Division in 
April 2019 to expand from our conventional virtual HR organization 
to a permanent global HR organization. We will enhance our global 
business competitiveness by executing effective human resources 
management on a Group and global level, and enhancing our human 

resources governance. Following the launch of the Division, we 
established functions for system development at the global head-
quarters, including talent management, human resources develop-
ment and training, and compensation and evaluation. At the same 
time, we are using schemes from the HR Development Advisory 
Committee (HRDAC), a virtual project framework involving human 
resources at the regional headquarters, held continuously since 
2014, in order to accelerate the planning of various globally-shared 
programs and expansion into local regions. We have redefined mat-
ters that should be unified globally, as well as matters that should 
be operated with a degree of freedom in each region or company. 
We operate the human resources organization that supports both 
effective human resources management on a Group and global 
level and the growth of each region and our businesses.

Human Resources Strategy

17,743
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Global Employee Engagement Survey

Background and Overview of the Survey

MESSAGE

Our global human resources strategies

Our global workforce is now approaching a total of 20,000 persons owing to the steady 
progress of our 2025 Long-Term Business Plan.
	 With the recent progress in M&As and the creation of new businesses, a new busi-
ness with a service model featuring customer-driven innovation has been added to our 
business portfolio, thereby enhancing its diversity.
	 Chemical manufacturers have highly diverse technologies and human resources, and 
accelerated collaboration between them creates greater customer value. I believe that 
the enhancement of our individual identities and communication with people inside and 
outside the Group will serve as the driving force behind the creation of new value in the 
age of VUCA (Volatility, Uncertainty, Complexity, and Ambiguity), and the driving force 
behind that is our employees.
	 For that reason, our Global Human Resources Division will work together with Mitsui 
Chemicals Group leaders to understand all of our employees around the world through 
the Key Talent Management system and global employee engagement surveys, and 
accelerate the necessary support to allow individual employees to demonstrate high 
engagement and a commitment to business growth.
	 We, as a business partner, will work on solving issues globally beyond regional 
boundaries, under our motto of contributing to value by understanding business strate-
gies and providing a global platform that contributes to their implementation.

Delegation of authority/
Autonomy

38%

Human resources utilization 
and assignment

15%

Brand as an employer 

39%

Career opportunities

18%

Safety

47%

Mitsui Chemicals Group 
top factors = three areas in 
which we are strong

Mitsui Chemicals Group 
bottom factors = three areas 
in which we face challenges

Learning and 
self-development

22%

In preparation for implementing our 2025 Long-Term Business 
Plan, we consider Group employee engagement to be extremely 
important. We, therefore, conducted an online survey in June 
2018 to measure individual engagement levels and investigate 
the underlying factors for all employees of the Mitsui Chemicals 
Group. This was the first survey to cover all Group employees, 
and 87% of the employees responded. Their opinions provided 
us with many suggestions that improved our understanding of 
the Group-wide HR challenges. The results of the survey have 
been shared with our management, and we are currently work-
ing on an action plan on a Group-wide basis. Characteristics of the 
Group revealed through this survey include an incredibly strong 

culture of safety and an emphasis on autonomy and delegation of 
authority. Two points also raised and expected to help contribute 
to higher engagement going forward are: dialogue with manage-
ment and skill development and careers. The results of this sur-
vey can be analyzed by the unit of Head Office division, affiliate, or 
subsidiary. Therefore, leaders and HR division in each organization 
have worked together to formulate improvement action plans that 
are suitable for individual departments, and are working on the 
specific measures to improve the level of engagement. In order to 
further raise the engagement level in the entire Group, this survey 
will continue to be conducted every two to three years.

Engagement Factor Score

Shingo Ono
Deputy General Manager, 
Global Human Resources Division



60 Mitsui Chemicals Report 2019

Foundations for growth

Members of the Board, Corporate Auditors

Member of the Board,
Outside Director

Yukiko Yoshimaru

Outside Corporate Auditor

Mikio Fujitsuka

Member of the Board,
Outside Director

Hajime Bada 

Member of the Board,
Senior Managing Executive Officer

Osamu Hashimoto 

Member of the Board,
Outside Director

Yukiko Kuroda

Outside Corporate Auditor

Katsuyoshi Shinbo

Outside Corporate Auditor

Shozo Tokuda
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Representative Director, 
Member of the Board,
President & CEO

Tsutomu Tannowa

Corporate Auditor

Akio Ayukawa

Corporate Auditor

Shigeru Isayama

Member of the Board,
Senior Managing Executive Officer

Takayoshi Shimogori 

Representative Director,
Member of the Board,
Executive Vice President

Masaharu Kubo

Representative Director,
Member of the Board,
Senior Managing Executive Officer

Hideki Matsuo
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Foundations for growth

Board of Directors, Board of Corporate Auditors, and Executive Officers 
(As of June 25, 2019)

Independent Outside Directors

Board of Directors

Executive Officers

President & CEO Tsutomu Tannowa Overall corporate and group management

Executive Vice 
President

Masaharu Kubo Executive Advisor (CFO)
Responsibilities: Finance & Accounting Div. and Corporate 
Sustainability Committee

Senior Managing 
Executive Officer

Hideki Matsuo Executive Advisor (CTO)
Responsibilities: R&D Center, RC & Quality Assurance Div., 
Responsible Care Committee, Production & Technology 
Center, Fabricated Products Business Coordination Div. and 
Intellectual Property Div.

Senior Managing 
Executive Officer

Takayoshi Shimogori Business Sector President, Food & Packaging Business 
Sector
Responsibilities: Mobility Business Sector, New Mobility 
Business Development Div. and Robot Materials Business 
Development Div.

Senior Managing 
Executive Officer

Osamu Hashimoto Business Sector President, Health Care Business Sector
Responsibilities: New Health Care Business Development 
Div. and H-Project Div.

Managing 
Executive Officer

Shin Fukuda Center Executive, R&D Center
Responsibility: Next Generation Business Development Div.

Managing 
Executive Officer

Koichiro Sato Business Sector President, Mobility Business Sector
Responsibility: Nagoya Branch

Managing 
Executive Officer

Hiroshi Tsunashima Center Executive, Production & Technology Center
Responsibility: Works

Managing 
Executive Officer

Tadashi Yoshino Business Sector President, Basic Materials Business Sector
Responsibilities: Nghi Son-Project Div., Osaka Branch and 
Fukuoka Branch

Managing 
Executive Officer

Keishi Susowake Responsibilities: Corporate Administration & Legal Div., 
Purchasing Div., Logistics Div., Corporate Communications 
Div. and Risk Compliance Committee

Managing 
Executive Officer

Yoshinori Andou General Manager, Global Human Resources Div. 
Responsibilities: Human Resources Div., Global Human 
Resources Div., Mitsui Chemicals Asia Pacific, Mitsui 
Chemicals China, Mitsui Chemicals America, Mitsui 
Chemicals Europe and Affiliates Coordination Div.

Managing 
Executive Officer

Akio Hirahara Responsibilities: Corporate Planning Div. and Information 
System Div.

Member of the Board, Outside Director

Yukiko Kuroda
Apr. 1986 Joined Sony Corporation
Jan. 1991 �Representative Director of People Focus 

Consulting
Jun. 2010 �Outside Audit & Supervisory Board Member of 

Astellas Pharma Inc.
Mar. 2011 �Outside Director of CAC Corporation (currently 

CAC Holdings Corporation) (to present)
Apr. 2012 �Managing Director and Founder of People Focus 

Consulting (to present)
Jun. 2013 Outside Director of Marubeni Corporation
Jun. 2015 Member of the Board of the Company (to present)
Jun. 2018 �Outside Director of Seven Bank, Ltd. (to present)

Outside Director of Terumo Corporation (to 
present)

Board of Directors
Attended/Meetings 
Held

11/11

Member of the Board, Outside Director

Hajime Bada
Apr. 1973 �Joined Kawasaki Steel Corporation (currently JFE 

Steel Corporation)
Jun. 2000 Director of Kawasaki Steel Corporation
Apr. 2003 Senior Vice President of JFE Steel Corporation
Apr. 2005 �Representative Director, President and CEO of 

JFE Steel Corporation
May 2006 Chairman of The Japan Iron and Steel Federation
Apr. 2010 �Representative Director, President and CEO of 

JFE Holdings, Inc.
Apr. 2015 Director of JFE Holdings, Inc.
Jun. 2015 Advisor of JFE Holdings, Inc. (to present)
Jun. 2016 �Member of the Board of the Company (to present) 

�Outside Corporate Auditor of ASAGAMI 
CORPORATION (to present)

Jun. 2018 Outside Director of NSK Ltd. (to present)

Board of Directors
Attended/Meetings 
Held

10/11

Member of the Board, Outside Director

Yukiko Yoshimaru
Apr. 1982 Joined Oki Electric Industry Co., Ltd.
Apr. 1998 �Director of Oki America Inc., and Head of New 

York Office of Oki Electric Industry Co., Ltd.
Oct. 2004 �General Manager of Diversity Development 

Office of NISSAN MOTOR CO., LTD.
Apr. 2008 Joined Nifco Inc.
Jun. 2011 Executive Officer of Nifco Inc.
Apr. 2018 �Outside Director of Sekisui House, Ltd. (to 

present)

Member of the Board, Senior Managing Executive Officer

Osamu Hashimoto
Apr. 1987 Joined the Company
Apr. 2012 �General Manager, Planning and Administration 

Div., Functional Chemicals Business Sector
Apr. 2014 �Senior Director, Planning and Administration Div., 

Functional Chemicals Business Sector
Oct. 2014 �Senior Director, General Manager, Corporate 

Planning Div.
Apr. 2015 �Executive Officer of the Company

General Manager, Corporate Planning Div.
Apr. 2017 �Managing Executive Officer of the Company 

Business Sector President, Health Care Business 
Sector, and General Manager, New Health Care 
Business Development Div.

Sep. 2017 �Managing Executive Officer of the Company 
Business Sector President, Health Care Business 
Sector

Jun. 2018 �Member of the Board, Managing Executive Officer 
of the Company, Business Sector President, 
Health Care Business Sector

Apr. 2019 �Member of the Board, Senior Managing Executive 
Officer of the Company, Business Sector President, 
Health Care Business Sector (to present)

*1 �The number of meetings held since Mr. Hashimoto’s 
appointment.

Representative Director, Member of the Board,
Executive Vice President

Masaharu Kubo
Apr. 1980 Joined the Company
Apr. 2010 �Executive Officer of the Company

General Manager, Corporate Administration Div.
Apr. 2013 Managing Executive Officer of the Company
Jun. 2013 �Member of the Board, Managing Executive 

Officer of the Company
Apr. 2014 �Member of the Board, Senior Managing 

Executive Officer of the Company
Apr. 2016 �Representative Director, Member of the Board, 

Senior Managing Executive Officer of the 
Company

Apr. 2017 �Representative Director, Member of the Board, 
Executive Vice President of the Company (to 
present)

Board of Directors
Attended/Meetings 
Held

11/11

Representative Director, Member of the Board,
Senior Managing Executive Officer

Hideki Matsuo
Apr. 1982 Joined Mitsui Toatsu Chemicals, Inc.
Apr. 2013 �Executive Officer of the Company

Center Executive, Production & Technology Center
Apr. 2014 �Managing Executive Officer of the Company Center 

Executive, Production & Technology Center
Jun. 2016 �Member of the Board, Managing Executive 

Officer of the Company, Center Executive, 
Production & Technology Center

Apr. 2017 �Member of the Board, Senior Managing 
Executive Officer of the Company, Center
Executive, Production & Technology Center

Apr. 2018 �Representative Director, Member of the Board, 
Senior Managing Executive Officer of the 
Company (to present)

Board of Directors
Attended/Meetings 
Held

11/11

Member of the Board,
Senior Managing Executive Officer

Takayoshi Shimogori
Apr. 1985 Joined the Company
Apr. 2014 �Executive Officer of the Company, General Manager, 

Performance Compound Div., Functional Polymeric 
Materials Business Sector

Apr. 2015 �Executive Officer of the Company, Business Sector 
President, Functional Polymeric Materials Business Sector

Apr. 2016 �Managing Executive Officer of the Company Business 
Sector President, Mobility Business Sector

Apr. 2017 �Managing Executive Officer of the Company 
Business Sector President, Food & Packaging 
Business Sector, and Business Sector President, 
Mobility Business Sector

Jun. 2017 �Member of the Board, Managing Executive Officer 
of the Company, Business Sector President, Food 
& Packaging Business Sector, and Business Sector 
President, Mobility Business Sector

Mar. 2018 Chairman of ARRK Corporation (to present)
Apr. 2018 �Member of the Board, Senior Managing Executive 

Officer of the Company, Business Sector President, 
Food & Packaging Business Sector (to present)

Board of Directors
Attended/Meetings 
Held

11/11

Representative Director, Member of the Board, 
President & CEO

Tsutomu Tannowa
Apr. 1976 Joined Mitsui Toatsu Chemicals, Inc.
Apr. 2007 �Executive Officer of the Company

General Manager, Human Resources & 
Employee Relations Div.

Apr. 2010 �Managing Executive Officer of the Company 
Business Sector President, Basic Chemicals 
Business Sector

Jun. 2012 �Member of the Board, Managing Executive 
Officer of the Company

Apr. 2013 �Member of the Board, Senior Managing 
Executive Officer of the Company

Apr. 2014 �Representative Director, Member of the Board, 
President & CEO of the Company (to present)

Board of Directors
Attended/Meetings 
Held

11/11

Board of Directors
Attended/Meetings 
Held

9/9*1 Newly appointed

Major Activities
Ms. Yukiko Kuroda primarily speaks about sound and 
efficient corporate management from the point of view 
of one concerned with the validity of business execution 
and corporate social responsibility based on her extensive 
experience as a corporate manager and as an outside officer 
and consultant at other companies.

Major Activities
Mr. Hajime Bada primarily speaks about sound and efficient 
corporate management from the point of view of one 
concerned with the validity of business execution and the 
intrinsic nature of the Mitsui Chemicals Group based on his 
extensive experience as a corporate manager and president 
of an industry organization.

Reasons for nomination
Ms. Yukiko Yoshimaru has experience as an officer of other 
companies in areas such as diversity promotion, and in-depth 
knowledge acquired through her extensive global experience. 
We expect that she will provide useful advice to the 
Company’s corporate management, and accordingly believe 
that she is the right person for the post of Outside Director.
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Executive Officers

Corporate Auditor

Akio Ayukawa
Apr. 1975 Joined the Company
Jun. 2011 �Executive Officer of the Company 

Business Sector President, Petrochemicals Business Sector
Jun. 2012 �Managing Executive Officer of the Company 

Business Sector President, Petrochemicals Business Sector
Apr. 2014 Managing Executive Officer of the Company
Jun. 2014 Member of the Board, Managing Executive Officer of the Company
Apr. 2015 �Member of the Board, Senior Managing Executive Officer of the 

Company
Apr. 2016 Member of the Board of the Company
Jun. 2016 Corporate Auditor of the Company (to present)

Corporate Auditor

Shigeru Isayama
Apr. 1980 Joined the Company
Apr. 2007 �Executive Officer of the Company, General Manager, Information & 

Electronics Materials Div., Performance Materials Business Sector
Apr. 2009 �Executive Officer of the Company, General Manager, Business 

Planning & Development Div., Performance Materials Business Sector
Jun. 2009 �Member of the Board of the Company, Business Sector Vice 

President, Performance Materials Business Sector, and General 
Manager, Business Planning & Development Div., Performance 
Materials Business Sector

Jun. 2011 �Assistant to the President of the Company
Representative in the Americas, and General Manager, 
Mitsui Chemicals America, Inc.

Apr. 2013 Managing Executive Officer of the Company
Jun. 2013 Member of the Board, Managing Executive Officer of the Company
Apr. 2016 �Representative Director, Member of the Board, Senior Managing 

Executive Officer of the Company
Apr. 2018 Member of the Board of the Company
Jun. 2018 Corporate Auditor of the Company (to present)

*2 The number of meetings held since Mr. Isayama’s appointment.

Board of Corporate Auditors

Executive Officer Yasunori Nishiyama Representative in the Americas
President, Mitsui Chemicals America
President, Whole You

Executive Officer Satoshi Ozawa President, Mitsui Chemicals Agro

Executive Officer Ichiro Kondo General Manager, Ichihara Works

Executive Officer Yasuhiro Hosomi General Manager, Iwakuni-Ohtake Works

Executive Officer Takehiko Takagi General Manager, Osaka Works

Executive Officer Akihiro Tachibana Business Sector Vice President, Health Care Business 
Sector and General Manager, Nonwovens Div., Health 
Care Business Sector

Executive Officer Hajime Nakajima General Manager, Finance & Accounting Div.

Executive Officer Hiroshi Nishio General Manager, Internal Control Div.

Executive Officer Koichi Yanase Business Sector Vice President, Mobility Business Sector 
and General Manager, Planning & Coordination Div., 
Mobility Business Sector

Executive Officer Shingo Shibata Co-CEO, Mitsui Chemicals & SKC Polyurethanes (Korea) 
and President, Mitsui Chemicals & SKC Polyurethanes 
(Japan)

Executive Officer Atsushi Komoriya President, ARRK Corporation

Executive Officer Fumio Yoshizumi Business Sector Vice President, Basic Materials Business 
Sector

Executive Officer Masayuki Kinoshita General Manager, Human Resources Div.

Executive Officer Toshihiro Takai General Manager, Omuta Works

Executive Officer Kensuke Fujimoto President, Prime Polymer

Executive Officer Shigeharu Matsuzaka General Manager, Planning & Coordination Div., Food & 
Packaging Business Sector

Independent Outside Corporate Auditors

Outside Corporate Auditor

Katsuyoshi Shinbo
Apr. 1984 Registered as an attorney
Nov. 1999 �Attorney at Shinbo Law Office (currently Shinbo & Partners) 

(to present)
Jun. 2015 �Outside Corporate Auditor of Sumitomo Mitsui Banking 

Corporation
Jun. 2017 �Corporate Auditor of the Company (to present) 

Outside Corporate Auditor of Sumitomo Mitsui Financial Group, Inc.
(to present)

Board of Directors
Attended/Meetings
Held

11/11
Board of Auditors
Attended/Meetings
Held

14/15
Outside Corporate Auditor

Shozo Tokuda
Nov. 1981 Joined Asahi Accounting Company (currently KPMG AZSA LLC)
Aug. 1985 Registered as a certified public accountant
Jul. 2002 Representative Partner of Asahi & Co. (currently KPMG AZSA LLC)
Jun. 2006 Board Member of KPMG AZSA & Co. (currently KPMG AZSA LLC)
Jun. 2010 �Senior Board Member of KPMG AZSA & Co. (currently KPMG 

AZSA LLC)
Jul. 2015 Senior Partner of KPMG AZSA LLC
Jun. 2017 Outside Audit & Supervisory Board Member of ITOCHU ENEX 

CO., LTD. (to present)
Corporate Auditor of the Company (to present)

Board of Directors
Attended/Meetings
Held

11/11
Board of Auditors
Attended/Meetings
Held

15/15
Outside Corporate Auditor

Mikio Fujitsuka
Apr. 1977 Joined Komatsu Ltd.
Apr. 2005 Executive Officer of Komatsu Ltd.
Apr. 2010 Senior Executive Officer (Jomu) of Komatsu Ltd.
Apr. 2011 Senior Executive Officer (Jomu) and CFO of Komatsu Ltd.
Jun. 2011 Director, Senior Executive Officer (Jomu) and CFO of Komatsu Ltd.
Apr. 2013 �Director, Senior Executive Officer (Senmu) and CFO of 

Komatsu Ltd.
Apr. 2016 �Representative Director, Executive Vice President and CFO of 

Komatsu Ltd.
Apr. 2018 �Representative Director and Executive Vice President of 

Komatsu Ltd.
Apr. 2019 �Director of Komatsu Ltd.
Jun.2019 Adviser of Komatsu Ltd. (to present)

Corporate Auditor of the Company (to present)

Board of Directors
Attended/Meetings
Held

11/11
Board of Auditors
Attended/Meetings
Held

15/15

Board of Directors
Attended/Meetings
Held

9/9*2

Board of Auditors
Attended/Meetings
Held

12/12*2

Newly appointed

Major Activities
Mr. Katsuyoshi Shinbo primarily speaks about sound and efficient corporate 
management from the perspectives of ensuring appropriate business 
execution of the Company and reinforcing management oversight functions 
of the Board of Directors based on his specialist knowledge and extensive 
experience not only as a long-standing lawyer but also as an outside officer 
of other companies.

Major Activities
Mr. Shozo Tokuda primarily speaks about sound and efficient corporate 
management from the perspectives of ensuring appropriate business 
execution of the Company and reinforcing management oversight functions 
of the Board of Directors based on his specialist knowledge and extensive 
experience not only as a long-standing certified public accountant but also as 
an outside officer of other companies.

Reasons for nomination
Mr. Mikio Fujitsuka has extensive experience as a corporate manager, and 
in-depth knowledge in the areas of financial accounting, corporate ethics 
and crisis and risk management based on his experience as CFO of a listed 
company. From the viewpoint of ensuring appropriate business execution of 
the Company, we believe that he is the right person for the post of Outside 
Corporate Auditor.
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Discussion between Outside Directors and CFO

Free and open discussions during 
Board meetings

 Kubo 

Even prior to the establishment of Mitsui Chemicals in 1997 we 
had welcomed outside directors into the Company with the aim 
of enlivening meetings of the Board of Directors. I’d first like to 
hear from you, our outside directors, about how you view the 
Company’s Board meetings.

 Kuroda 

My impression of Board meetings at Mitsui Chemicals is that 
they are always conducive to free and open discussion and the 
exchange of opinions. There is also a really diverse mix of out-
side directors and corporate auditors, which enables us to make 
remarks from multiple viewpoints.

	 The internal directors kindly explain some hard-to-understand 
Company matters in detail and at times take issue with our opin-
ions, which I think points to healthy Board meeting discussions. 
It’s really valuable that internal directors earnestly listen to the 
opinions of outside directors.
	 Furthermore, even though all of the outside directors do not 
necessarily possess extensive knowledge of the chemical indus-
try, we are really thankful for being given advance briefings on 
matters some of us are not familiar with, opportunities to learn 
about the Company’s businesses, and even chances to visit 
some business sites.

 Bada 

I feel that discussions at Mitsui Chemicals’ Board of Directors 
meetings are focused on plans and projects that require a 
long-term perspective, particularly those with a high degree of 
importance.

Realizing effective governance 
and initiatives for future growth

Masaharu Kubo
Representative Director
Executive Vice President & CFO

Ms. Yukiko Kuroda
Outside Director
Managing Director and Founder of 
People Focus Consulting
Outside Director of CAC Holdings 
Corporation
Outside Director of Seven Bank, Ltd.
Outside Director of Terumo 
Corporation

Mr. Hajime Bada
Outside Director
Advisor of JFE Holdings, Inc. 
Outside Corporate Auditor of 
ASAGAMI CORPORATION 
Outside Director of NSK Ltd.

Ms. Yukiko Yoshimaru
Outside Director
Outside Director of Sekisui 
House, Ltd. 
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	 Outside directors are required to voice their opinions as a third 
party, but at the same time, it’s becoming more necessary that 
they make comments with a complete understanding of the proj-
ect in question. For this reason, I don’t think they can keep up 
with discussions if they have no knowledge of actual operations. 
It’s been three years since I assumed the role of outside direc-
tor and I’ve been able to visit various production sites during the 
period. I’ve been to nearly all the domestic plants and major over-
seas bases mainly in Europe, the US, and Southeast Asia. I orig-
inally worked in the steel industry, so I thought I would have a 
good understanding of how plants operate, but I soon discovered 
after visiting them that plants in the chemical industry are com-
pletely different from those in the steel industry.
	 In this sense, I highly appreciate how Mitsui Chemicals pro-
vides thoughtful explanations to its outside directors so we get a 
better understanding of how it does business.

 Kubo 

Director Yoshimaru, you will start attending Board meetings from 
fiscal 2019 as a newly appointed outside director. In light of your 
experience so far as an executive officer and as an outside direc-
tor at other companies, I’d like to hear your thoughts on what kind 
of meeting body the Board of Directors should be.

 Yoshimaru 

I think various examinations are carried out in advance so as to 
proceed difficult discussions at Board of Directors meetings on 
the assumption that important decisions are to be made. Still, the 
Board cannot avoid a clash of opinions. And I believe, such con-
flicting views are what matters most for the Board to best reach 
its conclusions drawing upon the opinions of highly experienced 
outside directors with different perspectives. Progress thereafter 
should then be monitored accordingly. I hope to contribute to this 
process as much as possible.
	 Another point I’d like to make is that during Board meeting 
discussions, it may be extremely worthwhile to hear the opin-
ions from internal directors on the business areas they are not in 
charge of.
	 As we face historical inflection points and continue to undergo 
various changes, I look forward to seeing what opinions and con-
tributions I can bring to Board meetings.

 Kubo 

Much focus recently has been on the role of outside directors 
in terms of their involvement in matters related to top manage-
ment personnel affairs and executive compensation. I’d like to 
hear the thoughts of our Director Kuroda, about the Company’s 
two Advisory Committees tasked with addressing agenda items 
related to human resources and compensation, as a member of 
those Committees.

 Kuroda 

While both Committees are positioned as advisory bodies, the 
Company ensures a scheme where decisions cannot be made 
solely by the president. For example, the Human Resource 
Advisory Committee is comprised entirely of outside directors, 
with the president being the only exception, and realizes compre-
hensive discussions about extremely important personnel mat-
ters. I think the two Committees deliver an advanced level of 
corporate governance in the sense that the discussions that take 
place there are quite substantive despite their advisory role.

Unceasing reforms to improve Board 
effectiveness

 Kubo 

Next, I’d like to ask some questions about the Board’s effective-
ness evaluation process. Every year at Mitsui Chemicals we eval-
uate the effectiveness of the Board of Directors. The process 
involves all directors and corporate auditors taking a survey and 
then only outside directors and outside corporate auditors engag-
ing in discussions based on the survey results. The results are 
then discussed by the Board. And recently the Board of Directors 
at Mitsui Chemicals has been assessed by an external body to 
determine whether it is functioning effectively. Through this 
assessment process, we are trying to visualize in which areas 
our Board excels compared to other companies and what kind of 
issues need addressing.
	 We have again conducted this effectiveness evaluation for 
fiscal 2018 and are pushing ahead with some reforms, but I’d 
like to hear your opinions on the Board’s effectiveness mainly 
with respect to agenda items of the meeting only among outside 
directors and outside corporate auditors and the reform process 
implemented thus far.

 Kuroda 

Comparison scores are given as part of the effectiveness eval-
uation conducted by an external agency. In most categories, 
Mitsui Chemicals has obtained higher scores than other com-
panies. Instead of slipping into self-complacency, however, the 
Company always looks to change things that need changing and 
takes steps to make improvements every year. I think this is a 
really wonderful aspect of the Company.
	 One area that has been improved is agenda submissions stan-
dards. These are the rules on agenda items, which determine 
what topics should be discussed at Board meetings. As a result, 
our Board meetings now focus more on high-priority and strategi-
cally important matters.
	 Furthermore, because I assumed my role immediately prior 
to the announcement of the current Long-Term Business Plan, 
agenda items at Board meetings at that time were mostly 
focused on the preparation of the plan, but I get the impression 
that recent discussions have been concerned more with day-to-
day operations. Given that a medium- to long-term perspective 
is essential to management decision-making, I mentioned in the 
effectiveness evaluation survey that even when we discuss oper-
ational issues, we should also be looking at how they should be in 
the positioning of the Long-Term Business Plan. And as quickly as 
the other day, an agenda item related to this issue was included 
and discussed in the meeting of the Board of Directors.

 Bada 

While the effectiveness evaluations are carried out every year, 
I get the feeling that the opinions of outside directors and out-
side corporate auditors are being properly addressed. During the 
effectiveness evaluation meeting only among outside directors 
and outside corporate auditors, we asked if we could be informed 
about what was actually discussed during internal Management 
Committee meetings, including the kinds of questions and coun-
terviews that arose. The Company was quick to accommodate 
our request.
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	 If I was to speak my mind about the current agenda items, 
Mitsui Chemicals has various acquisition deals and large-scale 
overseas projects, but they appear to be somewhat behind 
schedule under their original plans. I think the evaluation and anal-
ysis needs to be carried out thoroughly for the future.

Embracing challenges that surpass 
customer imagination

 Kubo 

In changing our point of view slightly, I’d like to hear your thoughts 
about the corporate culture at Mitsui Chemicals.
	 As outside directors, you all not only participate in the discus-
sions at the meetings of the Board of Directors, but also visit our 
affiliated companies and business sites and engage in conversa-
tion with employees in the field. Given this, please tell us what 
you think the Company’s strengths are, as well as the areas in 
which we can improve.

 Bada 

Looking at Mitsui Chemicals from the outside, my impression is 
that the Company is trustworthy, takes things seriously, and does 
things the proper way. The Company has a long history behind it, 
and when visiting regional business sites, I get the feeling that 
the local residents think of the Company as a leading enterprise 
in town and that the employees are working with pride to meet 
their expectations. I think this is a great asset for the Company.
	 On the other hand, considering that Japanese corporate 
culture can sometimes be intolerant of outsiders, I think the 
Company needs to pay more attention to diversity.
	 In fact, after seeing so many corporate scandals occurring in 
recent years, I think a company’s foundation should be built on 
integrity. A company that causes problems has a problem with 
integrity, in my opinion. In this sense, I hold Mitsui Chemicals in 
high regard because I feel that all of its employees, from top to 
bottom, possess a great deal of sincerity.

 Kuroda 

We can also see that in the Company’s operation of Board of 
Directors meetings. If issues are ever pointed out, the Company 
willingly resolves and rectifies them. I think this degree of sincer-
ity is entrenched right throughout Mitsui Chemicals.
	 As for the Company’s business operations, some major 
restructuring took place about a year after I assumed my role 
as an outside director and the Company shifted from being a 
product-oriented organization to one that is more customer-fo-
cused. As a result of these organizational reforms, I feel that the 
culture within the Company has been gradually changing to the 
extent that products are being produced in response to external 
requests and customer demand.
	 By melding together the ability to listen to its customers and 
a framework for honestly and seriously addressing problems, I 
think Mitsui Chemicals can become a corporation that satisfies 
customers’ needs at a very high level in the future.
	 At the same time, this is rather my expectation and not a chal-
lenge, I hope the Company is going to develop astonishing and 
inspiring products that far exceed user expectations. To achieve 
this, I would like to see the Company go out on a limb on some 
occasions to take risks and embrace the challenge of doing 
something totally radical. I have heard that such challenging ideas 
are being floated in the new business development divisions, so 
I look forward to see what happens in the future.

 Kubo 

Director Yoshimaru, we are fortunate enough to welcome you as 
our outside director, and I’d like to hear what kind of expectations 
you have for the Mitsui Chemicals Group.

 Yoshimaru 

I had a fine impression of the Company before assuming my posi-
tion in the sense that the Company possessing the infrastructure 
and materials is building the foundations of modern society, so 
to speak. At the same time, however, I understand that being in 
possession of infrastructure and materials makes business much 
more complex.
	 One shareholder made a remark with expectation during 
the General Meeting of Shareholders that the Company could 

Discussion between Outside Directors and CFO
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attentive to what issues need addressing and what social chal-
lenges need solving. By doing so, the Company can take the ini-
tiative ahead in formulating the necessary measures.

 Bada 

In recent years it has gradually become clear just how serious the 
various problems of microplastics have become.
	 Solving the problems of microplastics is exceedingly difficult 
because we are not really sure where the particles floating in the 
world’s oceans have come from.
	 Simply cleaning up what is currently flowing into the seas 
without a clear view of the bigger picture of how to solve this 
issue probably isn’t the answer. I think developing new products 
is one key role Mitsui Chemicals can play as a chemical company 
in order to find a breakthrough for this problem.
	 Furthermore, this problem cannot be solved by just one com-
pany. Given that President Tannowa currently serves as Chairman 
of the Japan Chemical Industry Association, I’d also like to ask 
that the industry works together with the government to formu-
late a policy in order to identify what needs to be done.
	 Up until now, most solution proposals for major global issues 
have come out of Europe, which include the SDGs, but for this 
issue, I hope that Japan and Mitsui Chemicals can lead the way 
in coming up with sophisticated solutions.

 Yoshimaru 

I have heard that Mitsui Chemicals will set up a new produc-
tion site in the Netherlands so I think we will begin to see more 
of those activities in Europe where so many environmental-
ly-friendly countries are located. I hope that Mitsui Chemicals can 
lead the way in the region with its initiatives.

 Kubo 

Thank you everyone for your opinions. As you have all alluded 
to, social challenges can be viewed as risks, but I also think they 
present major business opportunities if we can contribute our 
own solutions. For example, increasing the weighting of Blue 
Value™ and Rose Value™ products will lead to profit growth. 
Going forward, we intend to implement a wide range of initia-
tives like this.

significantly transform its operations if it developed materials 
never seen before, such as plant-derived plastics.
	 Naturally, it is important that the Company presents vari-
ous customer-driven applications, but on a much greater level, 
I expect and believe Mitsui Chemicals is a corporation that can 
develop materials to help solve the challenges of society.

Expecting Mitsui Chemicals to play a 
leading role in solving social issues

 Kubo 

The SDGs and ESG are often talked about when it comes to 
social challenges. No matter what the industry is, companies are 
now required to contribute to solving the challenges of society 
through their business activities.
	 As such, I think the chemical industry has enormous potential 
to contribute to solving social challenges with new technologies 
and products.
	 May I ask what you think about Mitsui Chemicals’ current ini-
tiatives on ESG and the outlook for the future?

 Kuroda 

This is an interesting topic, even on a personal level. We can 
certainly expect new materials to be developed and utilized in 
various industries to greatly help solve environmental issues, 
for example, and this is without doubt a role that I think Mitsui 
Chemicals can fulfill.
	 Although the Company is engaged in a number of businesses 
related to solving social challenges, I’d like to see it pick up the 
pace of its initiatives even more. Mitsui Chemicals has developed 
its Blue Value™ and Rose Value™ products, both of which seek 
to solve social challenges. But on top of the environmental issues 
that the Blue Value™ products focus on, the Company has many 
businesses in which the Rose Value™ products can also make 
contributions, for example, by addressing the problem of food 
provisions and issues associated with an aging society.
	 Instead of taking action in response to what users and cus-
tomers point out, I’d like to see all Company employees be more 
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Corporate Governance

The Mitsui Chemicals Group considers the enhancement of corporate governance to be one of our key management pri-

orities in order to gain the trust of stakeholders and fulfill our corporate social responsibilities.

Basic Philosophy
The Mitsui Chemicals Group is constantly engaged in business activities to realize its Corporate Vision, which comprises a Corporate Mission 
and a Corporate Target. We recognize that efforts to achieve effective corporate governance as part of that process will allow us to: 
(1)� maintain and strengthen trusting relationships with shareholders and various other stakeholders of the Group, and 
(2) �create a framework that can execute transparent, fair, timely, and decisive decision making. 
Through these means, the Group can achieve sustainable growth and increased corporate value over the medium to long term.

Corporate Governance Reforms
Since the founding of Mitsui Chemicals in 1997, we have continued to carry out reforms with the aim of realizing more effective corporate 
governance.

• 1997 Formulated Corporate Mission

• �2003 Introduced an 
Executive Officer System

• �2016 Increased delegation of authority to 
executive officers

Approximately 30-40 Approximately 15 

• Appointed female directors

Approximately 10

• �2005 Established Executive Compensation Advisory 
Committee

• �2005 Established CSR 
Committee

• �2001 Risk Control 
Committee 

• 2007 Established Risk & Compliance Committee

• 1997 Established Responsible Care Committee

• �2018 Renamed to Corporate 
Sustainability Committee

• �2017 Introduced a Restricted Stock Compensation 
Plan (incentives for sustainable improvement of corporate value)

• �2017 Established a Human Resource Advisory 
Committee (ensuring transparency in officer appointments)

1-2

2	 Increased to 3

Increased to 2-3

Policy on Cross-Shareholdings
The Company acquires and holds the shares of customers and sup-
pliers in cases where we deem that such holdings can contribute 
to the medium- to long-term enhancement of our corporate value 
from the perspective of establishing and strengthening relation-
ships and forming business partnerships with them. Meanwhile, 
the Company maintains a basic policy of promptly disposing or 
reducing the amount of shares it considers no longer worth hold-
ing, and on an annual basis, has the Board of Directors examine 
whether or not it would be appropriate to continue holding such 
shares in view of the respective business alliance, status of busi-
ness transactions, capital costs, and other factors.
	 In the fiscal year under review, the examination was conducted 
at the December 2018 Board of Directors meeting. Moreover, the 
Company reviewed and sold some shares based on the results of 
the annual examinations.

Sales of cross-shareholdings in fiscal 2018

No. of issues Total sales value

Listed and non-listed 
shares

5 ¥341 million

Corporate Governance:
https://www.mitsuichem.com/en/corporate/governance.htm

Corporate Governance Guidelines
https://www.mitsuichem.com/pdf/en/corporate/governance/governance_guide_e.pdf

 * Including some of the shares which have been sold.
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Corporate Governance Framework

General Meeting of Shareholders
Makes important decisions as the supreme 
decision-making body

Board of Directors
Makes decisions, receives reports, and 
discusses business strategies, business 
plans, and other important matters related 
to the management of the Company, and 
also oversees business execution

Board of Corporate Auditors
Establishes audit policies and plans, accord-
ing to which corporate auditors conduct 
audits on the performance of duties by direc-
tors, etc.

Human Resource Advisory Committee
Reports to the Board of Directors regard-
ing the candidates for directors, corporate 
auditors, and executive officers to ensure 
the suitability and transparency of officer 
appointments

Executive Compensation Advisory 
Committee
Reports to the Board of Directors regard-
ing executive compensation to ensure the 
fairness of compensation levels and trans-
parency of performance evaluations

Management Committee
Deliberates on matters requiring prelim-
inary deliberations among those referred 
to the Board of Directors for deliberation, 
as well as important matters related to 
business execution

Company-wide Strategy Committee
Deliberates on strategies from a compa-
ny-wide perspective with respect to man-
agement and operational issues

General Meeting of Shareholders

Accounting Auditors

Election/
Dismissal

Account Auditing

Auditing

Auditing

Account 
Auditing

Election/
Dismissal

Appointment/Dismissal 
Oversight

Monitoring/
Support

Monitoring/
Support

Supervision/Support

Election/
Dismissal

President & CEO

Management 
Committee

Company-wide 
Strategy Committee

Internal Control 
Division

Subsidiaries and Affiliates

Corporate Sustainability 
Committee

Responsible
Care Committee

Risk &
Compliance 
Committee

Board of Directors
Total 8 members

(including 3 outside directors)

Human Resource Advisory 
Committee

(Composed of the president and
3 outside directors)

Executive Compensation 
Advisory Committee

(Composed of 3 representative directors, 
3 outside directors, 

and 3 outside corporate auditors)

Board of
Corporate Auditors

Total 5 members
(including 3 outside corporate auditors)

Business sectors,
corporate divisions,

R&D Center, Works and others

Auditing

Auditing

11
times

15
times

4
times

2
times

3
times

3
times

3
times

21
times

20
times

*• Number of meetings held in fiscal 2018
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Election and dismissal of senior management and nomination of candidates for directors and corporate auditors

The Company has a Human Resource Advisory Committee that 
functions as an advisory body to the Board of Directors in order 
to ensure suitability and transparency in the election of direc-
tors and corporate auditors. The Committee deliberates the pro-
posed list of candidates for directors and corporate auditors 
based on their election standards and reports the results to the 
Board of Directors. The Board of Directors decides upon the final 
list of candidates for directors and corporate auditors by giving 

the fullest possible consideration to the results report from the 
Human Resource Advisory Committee.
	 A proposal on candidates for corporate auditors is resolved by 
the Board of Directors after an agreement is obtained by the Board 
of Corporate Auditors. The Human Resource Advisory Committee 
is composed of the Company’s president and three outside direc-
tors, all of whom meet the Company’s independence standards.

Dismissal of the CEO or others in key positions

The Human Resource Advisory Committee deliberates on the dis-
missal of the CEO or others in key positions in cases where it 
is deemed that the individual has not adequately carried out his 
or her role in light of business performance or other factors, or 
where there has been a serious compliance violation.

	 If the Board of Directors receives findings from the Human 
Resource Advisory Committee constituting grounds for dismissal 
of a representative director, CEO, or others in key positions, the 
Board of Directors shall make a decision on dismissal after exam-
ining the results report.

The Board of Directors shall continually and systematically over-
sees succession planning for the CEO and others in key positions 
in light of the Corporate Vision and long-term business plan and by 
consulting with the Human Resource Advisory Committee.
	 We have positioned our Key Talent Management* system as 
a framework for succession planning encompassing the senior 
management ranks. It clearly specifies the attributes required of 
management executives, fast tracks candidates for filling future 
senior management roles, and strategically trains candidates. 

Every year divisional and company-wide committees select candi-
dates and contribute to their development by establishing custom-
ized training plans for each candidate, performing assessments, 
and implementing training. In addition, every year the Board of 
Directors receives reports on the status of such initiatives and 
provides appropriate oversight.

 See Human Resources Strategy on page 57.

Succession planning for the CEO and others in key positions

Capabilities of the Board of Directors as a whole and views on diversity

As stipulated in the Articles of Incorporation, Mitsui Chemicals 
shall have no more than 12 directors. The appropriate number 
within that range is decided as necessary in consideration of 
the authorities delegated to executive officers and the need to 
streamline decision making in response to business expansion. 
In principle, the Company appoints multiple independent outside 
directors in order to reflect in our management policies the opin-
ions of individuals from outside the Company that hold extensive 
experience and insight, such as corporate managers, academics, 

and legal professionals. This also increases the effectiveness of 
overseeing director operations.
	 The Company appoints executive directors in consideration of 
the specific characteristics of our businesses irrespective of gen-
der, race, nationality, or other factors so that the executive direc-
tors as a whole possess balanced business experience in areas 
such as corporate planning, business operations, production and 
technology, research and development, accounting and finance, 
and general, personnel, and legal affairs.
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Executive Compensation System

Basic policy

(1)	�Executive compensation needs to be commensurate with management delegation and conducive to the Group’s growth and 
earnings improvement.

(2)	�Executive compensation system needs to be devised to reflect both corporate performance and the performance of the indi-
vidual officer. 

(3)	�Executive compensation for officers in higher positions more strongly reflects their contributions to medium- to long-term 
corporate growth and can deepen shared value with shareholders.

(4)	�Executive compensation fully ensures accountability to shareholders and other related parties and guarantees transparency.

Procedure

Executive compensation is determined by resolution of the Board of Directors following deliberations and reports by the Executive 
Compensation Advisory Committee.

Composition

Director compensation system

Description Compensation Type

Medium- to long-term 
incentives

Contribute to sustained improvement in medium- to long-
term corporate value
Promote greater shared value with shareholders

Restricted stock compensation

Short-term incentives
Paid out in line with business performance for the current 
fiscal year (mainly operating income) 

Bonuses

Fixed compensation Monthly fixed compensation Basic compensation

Total compensation for directors and corporate auditors in fiscal 2018

Classification
Total Compensation 

(Millions of yen)

Total Compensation by Type (Millions of yen) Number of Persons 
ApplicableBasic Compensation Bonuses Stock Compensation

Members of the Board 
(excluding outside directors) 

371 235 77 59 6

	 Tsutomu Tannowa (117) (70) (27) (20) 	 —

Corporate auditors (excluding 
outside auditors)

 64 64 	 — 	 — 3

Outside directors and outside 
corporate auditors

75 75 	 — 	 — 6

Total 509 373 77 59 15

*1 �The figures in the table above include amounts paid to one director and one corporate auditor who retired as of the close of the Annual General Meeting of 
Shareholders for the Company’s 21st Business Term held on June 26, 2018, covering the period from April 1, 2018 through to the date of retirement.

*2 Figures in parentheses are included in the figures in the line above.

21%

Percentage of
variable

compensation

37%

Percentage of
fixed

compensation
• Basic compensation

(monthly)

63%

16%

Director
compensation

systemShort-term
incentives
• Bonuses

Medium- to
long-term incentives
• Restricted stock
 compensation

Percentages of basic compensation and incentives for directors (excluding outside directors) in fiscal 2018

Compensation for the Company’s directors (excluding out-
side directors) comprises basic compensation (fixed amount), 
bonuses, and restricted stock compensation.
	 Compensation for outside directors and corporate auditors is 

comprised solely of basic compensation (fixed amount), the level 
of which is established with reference to data from third-party sur-
veys of compensation for corporate managers in Japan and other 
information.
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Evaluation of the Effectiveness of the Board of Directors
The Company’s Board of Directors strives to improve its meetings by analyzing and evaluating the effectiveness of the Board as a whole 
every year using such methods as self-evaluations performed by directors and corporate auditors, and discussions only among outside 
directors and outside corporate auditors.

Measures taken in fiscal 2018

(1) Determining discussion items
Determined the specific approach for selecting topics for discussion items in order for the Board of Directors to engage in preliminary 
discussions on matters such as medium- to long-term business strategies and large-scale M&As.

(2) Broadening report items
Added dialogue with institutional investors as a report item.

(3) Improving advance briefings
Improved advance briefings to outside directors and outside corporate auditors, including the expansion and improvement of materials 
provided in advance and provision of feedback to their comments and questions raised at the advance briefings sessions. 

Evaluation results and future initiatives

Initiatives for further improvement

Opinions of outside directors and outside corporate auditors
• �The medium- to long-term strategies and general direction of the Company and its businesses warrant further discussion. 

Having a broad understanding of the strategies and direction in advance can be useful in discussing individual matters.

• Even though capital costs are discussed internally, they warrant further discussion at Board of Directors meetings.

• �Advance briefings are not necessarily needed for all agenda items. Advance briefings, however, need to be given a bit earlier 
for important items even if internal discussions on such items have not yet been finalized.

Corporate Governance

*Discussion items
Initiatives implemented since fiscal 2016 with the aim of strengthening management oversight functions by discussing medium- to long-term business 
strategies and large-scale M&As from an intermediate stage and providing advice to executive directors.

The director and corporate auditor self-evaluation scores in fis-
cal 2018 exceeded those of the previous fiscal year overall. The 
Company has also confirmed that the Board of Directors has been 

improved and invigorated by implementing measures to enhance 
its oversight functions and concludes that its effectiveness is fully 
sufficient, as was the case in the previous fiscal year.

Future challenges
(1) �Further broaden discussions on medium- to long-term business strategies (review the Board’s standards for agenda submis-

sions and meeting frequency, etc.) 
(2) Enhance discussions on capital costs 
(3) Further improve advance briefings 

The Company strives to review and implement necessary measures as appropriate to enhance the oversight functions of the Board of 
Directors in light of the results of the annual effectiveness evaluations.
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In order for a company to earn the trust of its stakeholders and fulfill its corporate social responsibility, it is essential that a fully developed 
and reliably operated structure for risk management and compliance promotion is in place. The Mitsui Chemicals Group is working to fur-
ther enhance those initiatives, which serve as the foundation of our corporate activities.

Risk and Compliance Management
https://www.mitsuichem.com/en/sustainability/corporate/compliance/index.htm

Risk Management System
In order to identify risks early and prevent them 
from materializing, we have introduced the Mitsui 
Chemicals Group Risk Management System. Under 
this System, in the annual budgeting of Group com-
panies and divisions, we identify key risks, conduct 
analyses of the risk conditions, and take measures 
accordingly. 
	 In addition, by using compliance checklists to 
monitor the progress of these measures, we are 
working to steadily implement PDCA for risk man-
agement, and prevent risks from materializing. 
	 This System functions as part of our internal con-
trol system, and the operational status of our internal 
control system is reported to the Board of Directors.

Risk and Compliance Management

Structure of Group Risk Management System

President & CEO

Management Committee

Corporate Sustainability Committee

Risk & Compliance Committee Internal Control Division

Head Office divisions
(including risk management 

support divisions)

Works and R&D sites

Branches

Subsidiaries and affiliates

Risk management support 
divisions

Risk management support
(Raising awareness of 

management policies and 
monitoring implementation 

status)

Audit reports

Auditing

Support

Information 
on risks Cooperation

Planning & Coordination Div. of Production 
& Technology Center, Information System 
Div., Intellectual Property Div., 
Corporate Communications Div., 
Corporate Sustainability Div., RC & Quality 
Assurance Div., Corporate Administration & 
Legal Div., Human Resources Div., Corporate 
Planning Div., Affiliates Coordination Div., 
Finance & Accounting Div.

Compliance Promotion
We placed compliance with laws and regulations as the first of the 
Mitsui Chemicals Group Action Guidelines formulated in February 
2006, declaring our intent to give priority to compliance with laws 
and regulations over the pursuit of any profit. The Group consid-
ers it important not only to build the frameworks of risk manage-
ment system, such as the Risk & Compliance Committee and the 
Risk Hotline, but also for each individual employee who drives for-
ward the framework to strictly adhere to all laws and regulations. 

With this in mind, the Group undertakes four initiatives in an effort 
to promote compliance. In addition to having prepared a basic 
Compliance Guidebook, for the purpose of raising awareness, we 
conduct compliance awareness education and training, as well 
as workplace discussions covering case studies of violations of 
laws and regulations. From a skills and knowledge perspective, 
we also conduct legal and regulatory compliance training.

Declaration on Bribery Prevention
Amid the global expansion of our business, which grows larger each 
year, and in response to the international concern over bribery that 
has grown in recent years, we have established a Group policy that 
clarifies our basic stance concerning bribery prevention.
	 We comply with all regulations regarding the prevention of 
bribery in countries and regions where Group companies have 

operations, including the Unfair Competition Prevention Act in 
Japan, the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act in the United States, and 
the Bribery Act in the United Kingdom. When we are pressed to 
choose between profit and compliance with laws and regulations, 
we will always give priority to compliance, without any hesitation.

Conducting compliance training in the Asia Pacific Region
Since fiscal 2015, Mitsui Chemicals Asia Pacific, Ltd. (MCAP), which is positioned 
as a regional corporate office for the Asian region, has taken the lead in making 
compliance guidebooks, and actively conducting training for anti-monopoly laws and 
anti-corruption in the Asia Pacific region.
	 In fiscal 2018, we conducted participatory discussion training to raise compliance 
awareness, through seminars held in Singapore, Thailand, Malaysia, and India on 
bribery rules and anti-monopoly laws, as well as examples of compliance violations 
around the world. We plan to continue conducting this training in the future.
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Responsible Care

Responsible Care (RC) is a voluntary initiative of the chemical industry. Its aim is to contribute to improving 
quality of life (QOL) and realizing a sustainable society by minimizing the impact of business operations on the 
environment and society while also providing innovative technologies and solutions that address social chal-
lenges. The Mitsui Chemicals Group has established the Responsible Care Policy below. We carry out RC activ-
ities in line with this policy and aim to live up to the expectations of and trust placed in us by local communities 
and society, and, through our businesses, contribute to the sustainable development of society.

Responsible Care:
https://www.mitsuichem.com/en/sustainability/rc/

Responsible Care Policy

Responsible Care Policy Explanation

We pledge that safety is our top prior-
ity and will focus on achieving zero acci-
dents and occupational injuries.

Determined to ensure that the lessons learned from the 2012 explosion and fire do 
not fade, we implement fundamental safety initiatives. To foster a culture of safety 
and ensure safe production activities—essential prerequisites for a company’s sur-
vival—we strive to improve and pass on technical know-how, consistently engage 
in safety activities, and aim to ensure safety throughout the entire supply chain.

We will assess the risks to people and 
the environment from our products 
throughout their lifecycles, while work-
ing to ensure the health and safety of all 
persons and to reduce the environmen-
tal impact of those products.

Through assessments of risks and the proper management of chemical substances 
throughout the entire product life cycle (from development to production, distribu-
tion, use, final consumption, and disposal), we aim to minimize the impact of chem-
ical substances on people and the environment, ensure the health of those that 
interact with the product, and mitigate environmental impacts.

We will contribute to improve quality of 
life and protect the environment through 
our business activities by developing 
beneficial technologies and products.

By solving various social challenges through our business activities such as the 
development of our Blue Value™ and Rose Value™ products, we aim to realize a 
cohesive society in harmony with the environment, as well as health and well-be-
ing in an aging society.

We will provide high-quality products 
and services that satisfy the needs of our 
customers and respond to the trust that 
they place in us.

We continue to create new value by constantly thinking about what society and our 
customers need. Taking a two-pronged approach to quality management based on 
quality control and quality assurance, we supply products and services that our cus-
tomers can be satisfied with. We aim to live up to the trust placed in us by our cus-
tomers by guaranteeing product quality from the customer’s perspective in order to 
resolve their issues.

We will actively promote the well-being 
of all our employees.

We believe that promoting the health of our employees is in itself a contribution to 
society and we take proactive steps to help every employee of the Group improve 
their health. Moreover, mental health is just as important as physical health. We 
therefore help our employees in their voluntary efforts to ensure good health and 
promote the creation of a lively work environment.

Initiatives in Fiscal 2018

Completion of risk assessments on all products

In order to contribute to the achievement of the WSSD 2020 
goals and guided by our approach to product stewardship, the 
Mitsui Chemicals Group has carried out a reassessment of risks 
for all our products.
	 We first performed a qualitative risk assessment on all our prod-
ucts and then a quantitative assessment on products for which 
results showed risk concerns. We started this risk assessment 

process in fiscal 2016 with the goal of completing it in fiscal 2020, 
but we managed to finish it ahead of schedule in fiscal 2018.
	 Going forward, we will endeavor to disclose risk information 
to our customers as part of our commitment to ensuring safety 
throughout the entire supply chain, as set out in our 2025 Long-
Term Business Plan.

Responsible Care Policy and explanations of provisions

Based on its Corporate Mission and Action Guidelines, the Mitsui 
Chemicals Group acknowledges that its business challenge is 
not only to comply with laws and regulations of the countries in 
which it does business, but also to continuously contribute to the 

improvement of safety, health, the environment, and quality, for 
the sustainable development of society. We will expand our busi-
ness focus while continuing to improve and maintain good com-
munication with all our stakeholders and business partners.
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Risk assessments as part of product stewardship

External recognition

First Japanese company to win AICM Chairman’s Award
In recognition of our ongoing Responsible Care initiatives in China, Mitsui Chemicals 
was the winner of the RC Chairman’s Award from the Chinese Association of 
International Chemical Manufacturers (AICM). In 2017, we also scooped the RC Merit 
Award for the second year running after taking it home in 2015. Underpinned by our 
RC activities over a period of more than five years and our contributions to the Chinese 
chemical industry, we are the first Japanese company to receive the Chairman’s Award.
	 This award recognized our efforts to strengthen hazard predictions and improve 
working conditions at our Chinese affiliates, the implementation of safety initiatives, 
our continuous reporting of safety and environmental data which serve as indicators 
of our performance in these endeavors, and the hosting of laboratory classes for local 
elementary schools.

Mitsui Chemicals Tohcello, Inc. and Mitsui Chemicals Agro, Inc. win JCIA Safety Award
Based on our management policy of making safety the top priority, Mitsui Chemicals 
is expanding its safety initiatives to affiliated companies within and outside Japan. 
Both Mitsui Chemicals Tohcello, Inc. (pictured left) and Mitsui Chemicals Agro, Inc. 
(pictured right) were recognized for maintaining a record of zero accidents as a result 
of improving safety awareness and implementing safety initiatives that all employees 
engaged in manufacturing and R&D take part in.

• Product risk assessments: 
99% or more (achieved 
in 2020)

• �Provision of product 
safety data:
100% (ongoing)

100%
(Completion of assessments 

on all products)

100%

Product Stewardship
(sound management of chemicals)

Implement risk management across the 
supply chain through the risk assessment 
of products and provision of information to 
customers and other stakeholders

Pursue safety, high quality, 
and fairness across the 
entire supply chain

2025 Long-Term Business Plan Target (Environment and Society) KPIs FY2018 Results

Safety & Prevention

Top management’s strong commitment to safety and prevention

On occasions such as the Company’s annual Safety Day* and 
Japan’s National Safety Week, the president reiterates to all Mitsui 
Chemicals Group employees our management policy of making 
safety the top priority. The management team, including the execu-
tive vice president, senior managing executive officers, and Center 
Executive of the Production & Technology Center, also visits the 
Group’s domestic and overseas production bases to actively engage 
in supporting and dialogue with employees about safety.
*�To ensure that the memories of the explosion and fire that occurred on April 22, 
2012 at the resorcinol production facility at the Iwakuni-Ohtake Works are never for-
gotten, April 22 of every year has been designated as Safety Day. On this day every 
year, the president leads a number of safety-related initiatives across the Company.

Product risk assessment flow Around 2,500 products in total

Started in fiscal 2016

Take steps to disclose risk information to customers

Assessment based on shipment volume and hazards

High-priority products
(completed in FY2017)

Low-priority products
(completed in 2Q FY2018)

Low-concern 
products

Completion of risk assessments on all products

Qualitative risk assessment

Quantitative risk assessment
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Fundamental safety measures

Worksite implementation

Manufacturing Department-2, Iwakuni-Ohtake Works Assessment 
dates: April 2014 and August 2018

Better communication improves workplace cul-
ture and further increases motivation
The results of the first assessment in 2014 were analyzed 
and an explanation/discussion session was organized for all 
department employees to attend. Poor safety awareness and 
a lack of communication were originally identified as weak-
nesses. As measures for improvement, safety talks with 
managers were initiated and career plans depicting one’s 
own role and future vision were formulated, which have led to 
the improvement of workplace culture and gradually boosted 
safety awareness among employees. The department will 
aim to further motivate its workers in the future.

Saitama Office, Mitsui Chemicals Industrial Products Assessment 
date: July 2018

Management-led diligent approach to safety
A total of 59 employees, including contractors, underwent a 
safety culture assessment for the first time. Scores for the 
eight axis models differed considerably depending on the per-
son’s department. A follow-up on the assessment results was 
added to the list of key issues for fiscal 2019 and various mea-
sures will be implemented up ahead, including workflow visu-
alization and study groups. The Saitama Office is endeavoring 
to improve safety awareness by talking to each and every 
employee during daily patrols.

Key points of fundamental safety measures

• �The steering committee*1, which reports directly 
to the president, deliberates Group-wide issues 
and sets the direction for activities

• �Management spearheads the participation in 
safety initiatives through active dialogue owing 
to greater opportunities for Head Office person-
nel to visit plants

• �Issues pointed out by external experts and other 
third parties are reflected in plant operations

• �General managers of Works give safety talks, 
while cross-sectional safety inspections are per-
formed by safety advisors*2

• �Meetings among foremen organized by manag-
ers help to enhance communication 

*1 �To make swift progress of fundamental safety measures, the 
members shown in the diagram meet to discuss Group-wide 
issues and set the direction of activities.

*2 �Veteran employees involved in daily activities and improving the 
overall level of safety at plants by exchanging opinions with workers.

Responsible Care

Opinions of 
external experts

Foremen meetings

Safety talks

Steering committee

Management

GM of
Works

Executives of
Works

Teams

Managerial
personnel

Managers
Supervisors

Managers
Supervisors

Manager/supervisor
support through site visits/

active dialogues

Active participation
involving management 

Production & Technology /
Safety & Environment / HR

Cross-sectional inspections by safety advisors

Foremen

Head
Office

Works

Foremen

We take very seriously the explosion and fire that occurred in 
2012 at our resorcinol production facility at the Iwakuni-Ohtake 
Works. Six years have now passed since we started to implement 
a series of fundamental safety measures to thoroughly review 
and improve the problem areas relevant to ensuring safety and 
prevention on a company-wide basis. The various measures that 

we developed through much deliberation have now been incor-
porated into daily activities and form daily tasks in ongoing activ-
ities that also entail a PDCA cycle. We will continue to advance 
these fundamental safety measures in an effort to further raise 
our level of safety.

In fiscal 2018, as a response to the fire that broke out at the Mobara 
Branch Factory in July 2017, we overhauled our systems through 
which safety technology is passed down and focused our efforts 
on reviewing our technical assessment systems. In connection 
with these changes, we also made sure to provide in-depth training 

to our line managers. Meanwhile, because a chimney fire occurred 
at the Osaka Works in June 2018 when work was being under-
taken during periodic maintenance, we are looking at how we can 
strengthen our safeguards for construction management too.

Safety culture assessment

The Mitsui Chemicals Group performs safety culture assess-
ments in collaboration with Niigata University and the Keio 
University Graduate School of System Design and Management. 
A safety culture assessment entails each person answering 110 
questions comprising the following eight axis models of safety 
culture: governance; commitment; communication; motivation; 
resource management; work management; learning; and aware-
ness. This assessment enables us to visualize the strengths and 
weaknesses of the workplace. It also serves as a useful tool for 
improving communication through repeated discussions in the 
workplace about the various hierarchical gaps that might exist.

	 In fiscal 2018 we performed safety culture assessments for 
the second time at Iwakuni-Ohtake Works, Nagoya Works, and 
Ichihara Works. It had been roughly four years since the last 
assessment and we were able to find out the effects from the 
workplace revitalization activities over that time as well as the 
impact of changes in the environment surrounding the workplace. 
Four of our affiliated companies also underwent an assessment 
for the first time.
	 We believe this assessment to be an effective method for trig-
gering self-recognition of workplace safety culture and we will 
continue to make active use of it in the future.
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11-Year Overview of Major Financial and Non-Financial Indicators

For the Fiscal Year 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2018

Operating Results (for the year) (Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S. dollars)

Net sales  ¥1,487,615  ¥1,207,735  ¥1,391,713  ¥1,454,024  ¥1,406,220  ¥1,566,046  ¥1,550,076  ¥1,343,898  ¥1,212,282  ¥1,328,526  ¥1,482,909  $13,360,744 

Operating income (loss) (45,493) (9,461) 40,548 21,564 4,290 24,899 42,040 70,926 102,149 103,491 93,427 841,761 

Profit (loss) attributable to owners of parent (95,237) (28,010) 24,854 (1,007) (8,149) (25,138) 17,261 22,963 64,839 71,585 76,115 685,783 

Reference: Ordinary income (loss) (50,768) (13,132) 38,851 22,884 9,206 22,522 44,411 63,183 97,196 110,205 102,972 927,759 

Net cash provided by operating activities 54,882 70,173 73,196 43,302 18,512 43,476 58,287 145,913 100,440 82,660 109,492 986,503 

Net cash used in investing activities (76,253) (42,913) (43,204) (42,452) (58,136) (89,781) (35,036) (36,365) (47,395) (75,041) (64,255) (578,926)

Free cash flows (21,371) 27,260 29,992 850 (39,624) (46,305) 23,251 109,548 53,045 7,619 45,237 407,577 

Financial Position (at year-end) (Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S. dollars)

Total current assets ¥   529,606  ¥   604,556  ¥   665,976  ¥   661,311  ¥   715,396  ¥   777,015  ¥   731,708  ¥   628,210  ¥   678,938  ¥   731,326  ¥   786,677 $  7,087,819

Property, plant and equipment 522,641 498,183 467,735 430,629 446,637 425,840 433,629 413,402 409,429 432,908 443,063 3,991,918 

Total intangible assets, investments and other assets 136,692 135,347 161,916 164,363 175,962 229,307 246,453 217,336 237,158 267,075 271,334 2,444,671 

Total assets 1,188,939 1,238,086 1,295,627 1,256,303 1,337,995 1,432,162 1,411,790 1,258,948 1,325,525 1,431,309 1,501,074 13,524,408 

Total current liabilities 377,858 386,203 442,298 451,507 493,908 507,056 448,499 364,259 392,783 443,105 458,758 4,133,327 

Total non-current liabilities 412,950 432,879 422,228 389,025 415,173 515,459 491,992 451,452 418,107 400,982 410,577 3,699,225 

Total shareholders’ equity & total accumulated other 
comprehensive income (loss) 349,908 377,283 383,740 367,436 376,779 352,843 406,235 381,971 449,692 511,586 551,915 4,972,655 

Interest-bearing debt 535,391 494,219 480,701 464,773 507,183 581,260 548,713 472,986 439,868 463,658 485,043 4,370,150 

Other (Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S. dollars)

Depreciation and amortization  ¥     81,374  ¥     74,878  ¥     69,237  ¥     62,749  ¥     43,864  ¥     48,143  ¥     48,251  ¥     48,640  ¥     44,057  ¥     45,654  ¥     49,504  $     446,022 

Capital expenditures 81,041 49,054 45,137 44,814 56,649 113,200 47,531 43,405 45,383 81,248 61,924 557,924 

R&D expenses 40,628 38,131 36,166 33,176 31,997 33,569 32,473 31,493 30,777 33,377 35,796 322,516 

Per Share Data*1 (Yen) (U.S. dollars)

Net income (loss) per share (basic)  ¥(627.30)  ¥(165.20)  ¥124.00  ¥(5.05)  ¥(40.70)  ¥(125.50)  ¥86.20  ¥114.75  ¥324.05  ¥358.38  ¥385.60  $3.47 

Cash dividends per share  45.00  15.00  30.00  30.00 30.00 15.00  25.00 40.00 70.00 90.00  100.00  0.90 

Ratios

Return (operating income (loss)) on sales (3.06) (0.78) 2.91 1.48 0.31 1.59 2.71 5.28 8.43 7.79 6.30 %

Return (net income (loss)) on equity  —  — 6.53  —  —  — 4.55 5.83 15.59 14.89 14.31 %

Return (operating income (loss)) on assets  —  — 3.20 1.69 0.33 1.80 2.96 5.31 7.90 7.51 6.37 %

Net D/E ratio 1.39 1.11 1.04 1.12 1.22 1.44 1.22 1.03 0.79 0.75 0.68 Times

Social Data

Employees
Consolidated 12,964 12,892 12,782 12,868 12,846 14,271 14,363 13,447 13,423 17,277 17,743 Persons

Non-consolidated 8,557 8,297 7,878 7,633 7,266 7,129 6,931 6,733 6,516 6,541 6,670 Persons

Percentage of women Non-consolidated 10.4 10.8 11.2 11.4 11.7 11.9 11.9 12.0 12.4 12.6 12.6 %

Environmental Data*2

SOI*3 frequency*4 Consolidated*5 — — 0.28 0.22 0.49 0.24 0.18 0.30 0.23 0.24 0.33

GHG emissions (Scope1, 2)*6 Consolidated*7 — 571 583 561 546 520 501 5,780 5,730 5,580 5,220 Thousand tons

Energy consumption Consolidated*8 — 99 103 99 94 89 86 95 97 95 93 PJ

Industrial waste
Landfill disposal volume (Consolidated)*5 30.1 18.8 18.1 1.1 1.2 0.6 0.7 1.0 0.9 0.7 0.7 Thousand tons

Landfill rate (Consolidated)*5 8.7 6.1 5.4 0.4 0.4 0.2 0.2 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 %

*1 �On October 1, 2017, Mitsui Chemicals conducted a 5-to-1 share consolidation. Net income (loss) per share (basic) is calculated as if the consolidation had been con-
ducted at the start of fiscal 2016. The figures listed for cash dividends per share have also been retroactively adjusted to account for the impact of the consolidation.

*2 �Due to changes in aggregation methods and legal revisions, only data that complies with such methods and laws is presented.
*3 �“Significant Occupational Injuries (SOIs)” refer to occupational injuries that resulted in absence from work or death. SOIs also include lighter occupational injuries that, 

due to the potential danger in the cause of the injury, could have led to absence from work or death. SOIs do not include those injuries that are not directly related 
to operations.

*4 SOI frequency: The number of deaths or SOIs per million hours worked.
*5 Production sites operated by Mitsui Chemicals, Inc. and domestic and overseas consolidated subsidiaries and affiliated companies eligible for Responsible Care support.



79Mitsui Chemicals Report 2019

Value creation story Sustainability Growth strategies Foundations for growth Financial data Company data

For the Fiscal Year 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2018

Operating Results (for the year) (Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S. dollars)

Net sales  ¥1,487,615  ¥1,207,735  ¥1,391,713  ¥1,454,024  ¥1,406,220  ¥1,566,046  ¥1,550,076  ¥1,343,898  ¥1,212,282  ¥1,328,526  ¥1,482,909  $13,360,744 

Operating income (loss) (45,493) (9,461) 40,548 21,564 4,290 24,899 42,040 70,926 102,149 103,491 93,427 841,761 

Profit (loss) attributable to owners of parent (95,237) (28,010) 24,854 (1,007) (8,149) (25,138) 17,261 22,963 64,839 71,585 76,115 685,783 

Reference: Ordinary income (loss) (50,768) (13,132) 38,851 22,884 9,206 22,522 44,411 63,183 97,196 110,205 102,972 927,759 

Net cash provided by operating activities 54,882 70,173 73,196 43,302 18,512 43,476 58,287 145,913 100,440 82,660 109,492 986,503 

Net cash used in investing activities (76,253) (42,913) (43,204) (42,452) (58,136) (89,781) (35,036) (36,365) (47,395) (75,041) (64,255) (578,926)

Free cash flows (21,371) 27,260 29,992 850 (39,624) (46,305) 23,251 109,548 53,045 7,619 45,237 407,577 

Financial Position (at year-end) (Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S. dollars)

Total current assets ¥   529,606  ¥   604,556  ¥   665,976  ¥   661,311  ¥   715,396  ¥   777,015  ¥   731,708  ¥   628,210  ¥   678,938  ¥   731,326  ¥   786,677 $  7,087,819

Property, plant and equipment 522,641 498,183 467,735 430,629 446,637 425,840 433,629 413,402 409,429 432,908 443,063 3,991,918 

Total intangible assets, investments and other assets 136,692 135,347 161,916 164,363 175,962 229,307 246,453 217,336 237,158 267,075 271,334 2,444,671 

Total assets 1,188,939 1,238,086 1,295,627 1,256,303 1,337,995 1,432,162 1,411,790 1,258,948 1,325,525 1,431,309 1,501,074 13,524,408 

Total current liabilities 377,858 386,203 442,298 451,507 493,908 507,056 448,499 364,259 392,783 443,105 458,758 4,133,327 

Total non-current liabilities 412,950 432,879 422,228 389,025 415,173 515,459 491,992 451,452 418,107 400,982 410,577 3,699,225 

Total shareholders’ equity & total accumulated other 
comprehensive income (loss) 349,908 377,283 383,740 367,436 376,779 352,843 406,235 381,971 449,692 511,586 551,915 4,972,655 

Interest-bearing debt 535,391 494,219 480,701 464,773 507,183 581,260 548,713 472,986 439,868 463,658 485,043 4,370,150 

Other (Millions of yen) (Thousands of U.S. dollars)

Depreciation and amortization  ¥     81,374  ¥     74,878  ¥     69,237  ¥     62,749  ¥     43,864  ¥     48,143  ¥     48,251  ¥     48,640  ¥     44,057  ¥     45,654  ¥     49,504  $     446,022 

Capital expenditures 81,041 49,054 45,137 44,814 56,649 113,200 47,531 43,405 45,383 81,248 61,924 557,924 

R&D expenses 40,628 38,131 36,166 33,176 31,997 33,569 32,473 31,493 30,777 33,377 35,796 322,516 

Per Share Data*1 (Yen) (U.S. dollars)

Net income (loss) per share (basic)  ¥(627.30)  ¥(165.20)  ¥124.00  ¥(5.05)  ¥(40.70)  ¥(125.50)  ¥86.20  ¥114.75  ¥324.05  ¥358.38  ¥385.60  $3.47 

Cash dividends per share  45.00  15.00  30.00  30.00 30.00 15.00  25.00 40.00 70.00 90.00  100.00  0.90 

Ratios

Return (operating income (loss)) on sales (3.06) (0.78) 2.91 1.48 0.31 1.59 2.71 5.28 8.43 7.79 6.30 %

Return (net income (loss)) on equity  —  — 6.53  —  —  — 4.55 5.83 15.59 14.89 14.31 %

Return (operating income (loss)) on assets  —  — 3.20 1.69 0.33 1.80 2.96 5.31 7.90 7.51 6.37 %

Net D/E ratio 1.39 1.11 1.04 1.12 1.22 1.44 1.22 1.03 0.79 0.75 0.68 Times

Social Data

Employees
Consolidated 12,964 12,892 12,782 12,868 12,846 14,271 14,363 13,447 13,423 17,277 17,743 Persons

Non-consolidated 8,557 8,297 7,878 7,633 7,266 7,129 6,931 6,733 6,516 6,541 6,670 Persons

Percentage of women Non-consolidated 10.4 10.8 11.2 11.4 11.7 11.9 11.9 12.0 12.4 12.6 12.6 %

Environmental Data*2

SOI*3 frequency*4 Consolidated*5 — — 0.28 0.22 0.49 0.24 0.18 0.30 0.23 0.24 0.33

GHG emissions (Scope1, 2)*6 Consolidated*7 — 571 583 561 546 520 501 5,780 5,730 5,580 5,220 Thousand tons

Energy consumption Consolidated*8 — 99 103 99 94 89 86 95 97 95 93 PJ

Industrial waste
Landfill disposal volume (Consolidated)*5 30.1 18.8 18.1 1.1 1.2 0.6 0.7 1.0 0.9 0.7 0.7 Thousand tons

Landfill rate (Consolidated)*5 8.7 6.1 5.4 0.4 0.4 0.2 0.2 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 %

*6 �We had disclosed our GHG emissions as a combination of both Scope 1 and Scope2 less the amount of electricity and steam sold up to 2014, but after 2015 we have 
been disclosing the sum of Scope 1 and Scope 2.

*7 �GHG emissions for overseas consolidated subsidiaries are calculated in accordance with Japan’s Law Concerning the Promotion of Measures to Cope with Global 
Warming based on energy consumption figures. (CO2 emission factors from electricity generation were retroactively changed to the International Energy Agency (IEA) 
emission factors for each country.) Data reflect the total of domestic and overseas consolidated subsidiaries.

*8 Mitsui Chemicals, Inc. and domestic and overseas consolidated subsidiaries.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

In the fiscal period under review (the twelve-month period from April 1, 2018 to March 31, 2019, here-
inafter “fiscal 2018”), the economy of the United States enjoyed constant recovery. On the other hand, 
the state of trade policy in the United States, the Chinese economy’s deceleration and geopolitical risks 
remained unsettled, and careful attention was paid to fluctuations in the global economy.
	 In Japan, although attention was paid to the impact of successive natural disasters on the economy, 
it continued to gradually recover amid steady corporate profit and improvements in the employment and 
incomes.
	 In the domestic chemical industry, despite fluctuations in crude oil prices, naphtha crackers operated at 
a consistently high capacity on the back of firm domestic demand.
	 Under these circumstances, based on the 2025 Long-Term Business Plan, the Mitsui Chemicals 
Group (hereafter “the Group”) worked for business expansion and growth in the three business domains; 
Mobility, Health Care, and Food & Packaging, while also creating and developing Next Generation Business 
and further enhancing competitiveness in the area of Basic Materials.
	 In Mobility, the Group responded to the expansion of new needs, namely, light-weighted, electric-pow-
ered and more comfortable products in the automotive and ICT industries. The Group is constructing its 
first production base in Europe for polypropylene compounds used in automotive bumpers. In addition, the 
Group decided to establish a new plant for LUCANT™, which contributes to the higher functionality of lubri-
cants, in order to greatly boost production. Also, the Group worked to enhance its ability to offer custom-
er-driven solutions with ARRK Corporation, which is a global development support company that was made 
into a consolidated subsidiary in January 2018.
	 In Health Care, in line with the declining birthrates and aging populations of advanced countries and 
the growing economies in emerging markets, health consciousness is rising and individual wants and 
needs are diversifying. Sales of our ophthalmic lens materials, which boast the largest share of the glob-
al market, remained healthy. In addition, the Group accelerated the rollout of the next-generation eyewear 
TouchFocus™, which enables the wearer to easily switch between near- and far-sightedness at a touch. In 
nonwoven fabrics, the Group started operations at two expanded domestic plants to meet demand for pre-
mium disposable diapers, which are gaining popularity in Asia. In addition, the Group focused on expanding 
sales of the high-performance nonwoven fabric AIRYFA™, which is both soft and strong.
	 In Food & Packaging, food security is becoming a major social issue as the global population continues 
to grow. With standards of living in Asia rising, the packaging field is seeing growing needs for more high-
ly functional products with a smaller environmental footprint. In performance films and sheets, the Group 
deftly responded to robust demand by optimizing and expanding its production system. In addition, new 
plant construction proceeded in Taiwan, a major source of demand, for facilities to produce ICROS™ Tape, 
which commands the largest share of the global market for protective tape used in semiconductor manu-
facturing processes. In agrochemicals, the Group accelerated the development of new products and contin-
ued building its business base in regions with high demand, especially Asia, thereby accelerating the global 
expansion of the agrochemical business.

Overview
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	 In Basic Materials, which is centered on petrochemicals and basic chemicals, the Group provides materi-
als to various manufacturing fields, including automobiles, residences, consumer electronics, infrastructure 
and packaging. In fiscal 2018, demand remained firm despite the effects of fluctuations in naphtha prices. 
Osaka Works’ utility plant, where a fire occurred in June 2018, resumed operations in August following a 
swift recovery. The Group will continue striving to prevent a recurrence and to ensure safe and stable oper-
ations. In addition, the Group will continue working to establish a stable earnings base resilient to economic 
fluctuations mainly by expanding its lineup of differentiated products and maintaining a high utilization rate 
through local production for local consumption.

Net Sales
Net Sales increased 154.4 billion yen, or 11.6%, compared with the previous fiscal year to 1,482.9 billion 
yen. This was mainly attributable to healthy sales and increase in sales prices due to the rise in naphtha and 
other raw materials and fuel prices.
	 Net sales overseas were 672.1 billion yen, an increase of 1.0% compared with the previous fiscal year 
to 45.3% in the total net sales.

Operating Income
Operating income was 93.4 billion yen, a decrease of 10.1 billion yen or 9.7% year on year. This result was 
due to increase of raw material prices and fixed costs, although sales were healthy.

Ordinary Income 
Ordinary income was 103.0 billion yen, decreased 7.2 billion yen or 6.6% year on year. This result was due 
to decrease of operating income, in spite of increase of share of profit of entities accounted for using equi-
ty method.

Extraordinary Income and Losses 
Extraordinary income and losses improved 18.3 billion yen year on year to 2.3 billion yen profit. This result 
was due to a decrease of impairment loss and because insurance income was received, in spite of a loss 
on fire and increase of loss on sales and disposal of non-current assets.
	 As a result of the aforementioned factors, profit before income taxes amounted to 105.3 billion yen, an 
increase of 11.1 billion yen, or 11.8% year on year.

Profit Attributable to Owners of Parent
Profit attributable to owners of parent after accounting for income taxes and non-controlling interests was 
76.1 billion yen, an increase of 4.5 billion yen, or 6.3% compared with the previous fiscal year. Earnings per 
share for the period were 385.60 yen.

Business Segment Results
The status of each segment during fiscal 2018 is as follows.

Operating Results

Segment 
Information
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Mobility

Net sales increased 64.4 billion yen compared with the previous fiscal year to 395.4 billion yen and com-
prised 27% of total sales. Operating income increased 0.4 billion yen to 42.7 billion yen year on year. The 
increase in income was due to expansion of sales volume in spite of increase in raw material prices and 
fixed costs.
	 In elastomers, which are primarily used in automotive components and as resin modifiers, the Group 
was affected by increase of raw material prices although the Group was able to meet healthy demand.
	 In performance compounds, the Group was able to satisfy healthy demand especially in Asia and 
Europe.
	 In performance polymers, which are primarily used in information communication technology (ICT)-
related products, sales remained steady.
	 In overseas polypropylene compound businesses, the Group was able to meet increasing production 
volume of the automobile industry mainly in South East Asia.
	 The Group absorbed the newly consolidated subsidiaries of ARRK Group in solution business as of 
January 2018.

Millions of yen

Mobility 2019/3 2018/3 Change (%)

Net sales ¥395,365 ¥331,038 19.4

Operating income (loss) 42,736 42,296 1.0

Total assets 348,824 316,313 10.3

Depreciation and amortization 12,582 10,264 22.6

Capital expenditures 17,256 32,179 (46.4)

Health Care 

Net sales increased 7.5 billion yen year on year to 146.6 billion yen and comprised 10% of total sales. 
Operating income increased 2.8 billion yen to 13.6 billion yen year on year, mainly due to firm sales overall. 
In vision care materials, sales of ophthalmic lens materials were firm.
	 In nonwoven fabrics, sales were affected by decreasing export of disposable diapers from Japan.
	 In dental materials, sales were stable.

Millions of yen

Health Care 2019/3 2018/3 Change (%)

Net sales ¥146,598 ¥139,120 5.4

Operating income (loss) 13,622 10,830 25.8

Total assets 195,713 200,684 (2.5)

Depreciation and amortization 9,412 9,501 (0.1)

Capital expenditures 6,579 16,018 (58.9)
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Food & Packaging

Net sales increased 3.6 billion yen compared with the previous fiscal year to 199.4 billion yen and com-
prised 13% of total sales. On the other hand, operating income decreased 2.1 billion yen to 17.8 billion yen 
year on year, due to decrease of sales volume and increase of raw material prices and fixed costs.
	 In coatings & engineering materials, profit was impacted by an increase in raw material prices.
	 In performance films and sheets, profit was affected by decrease of sales volume and increase of raw 
material prices.
	 In agrochemicals, sales were firm.

Millions of yen

Food & Packaging 2019/3 2018/3 Change (%)

Net sales ¥199,435 ¥195,840 1.8

Operating income (loss) 17,791 19,924 (10.7)

Total assets 232,533 221,550 5.0

Depreciation and amortization 7,496 6,961 7.7

Capital expenditures 15,019 9,508 58.0

Basic Materials

Net sales increased 78.8 billion yen compared with the previous fiscal year to 716.5 billion yen and account-
ed for 48% of total sales. On the other hand, operating income decreased 11.1 billion yen year on year, 
to 27.8 billion yen. This was mainly attributable to the effect of stock revaluation caused by fluctuations in 
naphtha prices in spite of firm domestic demand.
	 Naphtha cracker operating rate were lower than the previous fiscal year due to a fire at Osaka Works’ 
utility plant, but kept at high level overall. Performances of polyethylene and polypropylene were firm, 
backed by domestic demand.
	 In phenols, demand was firm and the overseas market environment was at higher level than the previ-
ous fiscal year.

Millions of yen

Basic Materials 2019/3 2018/3 Change (%)

Net sales ¥716,524 ¥637,700 12.4

Operating income (loss) 27,776 38,903 (28.6)

Total assets 598,707 606,896 (1.3)

Depreciation and amortization 14,826 14,467 2.5

Capital expenditures 18,453 15,752 17.1
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Others 

Net sales increased 0.1 billion yen to 25.0 billion yen, comprised 2% of total sales. On the other hand, oper-
ating loss was 1.4 billion yen, increase of 0.5 billion yen compared to the previous year.

Millions of yen

Others 2019/3 2018/3 Change (%)

Net sales ¥24,987 ¥24,828 0.6

Operating income (loss) (1,375) (906) -

Total assets 55,129 50,052 10.1

Depreciation and amortization 3,857 3,118 23.7

Capital expenditures 3,870 6,110 (36.7)

Net Sales
Billions of yen

Increase (Decrease)

2019/3 2018/3 Total
Volume 

contribution
Price 

contribution

Mobility ¥  395.4 ¥  331.0 ¥  64.4 ¥49.0 ¥15.4

Healthcare 146.6 139.1 7.5 5.9 1.6

Food & Packaging 199.4 195.8 3.6 (2.7) 6.3

Basic Materials 716.5 637.7 78.8 18.1 60.7

Others 25.0 24.9 0.1 — 0.1

Total  ¥1482.9  ¥1328.5  ¥ 154.4  ¥70.3 ¥84.1

Operating Income (Loss)
Billions of yen

Increase (Decrease)

2019/3 2018/3 Total
Volume 

contribution Price*

Fixed and 
other cost 
differential

Mobility ¥42.7 ¥ 42.3 ¥  0.4 ¥4.6 ¥(1.4) ¥  (2.8)

Healthcare 13.6 10.8 2.8 2.5 (0.1) 0.4

Food & Packaging 17.8 19.9 (2.1) (0.6) (0.7) (0.8)

Basic Materials 27.8 38.9 (11.1) (0.5) (2.6) (8.0)

Others (1.4) (0.9) (0.5) — — (0.5)

Adjustments (7.1) (7.5) 0.4 — — 0.4

Total ¥93.4 ¥103.5 ¥(10.1) ¥6.0 ¥(4.8) ¥(11.3)

*Price = Price contribution + Variable cost differential
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Assets

Total assets at the end of fiscal year stood at 1,501.1 billion yen, an increase of 69.8 billion yen compared 
with the end of the previous fiscal year.

Liabilities

Total liabilities at the end of fiscal year increased 25.3 billion yen compared with the previous fiscal year-
end to 869.4 billion yen. Interest-bearing debt amounted to 485.0 billion yen, an increase of 21.3 billion 
yen compared with the previous fiscal year-end. As a result, the interest-bearing debt ratio was 32.3%, a 
decrease of 0.1 percentage point.

Net Assets

Net assets totaled 631.7 billion yen, an increase of 44.5 billion yen compared with the previous fiscal year-
end. The ratio of shareholders’ equity to total assets was 36.8%, 1.1 percentage point increase from the 
previous fiscal year-end.
	 Accounting for the aforementioned factors, the net debt-equity ratio stood at 0.68 at the end of the fis-
cal year, 0.07 point decrease from the previous fiscal year-end.
	 Consolidated balance sheet as of March 31,2018 is restated due to amendments to accounting stan-
dards for tax effect accounting. Consequently, comparison with the end of the previous fiscal year is calcu-
lated based on the restated figures.

Cash Flows

Cash and cash equivalents (hereafter called “cash”) increased 31.0 billion yen to 109.8 billion yen as of the 
end of this fiscal year compared with the previous fiscal year-end.

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net cash provided by operating activities increased 26.8 billion yen to 109.5 billion yen due to increase of 
profit before income taxes.

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities decreased 10.8 billion yen compared with the previous fiscal year to 
64.3 billion yen, mainly because cash outflows from the tender offer for ARRK Corporation shares in the 
previous fiscal year is no longer recorded.

Financial Position

Capital Resources 
and Liquidity
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Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Net cash used in financing activities increased 3.9 billion yen compared with the previous fiscal year to 14.1 
billion yen due primarily to the acquisition of treasury stock.

Cash Flows-Related Performance Indicators
2019/3 2018/3 2017/3 2016/3 2015/3

Shareholders’ equity ratio (%) 36.8 35.7 33.9 30.3 28.8

Shareholders’ equity ratio on a market value basis (%) 34.7 46.6 41.5 29.8 27.4

Ratio of interest-bearing debt to cash flows 4.4 5.6 4.4 3.2 9.4

Interest coverage ratio (times) 19.9 14.8 17.3 20.7 7.7

Notes:	 Shareholders’ equity ratio: shareholders’ equity to total assets.
	 Shareholders’ equity ratio on a market value basis: market capitalization to total assets.
	 Ratio of interest-bearing debt to cash flows: interest-bearing debt to cash flows.
	 Interest coverage ratio: cash flows to interest paid.
	 Each of the indicators was calculated using consolidated financial figures.
	� The market capitalization was calculated by multiplying the closing share price as of the end of the period with the number 

of shares outstanding (excluding treasury stock).
	 Operating cash flow figures have been used for cash flow calculations.
	� Interest-bearing debt is the portion of total debt booked on the consolidated balance sheet on which interest is being paid. 

Interest paid is the amount of interest paid as reported in the consolidated statements of cash flows.
	� Consolidated balance sheet as of FY2017 is restated due to amendments to accounting standards for tax effect accounting. 

Consequently, shareholders’ equity ratio and shareholders’ equity ratio on a market value basis are calculated based on the 
restated figures.

Fund Procurement

In connection with its fund procurement activities, the Group adopts the following basic policies.
1. �Maintain a high credit rating so that low-cost funds can be procured, mainly through bonds, loans and 

commercial paper whenever necessary.
2. Utilize a certain level of indirect financing to preserve the stability of fund procurement activities.
3. �Employ securitization and other schemes to liquidate assets in an effort to diversify fund procurement means.

Financial Liquidity

With regard to asset efficiency, the Group will ensure sufficient levels of liquidity in hand while at the same 
time securing alternative sources of fund procurement, including credit and overdraft facilities.
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The Company and its consolidated subsidiaries undertook capital expenditures totaling ¥61.9 billion in fiscal 
2018. This amount includes expenditures on intangible fixed assets as well as long-term prepaid expenses.
 Expenditures by business segment were as follows.

Mobility

In Singapore (Mitsui Elastomers Singapore Pte. Ltd.), TAFMER™ increase production facility was under 
construction.
	 The total amount of capital expenditures in the Mobility segment was ¥17.3 billion.

Health Care

The total amount of capital expenditures in the Health care segment was ¥6.6 billion.

Food & Packaging 

In Taiwan (Mitsui Chemicals Tohcello, Inc. Group), ICROS™ TAPE increase production facility was under 
construction.
	 The total amount of capital expenditures in the Food & Packaging segment was ¥15.0 billion.

Basic Materials

The total amount of capital expenditures in the Basic Materials segment was ¥18.5 billion.

Others

The total amount of capital expenditures in the Others segment was ¥3.9 billion.

Corporate Expenses

The total amount of capital expenditures recorded under corporate expenses was ¥0.7 billion and was relat-
ed to the development of new businesses.
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Research and development at Mitsui Chemicals, Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries is conducted by their 
research and development divisions. The research and development expenses in the fiscal year ended 
March 31, 2019 amounted to ¥35.8 billion. The Group’s research and development organizations are as list-
ed as below:

R&D Planning & Coordination Division
Mitsui Chemicals Singapore R&D Center Pte. Ltd.
Synthetic Chemicals Laboratory
Polymeric Materials Laboratory
Functional Materials Laboratory
New Products Development laboratory
Process Technology Center
Mobility Development Center

	 Major research and development issues confronting corporate research, development for new business-
es and each business sector, and their research and development expenses for fiscal 2018 are briefly stat-
ed as follows.

Corporate Research

The Company is playing a central role in the fundamental technology development for each segment’s prod-
uct family. The Company also engages in the basic research of computing science and advanced analytical 
technique to support its product development. Mitsui Chemicals Singapore R&D Centre Pte Ltd. is leading 
the basic research in consideration of new business creation in Asia.
	 Research and development expenses relating to corporate research amounted to ¥4.8 billion and were 
allocated among all reportable segments.

Development for New Businesses

The Company is playing a central role in research and development activities by project, all of which are 
aimed at new businesses creation in the Mobility domain and the Healthcare domain. In fiscal 2018, the 
Company worked on the development and assessment of metal and resin injection assembly technology, 
which lightens automobiles and improves mileage, components of lithium-ion batteries for a higher safety 
level, and technology development for solar power consultation.
	 In the Food & Packaging domain, the Company and Mitsui Chemicals Tohcello, Inc. collaborated in 
research and development for new business development.
	 Research and development expenses related to new businesses creation amounted to ¥3.6 billion. 
Those are presented in corporate expenses and other segments.
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Mobility

The Company engages in the development of elastomers, performance compounds, and performance poly-
mer resins in the Mobility domain. In fiscal 2018, the Company placed considerable weight on development 
activities encompassing new polyolefin elastomers for automobiles and packaging, engineering plastic com-
pounds for use as heat-resistant materials for automobiles, and polyolefins for ICT.
	 Research and development expenses related to this segment were ¥8.2 billion.

Health Care

The Company engages in development in the Healthcare domain in such areas as vision-care, oral-care 
materials, and highly functional non-woven fabrics for both hygiene material use and medical use. Kulzer 
GmbH and Sun Medical Co., Ltd. engage in the product development of dental materials. In fiscal 2018, 
efforts were mainly directed toward materials for glass lenses and dental materials.
	 Research and development expenses related to this segment were ¥4.4 billion for the fiscal year.

Food & Packaging

Mitsui Chemicals Tohcello Inc. takes the lead in developing food packaging materials and fabricated prod-
ucts, including Food & Packaging in the fields of IT and energy. Mitsui Chemicals Agro, Inc. engages in 
agrochemical research and development. In fiscal 2018, priority was placed on food packaging materials, 
integrated circuit and semiconductor materials, solar cell components, highly functional agrochemicals, and 
pesticides for disinfection.
	 Research and development expenses related to this segment were ¥10.1 billion.

Basic Materials

The Company engages in the research and development of phenol and its derivative products, industrial 
chemicals such as hydroquinone, purified terephthalic acid (PTA), and PET resin for strengthening its busi-
ness in the Basic Materials domain.
	 In addition, Mitsui Chemicals & SKC Polyurethanes Inc. are active in the development of such functional 
products as polyurethane foam materials in the Mobility domain.
	 Also, together with Prime Polymer Co., Ltd. the Company is developing such highly-functional products 
as PP compounds in the Mobility domain and highly-functional catalysts that strengthen the competitive-
ness of its polyolefin resin in the Food & Packaging domain.
	 Research and development expenses related to this segment were ¥4.7 billion.



90 Mitsui Chemicals Report 2019

Financial data

Business Risks

The Mitsui Chemicals Group recognizes that management activi-
ties may be threatened by a wide range of conceivable and appar-
ent risks. For this reason, the Group is dedicated to crafting 
initiatives able to prevent or minimize the escalation of these risks.
	 The items detailed below represent some of the risks that 
could potentially and adversely impact the Group’s future oper-
ating performance and financial position. Readers are cautioned 
that this partial list does not constitute all of the risks faced by 
the Group.
	 Please note that the risks discussed below were those 
deemed relevant as of March 31, 2019.

(1) External operating environment
The Mitsui Chemicals Group businesses may be influenced by 
certain elements of the operating environment outside of the 
Group, including customer, market, alliance partner trends and 
the business operations of rival firms as well as changes in legal 
systems. In the event that actual circumstances upon which 
the Group’s business strategies are based change as a result of 
these environmental influences, the Group’s ability to implement 
these strategies on schedule could be impaired, and anticipated 
results may not materialize. The Group takes into consideration 
risks posed by such unavoidable environmental changes. With 
respect to products, a variety of risks could conceivably result in 
a decline in profitability. These include, but are not limited to, an 
erosion of market demand, loss of customers, and deterioration 
in market conditions caused by oversupply due to increased pro-
duction capacity at rival firms or the market entry of low-priced 
products. Profitability may also decline due to drastic changes in 
the cost of raw materials, as well as the impact of supply stop-
pages due to accidents or bankruptcies at raw material manu-
facturers. Other conceivable risks include an increase in the tax 
burden attributable to changes in legal systems. The occurrence 
of any or all of these risks could adversely impact the Group’s 
business development as well as operating performance and 
financial position.

(2) Overseas activities (Country risk)
The Mitsui Chemicals Group is involved in a wide range of activ-
ities outside of Japan, from the export of products to produc-
tion at overseas bases. These activities overseas are subject to 
various risks, including difficulties in securing personnel, deteri-
oration in political and economic conditions, regulations regard-
ing imports and foreign capital, deterioration in public safety 
and security, labor unrest, and the outbreak of terrorism or war-
fare. The occurrence of such risks could impair the Group’s busi-
ness activities overseas, which may adversely impact operating 
performance.

(3) Changes in laws and tightening of regulations
The business development of the Mitsui Chemicals Group is 
subject to a wide range of legal acts and ordinances, which 
include a variety of licensing and regulatory requirements. 
Consequently, the Group remains keenly aware that its contin-
ued survival as a corporation is contingent on strict compliance 
with laws and regulations.
	 To this end, the Group has enacted training programs that 
incorporate examples of legal violations within and outside 
Mitsui Chemicals together with other initiatives aimed at pro-
moting legal compliance. Other risks faced by the Group are the 
prospect of major changes to or a tightening of laws relevant 
to the Group, or unexpected amendments to laws and regula-
tions overseas. Restrictions placed on the Group’s activities, as 
well as increased costs associated with compliance with amend-
ed laws or more stringent regulations, could impair the Group’s 
business activities, thus adversely impacting operating perfor-
mance and financial position.

(4) Causes of changes in segment operating performance
The Mitsui Chemicals Group engages in the manufacture and 
sale of a wide array of products led by mobility, health care, food 
& packaging and basic materials. Assumed risks for each key 
business are as follows.

i. Mobility
Mobility segment products are primarily produced from ethylene, 
propylene, and other naphtha derivatives. As described below, 
segment product earnings could be adversely impacted by tem-
porary delays in passing higher raw material prices on to product 
prices in the event of a sharp increase in naphtha supply prices 
caused by circumstances in the Middle East or global econom-
ic conditions.

ii. Health Care
Health care segment product earnings could be adversely 
impacted by price competition caused by the business expan-
sion of rivals.

iii. Food & Packaging
Performance films and sheets products are primarily produced 
from polyethylene, polypropylene and other naphtha derivatives 
handled by the Basic Materials segment. As described below, 
those product earnings could be adversely impacted by delays 
in passing higher raw material prices on to product prices in the 
event of a sharp swing in naphtha supply prices caused by cir-
cumstances in the Middle East or global economic conditions.
	 Agrochemicals earnings could be adversely affected by such 
factors as changing global weather patterns, the appearance of 
harmful insects, and fluctuations in the cost of tests required for 
the development and registration of new products.
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iv. Basic Materials
Petrochemicals products are primarily produced from naphtha. 
Naphtha supply volume and prices could fluctuate sharply due 
to circumstances in the Middle East or global economic condi-
tions. In the event of a sharp increase or decrease in naphtha 
prices, segment product earnings could be adversely impacted 
by delays in passing such fluctuations on to product prices, the 
emergence of inventory valuation losses, or other factors.
	 Basic chemicals products could be adversely impacted by a 
rapid deterioration in market conditions caused by an oversup-
ply, as these products are vulnerable to fluctuations in this over-
crowded market.

(5) Financial risks
Major financial risks faced by the Mitsui Chemicals Group are 
increased concerns about customer confidence due to deteri-
orating economic conditions, currency exchange losses due to 
dramatic fluctuations in exchange rates, and rising interest rates 
and a reluctance to lend by financial institutions with respect to 
fund procurement.
	 The occurrence of any one of these risks could adversely 
impact the Group’s financial position.

(6) Impairment of fixed assets
The Mitsui Chemicals Group has adopted the accounting stan-
dard for the impairment of fixed assets. Looking ahead, any 
downturn in profitability due to a marked deterioration in oper-
ating conditions or other factors, or drop in the market value of 
fixed assets held by the Group, may cause impairment losses to 
be recorded and have an adverse impact on the Group’s operat-
ing performance and financial position.

(7) Impairment of marketable securities
The Mitsui Chemicals Group holds marketable securities with 
fair values that are mainly from its customers and financial insti-
tutions in order to maintain and strengthen relationships with 
them. Any incidence of impairment attributable to a substantial 
drop in the market prices of marketable securities held by the 
Group may adversely impact the Group’s operating performance 
and financial position.

(8) Deferred tax assets
The Mitsui Chemicals Group determines the collectability of 
deferred tax assets based on forecasts and assumptions relat-
ed to future taxable income. Any change in the forecasts and 
assumptions related to future taxable income may adversely 
impact the operating performance and financial position of the 
Group. Any change in a key parameter that is significant enough 
to require a revision of deferred tax asset calculations, such as 
a shift in the income tax rate due to an amendment to the taxa-
tion regulations, may also adversely impact the operating perfor-
mance and financial position of the Group.

(9) Retirement benefits plans
The retirement benefit obligation and retirement benefit expens-
es applicable to employees and former employees of the Mitsui 
Chemicals Group are calculated on an actuarial valuation basis 
that incorporates a variety of factors, including a wide range of 
basic rates and pension asset investment yields. Any fluctua-
tions in retirement benefit expenses attributable to such factors 
as a drop in the market values of pension assets, a change in 
the interest rate, or a revision to the retirement benefit plan may 
adversely impact the operating performance and financial posi-
tion of the Group.

(10) �Corporate acquisition, capital alliance and business 
reorganization

Aiming for a transformation of its business portfolio, the Mitsui 
Chemicals Group engages in a variety of activities, including the 
acquisition of companies and the establishment of business alli-
ances. Any failures to realize the growth synergy benefits or oth-
er expected merits due to such factors as a deterioration in the 
operating environment of the Group and the companies in which 
it is invested, may adversely impact the operating performance 
and financial position of the Group.
	 In addition, business reorganization, along with the with-
drawal from unprofitable businesses and the liquidation of sub-
sidiaries or affiliates, may also adversely impact the operating 
performance and financial position of the Group.

(11) Accidents and disasters
In an effort to ensure workplace safety, the Mitsui Chemicals 
Group vigorously promotes OHSAS 18001 certification of the 
occupational health and safety management systems used in its 
production activities at works. Business continuity plans have 
also been formulated to quickly reestablish the business chain of 
command in the event that head office functions are affected by 
a major earthquake in the Tokyo metropolitan area. Nevertheless, 
the Group faces risks from a variety of unforeseen events, includ-
ing damage to production facilities caused by natural disas-
ters such as major earthquakes and typhoons, plant accidents, 
and accidents during the course of product transport or storage 
at warehousing facilities outside the Group. The occurrence of 
these risks may not only impede plant operations or the supply of 
products to customers, thereby adversely impacting the Group’s 
operating performance and financial position, but could also 
potentially undermine the social standing of the Group.
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(12) Quality
To uphold its quality assurance system, the Mitsui Chemicals 
Group vigorously promotes efforts to obtain ISO 9001 certifica-
tion of the quality management systems at each of its plants. 
Nevertheless, the Group faces risks from the discovery of 
unforeseen quality defects in its products and product liability 
lawsuits. Because many the Group’s products are used as raw 
materials in finished consumer goods, the appearance of large-
scale customer recalls due to product defects could potential-
ly result in massive damages. The occurrence of these risks may 
not only adversely impact the Group’s operating performance 
and financial position, but could also potentially undermine the 
social standing of the Group.

(13) The environment
As a group that handles a wide range of chemical substances, 
the Mitsui Chemicals Group has made harmony with the envi-
ronment one of its long-term management targets. In addition to 
ensuring compliance with environmental laws and regulations, 
the Group promotes initiatives for reducing greenhouse gas 
(GHG) emissions and minimizing the amount of industrial waste 
sent to landfill for final disposal.
	 Environmental risks relevant to the Group include the incur-
rence of new social responsibilities due to tighter environmental 
regulations or changes in public sentiment regarding environ-
mental protection, as well as the discovery of environmen-
tal pollution stemming from actions taken by the Group prior to 
the enactment of environmental laws. These and other situa-
tions could increase costs associated with legal compliance and 
environmental countermeasures and have other consequenc-
es, which could adversely impact the Group’s operating perfor-
mance and financial position.

(14) Intellectual property
Possessing a significant array of proprietary technologies and 
expertise, the Mitsui Chemicals Group manages information in 
accordance with strict rules. Nevertheless, information leaks 
could potentially occur due to unforeseen circumstances. In addi-
tion, the Group could potentially be subject to unfavorable court 
judgement in the event of a future legal dispute concerning intel-
lectual property. The occurrence of such events could adversely 
impact the Group’s operating performance and financial position.

(15) Climate change
The negative effects of climate change are becoming increasing-
ly severe and are thus recognized as social issues that must be 
addressed globally, as demonstrated by the Paris Agreement and 
the SDGs. The process of manufacturing chemicals emits large 
amounts of greenhouse gases (GHG), the primary cause of cli-
mate change. The physical risks associated with climate change 
and risks pertaining to the transition to a low-carbon society have 
the potential to adversely affect the Group’s business results and 
financial position. Accordingly, how we address climate change 
is considered a key issue (materiality) at the Mitsui Chemicals 
Group. In terms of physical risks, extreme weather events such 
as typhoons and floods have the potential to become more seri-
ous. Such events could lower production capacity at the Group’s 
manufacturing bases and trigger an increase in costs from dam-
ages. Moreover, in regions where there is a heightened water 
risk owing to fluctuations in rainfall, production activity at our 
manufacturing bases may be limited by restrictions on water use 
as a result of drought.
	 As for risks pertaining to the transition to a low-carbon soci-
ety, in the event GHG emission restrictions are introduced, for 
example, a carbon tax or an emissions trading scheme, prices 
for raw materials and fuel will likely increase and subsequent-
ly push up the cost of electricity. This could drive up the Group’s 
manufacturing costs and dent earnings. And depending on the 
circumstances surrounding the shift to a low-carbon society, we 
may see more calls from our stakeholders for products that help 
reduce GHG emissions. In responding to those demands, the 
Group’s earnings could decline as a result of higher R&D expens-
es and an increase in capital expenditure for implementing new 
technologies.
	 The Mitsui Chemicals Group considers climate change to be 
not only a risk, but also an opportunity. As such, we aim to solve 
social issues related to climate change through our business 
activities. Furthermore, in order to clarify our stance on address-
ing risks and opportunities related to climate change and assess-
ing its impacts, we support the recommendations of the Task 
Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (TCFD). In this 
way we continue to assess the impacts of climate change and 
engage in appropriate information disclosure.

Business Risks
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(16) Marine plastic pollution
Plastic is a material that brings convenience and benefits and 
also helps solve challenges in society by, for example, reduc-
ing food waste and improving energy efficiency thanks to its 
advanced functionality. However, concerns have been raised 
for some time now about the problem of plastic ending up in 
the world’s oceans—the result of a few million tons of plas-
tic waste being disposed inappropriately every year. Interest 
in this issue has grown rapidly in recent years as companies 
begin to focus more on the Paris Agreement, the SDGs, and 
ESG topics, and as a result, active steps are being taken world-
wide to find a solution.
	 Various controls are being considered globally with govern-
ments and corporations considering the use of recycled plas-
tic and enacting self-imposed bans on single-use plastics. The 
potential use of alternative materials is also gaining momen-
tum. Measures that seek to recycle resources are also gaining 
traction, particularly in Europe, with all companies in the value 
chain examining ways to reuse and recycle. These movements 
could negatively affect the Group’s business results and finan-
cial position. 
	 The Mitsui Chemicals Group recognizes that the problem of 
plastic is one key issue that the chemicals industry must take 
the initiative to address.
	 As part of our efforts to address the aforementioned risks, 
we work together with plastic-related value-chain corporations 
and industry bodies and participate in the activities of the Japan 
Initiative for Marine Environment and the Alliance to End Plastic 
Waste. The latter comprises global plastic value-chain corpo-
rations that contribute large sums of money to fund efforts to 
end plastic waste in the environment. Through these activities 
we are working to solve problems by actively contributing to 
the development of infrastructure for waste control, promotion 
of innovation, education and awareness activities, and clean-up 
campaigns. We also think the recycling of resources presents 
business opportunities. We will continue to promote the recy-
cling of resources by examining a broad range of possibilities, 
including the use of recycled raw materials, the development 
of recycling technologies such as chemical recycling to turn 
automotive scrap into useful plastic, and the design of products 
that consider the recycling such as the packaging made of a 
single material.
	 As a manufacturer and provider of plastic materials that 
have thus far solved various challenges in society, the Mitsui 
Chemicals Group will continue to proactively address the prob-
lem of plastic in the environment.
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Consolidated Balance Sheets
MITSUI CHEMICALS, INC. AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES
March 31, 2019 and 2018

Millions of yen

Thousands of U.S. 
dollars 

(Note 4)

2019/3 2018/3 2019/3

ASSETS Current assets

Cash and deposits (Notes 14 and 16) ¥   111,056 ¥     80,209 $  1,000,595 

Notes and accounts receivable-trade (Note 16) 310,591 306,899 2,798,369 

Inventories (Note 5) 301,890 274,342 2,719,975 

Accounts receivable-other 55,288 60,356 498,135 

Other 8,570 10,193 77,214 

Allowance for doubtful accounts (718) (673) (6,469)

Total current assets 786,677 731,326 7,087,819 

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 

Buildings and structures 352,569 343,555 3,176,583 

Accumulated depreciation (241,112) (236,725) (2,172,376)

Buildings and structures, net 111,457 106,830 1,004,207 

Machinery, equipment and vehicles 1,030,949 997,563 9,288,666 

Accumulated depreciation (889,978) (865,884) (8,018,542)

Machinery, equipment and vehicles, net 140,971 131,679 1,270,124 

Land 156,556 159,018 1,410,541 

Construction in progress 18,515 20,462 166,817 

Other 78,508 76,136 707,343 

Accumulated depreciation (62,944) (61,217) (567,114)

Other, net 15,564 14,919 140,229 

Total property, plant and equipment 443,063 432,908 3,991,918 

Intangible assets

Goodwill 5,061 5,684 45,599 

Other 24,324 25,792 219,155 

Total intangible assets 29,385 31,476 264,754 

Investments and other assets 

Investment securities (Notes 16 and 17) 151,847 159,428 1,368,114 

Net defined benefit asset (Note 6) 42,653 41,549 384,296 

Deferred tax assets (Note 19) 11,386 10,673 102,586 

Other 38,511 26,369 346,977 

Allowance for doubtful accounts (2,448) (2,420) (22,056)

Total investments and other assets 241,949 235,599 2,179,917 

Total non-current assets 714,397 699,983 6,436,589 

Total assets ¥1,501,074 ¥1,431,309 $13,524,408 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



95Mitsui Chemicals Report 2019

Value creation story Sustainability Growth strategies Foundations for growth Financial data Company data

Millions of yen

Thousands of U.S. 
dollars 

(Note 4)

2019/3 2018/3 2019/3

LIABILITIES AND Current liabilities
NET ASSETS Notes and accounts payable-trade (Note 16) ¥   163,908 ¥   162,179 $  1,476,782 

Short-term loans payable (Notes 7 and 16) 92,733 94,348 835,508 

Current portion of long-term loans payable (Note 7) 57,571 24,834 518,704 

Commercial papers (Notes 7 and 16) 10,000 20,000 90,098 

Current portion of bonds payable (Notes 7 and 16) 426 15,426 3,838 

Accounts payable-other 79,245 69,299 713,983 

Income taxes payable (Note 19) 9,372 7,956 84,440 

Provision for directors’ bonuses 175 158 1,577 

Provision for repairs 13,089 13,585 117,930 

Asset retirement obligations 5 — 45 

Other (Notes 7 and 19) 32,234 35,320 290,423 

Total current liabilities 458,758 443,105 4,133,328 

Non-current liabilities

Bonds payable (Note 7) 66,438 31,864 598,594 

Long-term loans payable (Notes 7 and 16) 254,850 274,099 2,296,153 

Deferred tax liabilities (Note 19) 11,471 13,240 103,352 

Provision for directors’ retirement benefits 243 250 2,189 

Provision for repairs 2,682 2,880 24,164 

Provision for environmental measures 551 675 4,964 

Net defined benefit liability (Note 6) 56,428 55,220 508,406 

Asset retirement obligations 3,203 4,330 28,858 

Other (Notes 7 and 19) 14,711 18,424 132,545 

Total non-current liabilities 410,577 400,982 3,699,225 

Total liabilities 869,335 844,087 7,832,553 

Net assets

Shareholders’ equity (Note 12)

Capital stock 125,205 125,125 1,128,075 

Capital surplus 89,406 89,327 805,532 

Retained earnings 348,202 291,000 3,137,237 

Treasury stock (29,869) (19,842) (269,114)

Total shareholders’ equity 532,944 485,610 4,801,730 

Accumulated other comprehensive income (Note 13)

Valuation difference on available-for-sale securities 21,421 26,558 192,999 

Deferred gains or losses on hedges (3) (16) (27)

Foreign currency translation adjustment 4,195 5,037 37,796 

Remeasurements of defined benefit plans (6,642) (5,603) (59,843)

Total accumulated other comprehensive 
income (loss) 18,971 25,976 170,925 

Non-controlling interests 79,824 75,636 719,200 

Total net assets 631,739 587,222 5,691,855 

Total liabilities and net assets ¥1,501,074 ¥1,431,309 $13,524,408 
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Millions of yen

Thousands of U.S. 
dollars 

(Note 4)

2019/3 2018/3 2019/3

Net sales ¥	1,482,909 ¥	1,328,526 $	13,360,744
Cost of sales (Notes 6 and 9) 1,166,577 1,019,160 10,510,650
Gross profit 316,332 309,366 2,850,094
Selling, general and administrative expenses (Notes 6 and 9) 222,905 205,875 2,008,333
Operating income (loss) 93,427 103,491 841,761
Non-operating income and expenses

Non-operating income
Interest income 2,063 1,471 18,587
Dividends income 2,799 3,317 25,218
Share of profit of entities accounted for using equity method 10,807 7,063 97,369
Rent income 819 744 7,379
Insurance income 419 2,318 3,775
Other 3,890 2,408 35,049
Total non-operating income 20,797 17,321 187,377

Non-operating expenses
Interest expenses 5,534 5,478 49,860
Loss on suspension of operations 893 588 8,046
Foreign exchange losses 372 1,201 3,352
Other 4,453 3,340 40,121
Total non-operating expenses 11,252 10,607 101,379

Ordinary income (loss) 102,972 110,205 927,759
Extraordinary income and losses

Extraordinary income
Gain on sales of non-current assets 79 2,778 712
Gain on sales of investment securities 3,663 767 33,003
Gain on transfer of business 743 591 6,694
Gain on forgiveness of debts — 2,010 —
Gain on revision of retirement benefit plan — 326 —
Insurance income 11,368 — 102,424
Total extraordinary income 15,853 6,472 142,833

Extraordinary losses
Loss on disposal of non-current assets 4,352 2,389 39,211
Loss on sales of non-current assets 75 9 676
Impairment loss (Note 10) 1,454 15,012 13,100
Loss on valuation of investment securities 171 5,059 1,541
Loss on fire (Note 11) 7,476 — 67,357
Total extraordinary losses 13,528 22,469 121,885

Profit (loss) before income taxes 105,297 94,208 948,707
Income taxes—current 18,879 18,819 170,096
Income taxes—deferred (105) (3,629) (946)

Total income taxes 18,774 15,190 169,150
Profit (loss) 86,523 79,018 779,557
Profit (loss) attributable to non-controlling interests 10,408 7,433 93,774
Profit (loss) attributable to owners of parent ¥	 76,115 ¥	 71,585 $	 685,783

Amounts per share of common stock:

Yen
U.S. dollars  

(Note 4)

Earnings per share ¥385.60 ¥358.38 $3.474
Cash dividends per share 100.00 90.00 0.901

Consolidated Statements of Operations
MITSUI CHEMICALS, INC. AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES
For the years ended March 31, 2019 and 2018
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Millions of yen

Thousands of U.S. 
dollars 

(Note 4)

2019/3 2018/3 2019/3
Profit (loss) ¥86,523 ¥79,018 $779,557
Other Comprehensive income (loss) (Note 13)

Valuation difference on available-for-sale securities (5,581) 6,405 (50,284)
Deferred gains or losses on hedges 4 (5) 36
Foreign currency translation adjustments 1,632 (2,311) 14,704
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans (969) 6,975 (8,731)
Share of other comprehensive income (loss) of entities accounted for 
using equity method (2,383) 3,049 (21,470)

Total other comprehensive income (loss) (7,297) 14,113 (65,745)
Comprehensive income (loss) ¥79,226 ¥93,131 $713,812

Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to:
Owners of parent ¥69,109 ¥85,667 $622,660
Non-controlling interests 10,117 7,464 91,152

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
MITSUI CHEMICALS, INC. AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES
For the years ended March 31, 2019 and 2018

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets
MITSUI CHEMICALS, INC. AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES
For the years ended March 31, 2019 and 2018

Millions of yen

Capital stock Capital surplus Retained earnings Treasury stock 

Valuation 
difference on 

available-for-sale 
securities

Deferred gain 
(loss) on hedges

Foreign currency 
translation 

adjustments

Remeasurements 
of defined 

benefit plans  
Non-controlling 

interests Total net assets

Balance at April 1, 2017 ¥125,053 ¥90,491 ¥236,961 ¥(14,708) ¥20,337 ¥(25) ¥4,211 ¥(12,628) ¥64,943 ¥514,635 
Issuance of new shares 72 72 — — — — — — — 144 
Dividends of surplus — — (18,007) — — — — — — (18,007)
Profit attributable to owners of parent — — 71,585 — — — — — — 71,585 
Purchase of treasury stock — — — (5,141) — — — — — (5,141)
Disposal of treasury stock — (0) — 7 — — — — — 7 
Change in ownership interest of 
parent related to transactions with 
non-controlling interests — (1,236) — — — — — — — (1,236)

Change of scope of equity method — — — — — — — — — —
Cumulative effects of changes in 
accounting policies — — 462 — — — — — — 462

Net changes of items other than 
shareholders’ equity — — — — 6,221 9 826 7,025 10,693 24,774 

Balance at April 1, 2018 ¥125,125 ¥89,327 ¥291,000 ¥(19,842) ¥26,558 ¥(16) ¥5,037 ¥(5,603) ¥75,636 ¥587,222 
Issuance of new shares 80 80 — — — — — — — 160 
Dividends of surplus — — (18,878) — — — — — — (18,878)
Profit attributable to owners of parent — — 76,115 — — — — — — 76,115 
Purchase of treasury stock — — — (10,033) — — — — — (10,033)
Disposal of treasury stock — (1) — 6 — — — — — 5 
Change in ownership interest of 
parent related to transactions with 
non-controlling interests — — — — — — — — — — 

Change of scope of equity method — — (35) — — — — — — (35)
Cumulative effects of changes in 
accounting policies — — — — — — — — — — 

Net changes of items other than 
shareholders’ equity — — — — (5,137) 13 (842) (1,039) 4,188 (2,817)

Balance at March 31, 2019 ¥125,205 ¥89,406 ¥348,202 ¥(29,869) ¥21,421 ¥(3) ¥4,195 ¥(6,642) ¥79,824 ¥631,739 

Thousands of U.S. dollars (Note 4)

Capital stock Capital surplus Retained earnings Treasury stock 

Valuation 
difference on 

available-for-sale 
securities

Deferred gain 
(loss) on hedges

Foreign currency 
translation 

adjustments

Remeasurements 
of defined 

benefit plans  
Non-controlling 

interests Total net assets

Balance at April 1, 2018 $1,127,354 $804,820 $2,621,858 $(178,773) $239,283 $(144) $45,382 $(50,482) $681,467 $5,290,765 
Issuance of new shares 721 721 — — — — — — — 1,442
Dividends of surplus — — (170,089) — — — — — — (170,089)
Profit attributable to owners of parent — — 685,783 — — — — — — 685,783 
Purchase of treasury stock — — — (90,395) — — — — — (90,395)
Disposal of treasury stock — (9) — 54 — — — — — 45 
Change in ownership interest of 
parent related to transactions with 
non-controlling interests — — — — — — — — — — 

Change of scope of equity method — — (315) — — — — — — (315)
Cumulative effects of changes in 
accounting policies — — — — — — — — — — 

Net changes of items other than 
shareholders’ equity — — — — (46,283) 117 (7,586) (9,361) 37,733 (25,381)

Balance at March 31, 2019 $1,128,075 $805,532 $3,137,237 $(269,114) $192,999 $(27) $37,796 $(59,843) $719,200 $5,691,855

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Millions of yen

Thousands of U.S. 
dollars 

(Note 4)

2019/3 2018/3 2019/3
Cash flows from operating activities

Profit (loss) before income taxes ¥105,297 ¥94,208 $	 948,707
Depreciation 48,853 44,835 440,157
Amortization of goodwill 651 819 5,865
Impairment loss 1,454 15,012 13,100
Increase (decrease) in net defined benefit liability 417 323 3,757
Decrease (increase) in net defined benefit asset (1,085) (4,393) (9,776)
Increase (decrease) in allowance for doubtful accounts 97 (7) 874
Increase (decrease) in provision for repairs (694) 414 (6,253)
Increase (decrease) in provision for environmental measures (126) (57) (1,135)
Interest and dividends income (4,862) (4,788) (43,806)
Insurance income (11,787) (2,318) (106,199)
Interest expenses 5,534 5,478 49,860
Share of (profit) loss of entities accounted for using equity method (10,807) (7,063) (97,369)
Loss (gain) on sales of investment securities (3,650) (814) (32,886)
Loss (gain) on valuation of investment securities 171 5,059 1,541
Loss on disposal of non-current assets 1,050 1,067 9,460
Loss (gain) on sales of non-current assets (4) (2,769) (36)
Decrease (increase) in notes and accounts receivable—trade (3,255) (23,381) (29,327)
Decrease (increase) in inventories (26,629) (26,419) (239,923)
Increase (decrease) in notes and accounts payable—trade 1,300 13,786 11,713
Other, net 9,870 (15,314) 88,929

Subtotal 111,795 93,678 1,007,253
Interest and dividends income received 8,975 9,011 80,863
Interest expenses paid (5,507) (5,583) (49,617)
Proceeds from insurance income 11,353 2,752 102,288
Income taxes paid (17,124) (17,198) (154,284)

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 109,492 82,660 986,503
Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (53,191) (49,587) (479,241)
Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment 4,016 337 36,183
Purchase of intangible assets (2,564) (3,085) (23,101)
Proceeds from sales of intangible assets — 2,502 —
Purchase of long-term prepaid expenses (189) (1,346) (1,703)
Purchase of investment securities (23,952) (3,986) (215,803)
Proceeds from sales and redemption of investment securities (Note 17) 9,434 1,521 84,999
Proceeds from transfer of business 743 1,486 6,694
Purchase of shares of subsidiaries resulting in change in scope 
 of consolidation (Note 14) — (16,350) —
Payments of long-term loans receivable (90) (5,208) (811)
Other, net 1,538 (1,325) 13,857

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (64,255) (75,041) (578,926)
Cash flows from financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in short-term loans payable (1,739) 4,072 (15,668)
Increase (decrease) in commercial papers (10,000) 20,000 (90,098)
Proceeds from long-term loans payable 38,221 29,711 344,364
Repayment of long-term loans payable (25,166) (19,476) (226,741)
Proceeds from issuance of bonds payable 35,000 10,000 315,344
Redemption of bonds payable (15,426) (24,284) (138,985)
Proceeds from stock issuance to non-controlling shareholders 355 — 3,198
Proceeds from sales of treasury stock 5 7 45
Purchase of treasury stock (10,033) (5,141) (90,396)
Cash dividends paid (18,878) (18,007) (170,087)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (6,335) (6,397) (57,077)
Payments from changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries 
 that do not result in change in scope of consolidation — (552) —
Other, net (138) (138) (1,244)

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (14,134) (10,205) (127,345)
Effect of exchange rate change on cash and cash equivalents (92) (1,170) (828)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 31,011 (3,756) 279,404
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 78,828 82,884 710,226
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents resulting from exclusion of 
 subsidiaries from consolidation — (300) —
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period (Note 14) ¥109,839 ¥78,828 $	 989,630

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
MITSUI CHEMICALS, INC. AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES
For the years ended March 31,  2019 and 2018
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
MITSUI CHEMICALS, INC. AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES
For the years ended March 31, 2019 and 2018

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of Mitsui Chemicals, Inc. (the “Company”) and its 
consolidated subsidiaries have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accept-
ed in Japan and have been compiled from those prepared by the Company as required under the Financial 
Instruments and Exchange Act, which are different in certain respects as to the application and disclosure 
requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards.
	 Certain amounts in the prior years’ financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the current 
year’s presentation.

1. �Basis of 
preparation

2. �Significant 
accounting 
policies 

a. Consolidation 
The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and significant 
companies over which the Company exerts control through majority voting rights or the existence of certain 
conditions evidencing substantial control by the Company. 
	 The assets and liabilities of the consolidated subsidiaries, including the portions attributable to non-con-
trolling shareholders, were evaluated using the fair value at the time the Company acquired control of the 
respective subsidiaries. The excess of the cost of investments in consolidated subsidiaries over the net 
assets acquired is deferred as goodwill and is amortized over a period of 20 years or less. 
	 All significant intercompany transactions and accounts have been eliminated in consolidation. 
	 Investments in non-consolidated subsidiaries and affiliates, in which the Company has the ability to exer-
cise significant influence over their operating and financial policies, are accounted for by the equity method. 
	 Non-consolidated subsidiaries and affiliates in the process of liquidation are stated at cost or less. 
	 As of March 31, 2019, the Group comprised 116 consolidated subsidiaries, one more than the pre-
vious fiscal year. This reflected the inclusion of two new companies, including Mitsui Prime Advanced 
Composites Europe B.V., and the exclusion of one former subsidiary, Acomon Inc. was due to liquidation. 
	 The equity method is applied to 39 non-consolidated subsidiaries and affiliates. 

b. Foreign currency translation 
Receivables and payables denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Japanese yen at the year-
end rates. The Company and its consolidated subsidiaries have reported foreign currency translation adjust-
ments as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) and non-controlling interests. 

c. Inventories 
Inventories are stated primarily at the lower of cost or market. Costs are determined by the weighted-aver-
age method. 

d. Securities 
Securities other than equity securities issued by subsidiaries and affiliates, which are held by the Company 
and its subsidiaries, are classified into two categories: held-to-maturity or other securities. 
	 Held-to-maturity securities are carried at amortized cost. 
	 Marketable securities classified as other securities are carried at fair value with changes in unrealized 
holding gain or loss, net of the applicable income taxes, included directly in net assets. Non-marketable 
securities classified as other securities are stated at cost determined by the moving-average method. Costs 
associated with other securities sold are determined by the moving-average method. 

e. Property, plant and equipment (except for leased assets) 
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation is calculated by the straight-line method. 
	 Maintenance, repairs and minor renewals are expensed as incurred. Major renewals and improvements 
are capitalized. 

f. Intangible assets (except for leased assets) 
Amortization of intangible assets of the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries is calculated by the 
straight-line method. The cost of software intended for internal use is amortized using the straight-line 
method over its estimated useful life (five years). 

g. Research and development expenses 
Expenses relating to research and development activities are charged to income as incurred. 
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h. Leases 
The Company and its consolidated subsidiaries lease certain machinery and equipment under noncancel-
able leases referred to as finance leases. 
	 Depreciation of leased assets is computed by the straight-line method over the respective lease terms. 

i. Derivatives and hedge accounting 
The Company and its consolidated subsidiaries state derivative financial instruments at fair value and recog-
nize any changes in fair value as gains or losses unless the derivatives are being utilized for hedging purposes. 
	 If the derivatives meet certain hedging criteria, the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries defer rec-
ognition of gains or losses resulting from changes in the fair values of the derivatives positions until the 
related losses or gains on the hedged items are recognized. 
	 In cases where forward foreign exchange contracts used as hedges meet certain hedging criteria, the 
existing foreign currency receivables or payables are translated at their respective contract rates. 
	 In addition, if interest rate swap contracts meet certain hedging criteria, the net amount to be paid or 
received under these swap contracts is added to or deducted from the interest on the assets or liabilities 
for which the swap contracts were executed. 
	 The following summarizes hedging derivative financial instruments used by the Group and items hedged:

Hedging instruments	 Items hedged
Forward foreign exchange contracts	 Foreign currency receivables and payables
Interest rate swap contracts	 Interest on loans
Currency swap contracts	 Foreign currency loans

j. Allowance for doubtful accounts 
The allowance for doubtful accounts is provided in an amount sufficient to cover probable losses on collection. 
	 It consists of the estimated uncollectible amounts with respect to identified doubtful accounts and an 
amount calculated by a formula based on actual collection losses incurred in the past with respect to the 
remaining receivables. 

k. Retirement benefit plans 
The net defined benefit liability and net defined benefit asset have been recorded mainly at the amount cal-
culated based on the retirement benefit obligation and the fair value of the pension plan assets as of the 
balance sheet date.
	 The retirement benefit obligation for employees is attributed to each period mainly by the straight-line 
method over the estimated years of service of the eligible employees.
	 Actuarial gain or loss is amortized by the straight-line method over a certain number of years (10 to 13 
years), which are shorter than the average remaining years of service of the employees. 
	 Prior service cost is recognized as incurred or is amortized by the straight-line method over a certain 
number of years (10 years), which is shorter than the average remaining years of service of the employees. 
	 Unrecognized actuarial gain or loss and unrecognized prior service cost are recognized as remeasurements 
of defined benefit plans in accumulated other comprehensive income after adjustment for tax effects.

l. Accrued directors’ bonuses 
The Company and its consolidated subsidiaries provided for the accrual of the estimated amount of direc-
tors’ bonuses at the end of the year. 

m. Accrued directors’ and corporate auditors’ retirement benefits 
Certain domestic consolidated subsidiaries accrue liabilities to secure the aggregate amount payable for 
directors’ and corporate auditors’ retirement benefits, pursuant to the internal regulations. 

n. Provision for repairs 
Provision for repairs of production facilities at plants is recorded based on estimated expense at the end of the year.

o. Provision for environmental measures 
Provision for environmental measures is recorded based on estimated expense at the end of the year. 

p. Accounting method of significant deferred assets
Stock issuance expenses and bond issuance costs are accounted for as expenses in full amount when incurred.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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q. Amounts per share of common stock 
The computation of earnings per share is based on the weighted average number of shares of common 
stock outstanding during each year. 
	 Cash dividends per share represent the actual amount applicable to each respective year. 

r. Amortization of goodwill 
Goodwill arising from the difference between the acquisition costs and the value of the underlying net 
assets of acquired entities at the date of acquisition is amortized over periods not exceeding 20 years on a 
straight-line basis. Any immaterial amounts are fully recognized as expenses as incurred.

s. Cash and cash equivalents 
In preparing the consolidated statements of cash flows, cash on hand, readily-available deposits and short-
term highly liquid investments with maturities not in excess of three months from the date of purchase are 
considered cash and cash equivalents. 

t. Consolidated taxation system 
The Company and certain of its subsidiaries have adopted the consolidated taxation system, with the 
Company registered as the consolidated taxation parent company.

u. Consumption taxes 
Transactions subject to consumption taxes are recorded in amounts exclusive of consumption taxes. 

3. �Accounting 
changes

a. Changes in accounting principles
Amendment to “Implementation Guidance on Tax Effect Accounting”

“Implementation Guidance on Tax Effect Accounting” (the Accounting Standards Board of Japan (ASBJ) 
Guidance No. 28, February 16, 2018) was amended and applied from the beginning of the current fiscal 
year. Regarding taxable temporary differences related to subsidiary shares, etc., we have switched to the 
method of recording deferred tax liabilities except in cases where there is no intention to sell said shares in 
the foreseeable future.
	 As a result, in the consolidated balance sheets as of March 31, 2018, deferred tax liabilities decreased 
¥618 million, retained earnings increased ¥462 million, and non-controlling interests increased ¥156 million.
	 In addition, net assets per share as of March 31, 2018 increased ¥2.32.

b. Accounting standards issued but not yet adopted
The company and its domestic consolidated subsidiaries

• �“Accounting Standard for Revenue Recognition” (ASBJ Statement No. 29, March 30, 2018)
• �“Implementation Guidance on Accounting Standard for Revenue Recognition” (ASBJ Guidance No. 30, 

March 30, 2018)

(1) Overview

The International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) 
worked together to develop a comprehensive accounting standard for revenue recognition. In May 2014, 
they announced the line item “Revenue from Contracts with Customers,” which the IASB has named IFRS 
15 and the FASB has named Topic 606. IFRS 15 is to be adopted from fiscal year beginning on or after 
January 1, 2018, and Topic 606 is to be adopted from fiscal year beginning on or after December 15, 2017. 
In light of this, ASBJ has developed a comprehensive accounting standard for revenue recognition and 
announced it along with guidance on implementation.
	 Following the ASBJ’s development of an accounting standard for revenue recognition, the Company’s 
basic policy has been to first adopt the basic principles of IFRS 15 with an eye toward compatibility when 
comparing financial statements, which is one advantage of attempting to be consistent with IFRS 15. From 
there, the Company then decides on accounting standards. In addition, if there are items that require atten-
tion be paid to practices in Japan to date, the Company will add substitute treatment as long as compatibili-
ty for comparisons is not hindered.

(2) Planned adoption date

To be applied from the beginning of the fiscal year ending March 31,2020

(3) Impact of the adoption of the accounting standard

The impact on consolidated financial statements of the adoption of the accounting standard and implemen-
tation guidance for revenue recognition is still being evaluated at present.
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Overseas consolidated subsidiaries

• IFRS “16 Leases”

(1) Overview

In principle, the standard requires lessees to recognize assets and liabilities on the balance sheet for all leases.

(2) Planned adoption date

To be applied from the beginning of the fiscal year ending March 31,2020

(3) Impact of the adoption of the accounting standard

The impact on consolidated financial statements of the adoption of IFRS 16 Leases is still being evaluated 
at present.

c. Changes in presentation
Adoption of “Partial Amendments to Accounting Standard for Tax Effect Accounting”

“Partial Amendments to Accounting Standard for Tax Effect Accounting” (ASBJ Statement No. 28, 
February 16, 2018) have been applied, effective from the beginning of the current fiscal year. Accordingly, 
deferred tax assets are presented under investments and other assets, and deferred tax liabilities are pre-
sented under non-current liabilities.
	 As a result, in the consolidated balance sheet for the previous fiscal year, deferred tax assets under cur-
rent assets have decreased ¥18,226 million, while deferred tax assets under investments and other assets 
have increased ¥5,431 million. In addition, “Other” under current liabilities has decreased ¥93 million, while 
deferred tax liabilities under non-current liabilities have decreased ¥12,702 million. Deferred tax assets and 
deferred tax liabilities for the same taxable entity are shown to be offset each other out, therefore total 
assets have declined ¥12,795 million when compared to before the accounting changes.
	 Matters provided in explanatory Note 8 “Accounting Standard for Tax Effect Accounting” (excluding the 
total amount of valuation allowances) and Note 9 prescribed in paragraphs 3-5 of the “Partial Amendments 
to Accounting Standard for Tax Effect Accounting” have been added to the footnotes concerning tax effect 
accounting. However, matters pertaining to the previous fiscal year have not been included in accordance 
with the transitional handling prescribed in paragraph 7 of the “Partial Amendments to Accounting Standard 
for Tax Effect Accounting”.

The translation of yen amounts into U.S. dollar amounts is included solely for the convenience of readers, 
using ¥110.99=US$1.00, the approximate rate of exchange in effect on March 31, 2019. The translation 
should not be construed as a representation that yen amounts have been, or could in the future be, con-
verted into U.S. dollars at the above or any other rate.

Inventories at March 31, 2019 and 2018 were as follows:

Millions of yen
Thousands of

U.S.dollars

2019/3 2018/3 2019/3

Finished goods ¥206,544 ¥183,195 $1,860,924

Work in process 7,492 6,421 67,502

Raw materials and supplies 87,854 84,726 791,549

Total ¥301,890 ¥274,342 $2,719,975

The Company and most of its consolidated subsidiaries have either funded or unfunded defined bene-
fit plans and/or defined contribution plans. In addition, some overseas consolidated subsidiaries apply 
International Financial Reporting Standards for the recognition, measurement, and disclosure of employees’ 
retirement benefits.
	 In addition, the Company and certain of its consolidated subsidiaries have set up an employees’ retire-
ment benefit trust. 
	 Under these plans, all eligible employees are entitled to certain benefits based on their abilities, occupa-
tional roles, work performances, length of service and certain other factors. 
	 The liabilities and expenses for severance and retirement benefits are determined based on the 
amounts calculated actuarially under certain assumptions. 

5. Inventories

4. �U.S. dollar 
amounts 

6. �Retirement 
benefit plans

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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The changes in the retirement benefit obligation during the year ended March 31, 2019 and 2018 were as follows:
Movements in defined benefit obligation

Millions of yen
Thousands of

U.S.dollars

2019/3 2018/3 2019/3

Defined benefit obligation as of April 1 ¥180,839 ¥188,204 $1,629,327

Service cost 5,222 5,398 47,049

Interest cost 384 417 3,460

Actuarial gains/losses 713 (885) 6,424

Past service cost (16) (155) (144)

Benefits paid (10,673) (11,170) (96,162)

Decrease due to transfer to defined contribution plan — (2,373) —

Others (368) 1,403 (3,316)

Defined benefit obligation as of March 31 ¥176,101 ¥180,839 $1,586,638

Movements in plan assets

Millions of yen
Thousands of

U.S.dollars

2019/3 2018/3 2019/3

Plan assets as of April 1 ¥167,168 ¥164,107 $1,506,154

Expected return on plan assets 3,295 3,314 29,687

Actuarial gains/losses (2,373) 4,211 (21,380)

Employer contributions 1,922 5,078 17,317

Benefits paid (7,504) (7,564) (67,610)

Decrease due to transfer to defined contribution plan — (2,376) —

Others (181) 398 (1,631)

Plan asset as of March 31 ¥162,327 ¥167,168 $1,462,537

Funded status of the pension plans

Millions of yen
Thousands of

U.S.dollars

2019/3 2018/3 2019/3

Funded retirement benefit obligation ¥131,752 ¥136,451 $1,187,062

Plan assets at fair value (162,327) (167,168) (1,462,537)

(30,575) (30,717) (275,475)

Unfunded retirement benefit obligation 44,350 44,388 399,585

Net liability for retirement benefits in the balance sheet 13,775 13,671 124,110

Net defined benefit liability 56,428 55,220 508,406

Net defined benefit asset (42,653) (41,549) (384,296)

Net liability for retirement benefits in the balance sheet ¥13,775 ¥13,671 $124,110

Retirement benefit expenses

Millions of yen
Thousands of

U.S.dollars

2019/3 2018/3 2019/3

Service cost ¥5,222 ¥5,398 $47,049

Interest cost 384 417 3,460

Expected return on plan assets (3,295) (3,314) (29,687)

Amortization of actuarial gains/loss 2,012 2,092 18,128

Amortization of past service cost 1 5 9

Premium severance pay 432 580 3,892

Total ¥4,756 ¥5,178 $42,851

Regarding the year ended March 31, 2018, extraordinary income of ¥326 million was recorded due to the 
transition from the defined benefit plan to the defined contribution plan.
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Remeasurements of defined benefit plans before tax effect included in other comprehensive income

Millions of yen
Thousands of

U.S.dollars

2019/3 2018/3 2019/3

Past service cost ¥	 6 ¥	 5 $	 54

Actuarial gains/losses 930 (6,926) 8,379

Total ¥	936 ¥	(6,921) $	8,433

Remeasurements of defined benefit plans before tax effect included in accumulated other comprehensive income

Millions of yen
Thousands of

U.S.dollars

2019/3 2018/3 2019/3

Unrecognized past service cost ¥	 (52) ¥	 (58) $	 (469)

Unrecognized actuarial gains/losses 7,611 6,681 68,574

Total ¥	7,559 ¥	6,623 $	68,105

Plan assets by category (%)

2019/3 2018/3

Bonds 34% 35%

Stocks 46% 46%

Cash and deposits 1% 2%

Other 19% 17%

Total 100% 100%

A retirement benefit trust set up for the corporate pension plan accounted for 21% of total plan assets at 
March 31, 2019 and 2018.

Discount rate and rate of expected return on the pension plan assets

2019/3 2018/3

Discount rate Principally
0.0%

Principally
0.1%

Rate of expected return on the pension plan assets Principally
2.2%

Principally
2.2%

Rate of estimated future salary increases Principally
1.0-5.0%

Principally
1.0-5.0%

Expenses for defined contribution plans

Millions of yen
Thousands of

U.S.dollars

2019/3 2018/3 2019/3

Total ¥623 ¥525 $5,613

(1) Loans payable breakdown

Millions of yen
Thousands of

U.S.dollars

2019/3 2018/3 2019/3

Short-term loans payable (0.80%) ¥	 92,733 ¥	 94,348 $	 835,508

Current portion of long-term loans payable (0.87%) 57,571 24,834 518,704

Current portion of lease obligations 222 213 2,000

Long-term loans payable due in 2021—2029 (0.97%) 254,850 274,099 2,296,153

Long-term lease obligations due in 2021—2028 2,803 2,874 25,255

Commercial papers (△0.01%) 10,000 20,000 90,098

¥	418,179 ¥	416,368 $	3,767,718

The aforementioned interest rate is an average, shown as the weighted average interest rate on the out-
standing balance as of March 31, 2019.

7. Loans and bonds

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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	 The average interest rate for lease obligations is omitted because lease obligations are recorded on the bal-
ance sheet in an amount that includes the equivalent in interest, which is included in the total lease amount:

Maturities of Long-term loans payable due within 5 years:

Year ending March 31, Millions of yen
Thousands of

U.S.dollars

2021 ¥42,450 $382,467

2022 43,620 393,008

2023 47,589 428,768

2024 41,717 375,863

Maturities of lease obligations due within 5 years:

Year ending March 31, Millions of yen
Thousands of

U.S.dollars

2021 ¥243 $2,189

2022 534 4,811

2023 194 1,748

2024 206 1,856

(2) Bonds payable breakdown

Millions of yen
Thousands of

U.S.dollars

2019/3 2018/3 2019/3

1.246% bonds due in 2020 (*1) ¥10,000 ¥10,000 $	 90,098

1.354% bonds due in 2021 (*1) 10,000 10,000 90,098

0.682% bonds due in 2018 (*1) — 15,000 —

0.260% bonds due in 2024 (*1) 5,000 5,000 45,049

0.370% bonds due in 2027 (*1) 5,000 5,000 45,049

0.260% bonds due in 2025 (*1) 10,000 — 90,098

0.390% bonds due in 2028 (*1) 15,000 — 135,148

0.900% bonds due in 2038 (*1) 10,000 — 90,098

0.49% bonds due in 2021 (*2) 432 574 3,892

0.07% bonds due in 2024 (*3) 360 430 3,244

0.31% bonds due in 2024 (*3) 356 428 3,207

0.07% bonds due in 2024 (*3) 360 430 3,244

0.31% bonds due in 2024 (*3) 356 428 3,207

¥66,864 ¥47,290 $	602,432

*1 Mitsui Chemicals,Inc
*2 Mitsui Chemicals Tohcello, Inc.
*3 ARRK Corporation

Maturities of bonds payable within 5 years:

Year ending March 31, Millions of yen
Thousands of

U.S.dollars

2020 ¥	 426 $	 3,838

2021 10,426 93,936

2022 10,432 93,990

2023 284 2,559

2024 296 2,667

Contingent liabilities at March 31, 2019 and 2018 were as follows:

Millions of yen
Thousands of

U.S.dollars

2019/3 2018/3 2019/3

As endorser of trade notes discounted ¥	 140 ¥	 180 $	 1,261

As guarantor of indebtedness, principally of 
 non-consolidated subsidiaries and affiliates 54,860 72,852 494,279

8. �Contingent 
liabilities
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Research and development expenses for the years ended March 31, 2019 and 2018 were as follows:

Millions of yen
Thousands of

U.S.dollars

2019/3 2018/3 2019/3

Research and development expenses ¥35,796 ¥33,377 $322,516

The Group categorizes its business assets in use based on Group companies, business divisions, or qua-
si-units. Assets that are to be disposed of due to business withdrawal or other reasons are assessed on an 
individual basis. Idle properties, which are not in use, are also assessed on an individual basis.

Year ended March 31, 2019

Location Major use Asset category Millions of yen
Thousands of

U.S.dollars Remarks *

Kamisu City,  
Ibaraki Prefecture

Factory land Land
¥655 $5,901

Idle properties

Others 8 items Production,etc. Machinery, equipment 
and vehicles, intangible 
assets-others, others ¥686 $6,181

Business assets 
in use

3 items Production,etc. Machinery, equipment 
and vehicles, construc-
tion in progress, others ¥113 $1,018

Idle properties

Total ¥1,454 $13,100

For business assets in use, the book values where the recoverable amount was lower than said value due 
to a markedly worse operating environment were reduced to the recoverable amount. The amount that was 
written down is an extraordinary loss and recorded as an impairment loss (¥686 million). The impairment 
loss comprises ¥318 million for machinery and vehicles, ¥284 million for intangible assets-others, and ¥84 
million for others. Furthermore, the value in use was used as the recoverable amount in measuring impair-
ment loss, and the value in use was evaluated as being zero.

As for idle properties, because there are no specific plans for use in the future, the book values of 
properties for which the recoverable amount was lower than said value were reduced to the recoverable 
amount. The amount that was written down is an extraordinary loss and recorded as an impairment loss 
(¥768 million). The impairment loss comprises ¥655 million for land, ¥57 million for machinery and vehicles, 
¥38 million for construction in progress and ¥18 million for others. Furthermore, the net sales price or value 
was used as the recoverable amount in measuring impairment loss, which is mainly calculated from esti-
mated sales price.

Year ended March 31, 2018

Location Major use Asset category Millions of yen
Thousands of

U.S.dollars Remarks *

Dental materials 
business
(Europe, etc)

Others Goodwill,  
intangible assets,  
others ¥	14,350 $	135,072

Business assets 
in use

Others 6 items Production, 
etc.

Machinery and vehicles, 
goodwill, others ¥	 549 $	 5,168

Business assets 
in use

5 items Production, 
etc.

Buildings and structures, 
others ¥	 96 $	 904

Idle properties

1 item Welfare 
facilities

Buildings and structures, 
others ¥	 17 $	 160

Idle properties

Total ¥	15,012 $	141,303

* �Business assets in use comprised ¥6,503 million for goodwill, ¥6,211 million for customer-related intangible assets, and ¥1,636 
million for trademarks, respectively. 
	 Business assets in use outside of the dental materials business comprised ¥237 million for machinery and vehicles, ¥136 million 
for goodwill, and ¥176 million for others, respectively. 
	 Idle properties comprised ¥97 million for buildings and structures and ¥16 million for others, respectively.

9. �Research and 
development 
expenses

10. Impairment loss

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Loss on fire includes expenses related to reconstruction following the fire that occurred at the Osaka 
Works in June 2018.

(1) The type and total number of outstanding shares, types and number of treasury shares

Thousands of shares

Number of 
shares at  

April 1, 2018 Increase Decrease

Number of 
shares at  

March 31, 2019

Shares of common stock issued and outstanding

Common stock 204,455 55 — 204,510

Total 204,455 55 — 204,510

Treasury stock

Common stock 5,767 3,688 2 9,453

Total 5,767 3,688 2 9,453

Notes:
1 �The increase of 55 thousands shares in common stock issued and outstanding was due to an issuance of transfer-restricted 

shares.
2 �The increase of 3,688 thousands shares in treasury stock was due to an increase of 11 thousands shares through purchases of 

odd lots and an increase of 3,677 thousands shares through treasury stock acquisitions by resolution of the Board of Directors.
3 �The decrease of 2 thousands shares in treasury stock was due to sales of odd lots.

(2) Dividends
Under the Corporate Act of Japan (the “Act”), the amount paid for new shares is required to be accounted 
for as common stock, although a company may account for the amount not exceeding one-half of the price 
of the new shares as additional paid-in capital, which is included in capital surplus.
	 The Act provides that an amount equal to 10% of distribution from surplus shall be appropriated and set 
aside as legal earnings reserve or additional paid-in capital, until the total amount of legal earnings reserve 
and additional paid-in capital equals 25% of common stock. Legal earnings reserve and additional paid-in 
capital may be used to eliminate or reduce a deficit or may be transferred to common stock by resolution 
of the shareholders’ meeting. The Act also stipulates that the amount of any such excess is available for 
appropriations by resolution of the shareholders. Legal earnings reserve is included in retained earnings in 
the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
	 The maximum amount that the Company can distribute as dividends is calculated based on the 
non-consolidated financial statements of the Company in accordance with the Act.
	 Appropriations are not accrued in the financial statements for the period to which they relate, but 
are recorded in the subsequent accounting period when the shareholders’ approval has been obtained. 
Retained earnings at March 31, 2019, include amounts representing the year-end cash dividends approved 
at the shareholders’ meeting held on June 25, 2019.

Millions of yen
Thousands of

U.S.dollars

Cash dividends of ¥50 ($0.45) per share ¥9,753 $87,873

11. �Loss on fire

12. �Shareholders’ 
equity



108 Mitsui Chemicals Report 2019

Financial data

Reclassification adjustments and tax effects for components of other comprehensive income (loss) for the 
year ended March 31, 2019 and 2018 were as follows:

Millions of yen
Thousands of

U.S.dollars

2019/3 2018/3 2019/3

Valuation difference on available-for-sale securities:

Amount arising during the year ¥(5,443) ¥9,320 $(49,040)

Reclassification adjustment to profit or loss (2,284) (215) (20,578)

Amont before income tax effect (7,727) 9,105 (69,618)

Income tax effect 2,146 (2,700) 19,334

Total (5,581) 6,405 (50,284)

Deferred gains (losses) on hedges:

Amount arising during the year 5 (8) 45

Adjustments of acquisition cost for assets — — —

Amont before income tax effect 5 (8) 45

Income tax effect (1) 3 (9)

Total 4 (5) 36

Foreign currency translation adjustments:

Amount arising during the year 1,242 (3,079) 11,190

Reclassification adjustment to profit or loss 390 768 3,514

Total 1,632 (2,311) 14,704

Remeasurements of defined benefit plans:

Amount arising during the year (2,900) 4,795 (26,128)

Reclassification adjustment to profit or loss 1,964 2,126 17,695

Amont before income tax effect (936) 6,921 (8,433)

Income tax effect (33) 54 (298)

Total (969) 6,975 (8,731)

Share of other comprehensive income (loss) of entities 
 accounted for using equity method:

Amount arising during the year (2,231) 3,177 (20,101)

Reclassification adjustment to profit or loss (152) (128) (1,369)

Total (2,383) 3,049 (21,470)

Total other comprehensive income (loss) ¥(7,297) ¥14,113 $(65,745)

(1) �Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statement of cash flows for the years 
ended March 31, 2019 and 2018 which are reconciled to cash and deposits in the con-
solidated balance sheets are as follows: 

Millions of yen
Thousands of

U.S.dollars

2019/3 2018/3 2019/3

Cash and deposits ¥111,056 ¥80,209 $	1,000,595

Long-term time deposits recorded under “Other” of 
 investments and other assets 23 1,609 207

Deposit due over 3months (1,240) (2,990) (11,172)

Total ¥109,839 ¥78,828 $	 989,630

(2) �Main breakdown of assets and liabilities of companies newly becoming consolidated 
subsidiaries upon acquisition of shares.

Current fiscal year (from April 1, 2018 to March 31, 2019)
Not applicable.

Previous fiscal year (from April 1, 2017 to March 31, 2018)
Breakdown of assets and liabilities at the time of consolidation due to newly consolidating ARRK 
Corporation through the acquisition of shares and the acquisition price.

13. �Consolidated 
statements of 
comprehensive 
income

14. �Supplementary 
cash flow 
information

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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The relationship between the amount and expenditure for acquisition (net) is as follows:

Year ended March 31, 2018 Millions of yen

Current assets ¥31,089

Non-current assets 19,591

Goodwill 5,241

Current liabilities (10,455)

Non-current liabilities (6,898)

Non-controlling interests (8,435)

Business transfer price ¥30,133

Cash and cash equivalents (13,783)

Purchase of shares of subsidiaries resulting ¥16,350

Obligations under noncancelable operating leases at March 31, 2019 and 2018, were as follows:
Future minimum lease payments:

Millions of yen
Thousands of

U.S.dollars

2019/3 2018/3 2019/3

Due within one year ¥	 901 ¥	 828 $	 8,118

Due after one year 2,503 2,760 22,551

Total ¥	3,404 ¥	3,588 $	30,669

(1) Status of financial instruments
1. Management policy

In light of plans for capital investment, the Group raises the funds it requires primarily through bank loans 
and bonds issuance. The Group invests temporary surplus funds in financial assets that have high levels of 
safety and liquidity. Further, the Group raises short-term working capital through bank loans and commercial 
paper issuance. The Group also utilizes derivative financial instruments to hedge various risks as described 
in detail below and does not enter into derivatives for trading or speculative purposes.

2. Details of financial instruments and associated risk

The trade notes and accounts receivable are exposed to credit risk of customers. In addition, foreign-cur-
rency operating receivables used to carry out overseas business operations are exposed to foreign curren-
cy exchange risk. However, foreign exchange forward contracts are used to hedge against such risk for 
a certain portion of this amount, excluding the amount that falls within the scope of the balance of trade 
notes and accounts payable denominated in the same foreign currencies as said foreign exchange forward 
contracts.

Short-term investment securities and investment securities, other securities, primarily the shares of com-
panies with which the Group has operational relationships, are exposed to stock market fluctuation risk.

Almost all trade notes and accounts payable have payment due dates within three months. Funds 
denominated in foreign currencies are exposed to foreign currency exchange fluctuation risk. Foreign 
exchange forward contracts are used to hedge against such risks for a certain portion of said funds, exclud-
ing the amount that falls within the scope of the balance of trade notes and accounts receivable denominat-
ed in the same foreign currencies as said funds.

Loans payable and corporate bonds are primarily for fund raising related to capital investment, with a 
maximum maturity of twenty years after the balance sheet date. Certain loans payable are exposed to for-
eign currency exchange risk and interest rate fluctuation risk, and derivative transactions such as foreign 
currency swaps and interest rate swaps are used to hedge these risks.

Derivative transactions such as foreign exchange forward contracts and foreign currency swaps are 
used in order to hedge foreign currency exchange risk associated with operating receivables and payables 
as well as loans payable denominated in foreign currencies and interest rate swaps are used for the pur-
pose of hedging interest rate risk associated with bank loans.

In addition, hedging instruments and hedged items, hedging policy, and effectiveness of hedge transac-
tions are described in “2. Significant accounting policies, i. Derivatives and hedge accounting.”

15. Leases

16. �Financial 
instruments
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3. Risk management

1) Credit risk management (risks of default of debtors)

To minimize the credit risk relating to operating receivables and long-term loans receivable, the Group per-
forms due date controls and outstanding balance controls for each customer in accordance with internal 
customer credit management rules, and regularly screens customers’ credit status.

Management of the Company believes that there is no significant risk of default by the counterparties 
to derivative transactions, as the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries only conduct transactions with 
high credit-rated financial institutions.
2) Market risk management (risks of exchange and interest rate fluctuations)

The Company and its consolidated subsidiaries utilize foreign exchange forward contracts and foreign cur-
rency swaps to hedge foreign currency exchange risk associated with operating receivables and payables 
as well as bank loans denominated in foreign currencies. Further, the Company and its consolidated subsid-
iaries also utilize interest rate swaps for the purpose of hedging interest rate fluctuation risk associated with 
loans payable.

The fair value of short-term investment securities and investment securities together with financial con-
ditions of investees (trading partners) are periodically monitored. The possession of other securities other 
than held-to-maturity debt securities are reviewed continuously, taking market conditions and trade rela-
tions with the issuers into consideration.

Derivative transactions are authorized by the responsible director. Transactions are executed and 
managed by the financial section. The results of each transaction are reported by the financial section 
semi-annually at the Management Meeting. Derivative transactions entered into by consolidated subsid-
iaries are executed and managed in accordance with the management and other criteria for derivative 
transactions for each company.
3) Liquidity risk management (non-performance risk on payment due date)

The Company’s finance department formulates and updates cash flow plans in a timely manner based on 
each department’s estimated cash flow and manages liquidity risks through such measures as maintaining 
an accessible supply of cash. The cash flows of consolidated subsidiaries are managed in the same manner 
as those of the Company.

4. Supplemental explanation regarding fair value of financial instruments

Fair value of financial instruments is measured based on the quoted market price, if available, or rea-
sonably assessed value if a quoted market price is not available. Fair value of financial instruments for 
which a quoted market price is not available is calculated based on certain assumptions, and the estimat-
ed fair value might differ if different assumptions are used. In addition, the contract amount of the deriva-
tive transactions described below in “18. Derivatives” does not represent the market risk of the derivative 
transactions.

(2) Fair value of financial instruments
The carrying value on the consolidated balance sheet, fair value, and differences as of March 31, 2019 and 
2018 are as follows. In addition, financial instruments, for which is extremely difficult to measure the fair 
value, are not included. (Please see Note 2)

Millions of yen

Year ended March 31, 2019 Carrying value Fair value Differences

Assets

(1) Cash and deposits ¥	111,056 ¥	111,056 ¥	 —

(2) Notes and accounts receivable-trade 310,591 310,591 —

(3) �Short-term investment securities and  
investment securities, other securities 48,970 48,970 —

Total 470,617 470,617 —

Liabilities

(1) Notes and accounts payable-trade 163,908 163,908 —

(2) Short-term bank loans payable 92,733 92,733 —

(3) Commercial papers 10,000 10,000 —

(4) Bonds payable (*1) 66,864 67,363 499

(5) Long-term loans payable (*1) 312,421 320,190 7,769

Total 645,926 654,194 8,268

Derivative transactions (*2) ¥	 2 ¥	 2 ¥	 —

*1 This amounts includes current portion of long-term loans payable and bonds payable respectively.
*2 Derivative assets and (liabilities) are on net basis.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements



111Mitsui Chemicals Report 2019

Value creation story Sustainability Growth strategies Foundations for growth Financial data Company data

Thousands of U.S.dollars

Year ended March 31, 2019 Carrying value Fair value Differences

Assets

(1) Cash and deposits $	1,000,595 $	1,000,595 $	 —

(2) Notes and accounts receivable-trade 2,798,369 2,798,369 —

(3) �Short-term investment securities and  
investment securities, other securities 441,211 441,211 —

Total 4,240,175 4,240,175 —

Liabilities

(1) Notes and accounts payable-trade 1,476,782 1,476,782 —

(2) Short-term bank loans payable 835,508 835,508 —

(3) Commercial papers 90,098 90,098 —

(4) Bonds payable (*1) 602,432 606,929 4,495

(5) Long-term loans payable (*1) 2,814,857 2,884,854 69,997

Total 5,819,678 5,894,171 74,492

Derivative transactions (*2) $	 18 $	 18 $	 —

*1 This amounts includes current portion of long-term loans payable and bonds payable respectively.
*2 Derivative assets and (liabilities) are on net basis.

Millions of yen

Year ended March 31, 2018 Carrying value Fair value Differences

Assets

(1) Cash and deposits ¥	 80,209 ¥	 80,209 ¥	 —

(2) Notes and accounts receivable-trade 306,899 306,899 —

(3) �Short-term investment securities and  
investment securities, other securities 57,628 57,628 —

Total 444,736 444,736 —

Liabilities

(1) Notes and accounts payable-trade 162,179 162,179 —

(2) Short-term bank loans payable 94,348 94,348 —

(3) Commercial papers 20,000 20,000 —

(4) Bonds payable (*1) 47,290 47,893 603

(5) Long-term loans payable (*1) 298,933 306,860 7,927

Total 622,750 631,280 8,530

Derivative transactions (*2) ¥	 (25) ¥	 (25) ¥	 —

*1 This amounts includes current portion of long-term loans payable and bonds payable respectively.
*2 Derivative assets and (liabilities) are on net basis.

Note 1. �Fair value measurement of financial instruments and items relating to short-term investment securities and derivative 
transactions.

Assets
1) Cash and deposits, and 2) Notes and accounts receivable-trade
The relevant book values are used, as the carrying amount approximates fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.
3) Short-term investment securities and investment securities
The fair value of equity securities equals quoted market price, if available. The fair value of debt securities equals quoted market 
price or provided price by financial institutions. Moreover, investment securities for different holding purposes are described in “16. 
Securities”.

Liabilities
1) Notes and accounts payable-trade, 2) Short-term bank loans payable, and 3) Commercial papers
The relevant book values are used, as the carrying amount approximates fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.
4) Bonds payable
The fair value of bonds payable equals the quoted market price, if available. If the market prices of bonds are not available, fair value 
is calculated based on the present value of the total amount of principal and interest, discounted by the rate dete
5) Long-term loans payable
The fair value of long-term loans payable is calculated by applying a discount rate to the total of principal and interest. The discount 
rate is based on the assumed interest rate if a similar new loan was entered into. A portion of floating rate long-term loans payable 
that is subject to special treatment in the form of interest rate swaps (described in “17. Derivatives”) is calculated by discounting 
the total amount of principal and interest —which is handled together with said interest-rate swaps— against assumed interest to 
be paid when new loans of the same type are undertaken.

Derivative transactions
Contract amount, fair value, unrealized gain or loss, and others are described in “17. Derivatives”.
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Note 2. Financial instruments of which the fair value is extremely difficult to measure.

Year ended March 31, 2019 Millions of yen
Thousands of

U.S.dollars

Unlisted equity securities ¥15,170 $136,679

Unlisted preferred securities 9,596 86,458

Year ended March 31, 2018 Millions of yen

Unlisted equity securities ¥13,065

Unlisted preferred securities 8,000

The above are not included in “(3) Short-term investment securities and investment securities”, because there is no market value 
and the future cash flows cannot be estimated, as well as the fair value is extremely difficult to measure.

Note 3. �The redemption schedule for monetary claims and held-to-maturity debt securities with maturities date subsequent to the 
consolidated balance sheet date.

Millions of yen

Year ended March 31, 2019
Due within  
one year

Due over one 
year but within 

five years

Due over five 
years but within 

ten years
Due over  
ten years

Cash and deposits ¥111,056 ¥— ¥— ¥—

Notes and accounts receivable-trade 310,591 — — —

Total ¥421,647 ¥— ¥— ¥—

Thousands of U.S.dollars

Year ended March 31, 2019
Due within  
one year

Due over one 
year but within 

five years

Due over five 
years but within 

ten years
Due over  
ten years

Cash and deposits $1,000,595 $— $— $—

Notes and accounts receivable-trade 2,798,369 — — —

Total $3,798,964 $— $— $—

Millions of yen

Year ended March 31, 2018
Due within  
one year

Due over one 
year but within 

five years

Due over five 
years but within 

ten years
Due over  
ten years

Cash and deposits ¥	 80,209 ¥— ¥— ¥—

Notes and accounts receivable-trade 306,899 — — —

Total ¥	387,108 ¥— ¥— ¥—

Note 4. �The redemption schedule for bonds payable and long-term loans payable subsequent to the consolidated balance sheet date.

Millions of yen

Year ended March 31, 2019
Due within 
one year

Due over  
one year  

but within  
two years

Due over  
two years  
but within 

three years

Due over 
three years  
but within 
four years

Due over  
four years  
but within  
five years

Due over  
five years

Short-term bank loans payable ¥	 92,733 ¥	 — ¥	 — ¥	 — ¥	 — ¥	 —

Commercial papers 10,000 — — — — —

Bonds payable 426 10,426 10,432 284 296 45,000

Long-term loans payable 57,571 42,450 43,620 47,589 41,717 79,474

Total ¥	160,730 ¥	52,876 ¥	54,052 ¥	47,873 ¥	42,013 ¥	124,474

Thousands of U.S.dollars

Year ended March 31, 2019
Due within 
one year

Due over  
one year  

but within  
two years

Due over  
two years  
but within 

three years

Due over 
three years  
but within 
four years

Due over  
four years  
but within  
five years

Due over  
five years

Short-term bank loans payable $	 835,508 $	 — $	 — $	 — $	 — $	 —

Commercial papers 90,098 — — — — —

Bonds payable 3,838 93,936 93,990 2,559 2,667 405,442

Long-term loans payable 518,704 382,467 393,008 428,768 375,863 716,046

Total $	1,448,148 $	476,403 $	486,998 $	431,327 $	378,530 $	1,121,488

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Millions of yen

Year ended March 31, 2018
Due within 
one year

Due over  
one year  

but within  
two years

Due over  
two years  
but within 

three years

Due over 
three years  
but within 
four years

Due over  
four years  
but within  
five years

Due over  
five years

Short-term bank loans payable ¥	 94,348 ¥	 — ¥	 — ¥	 — ¥	 — ¥	 —

Commercial papers 20,000 — — — — —

Bonds payable 15,426 426 10,426 10,432 284 10,296

Long-term loans payable 24,834 57,519 41,978 42,718 41,088 90,796

Total ¥	154,608 ¥	57,945 ¥	52,404 ¥	53,150 ¥	41,372 ¥	101,092

Information on securities held by the Company and its subsidiaries at March 31, 2019 and 2018 was as follows: 

(1) Other securities

Millions of yen
Thousands of

U.S.dollars

Year ended March 31, 2019
Carrying 

value
Acquisition 

cost Differences
Carrying 

value
Acquisition 

cost Differences

Securities whose carrying value 
 exceeds their acquisition value:

(1) Equity securities ¥47,829 ¥18,306 ¥29,523 $430,931 $164,934 $265,997

(2) Others 5 5 0 45 45 0

Securities whoes carrying value does 
 not exceed their acquisition value:

(1) Equity securities 1,135 1,354 (219) 10,226 12,199 (1,973)

(2) Others 1 1 (0) 9 9 (0)

Total ¥48,970 ¥19,666 ¥29,304 $441,211 $177,187 $264,024

Note: �Unlisted equity securities with carrying value of ¥15,170 million and unlisted preferred securities with carrying value of ¥9,596 
million as of March 31, 2019 have no market value and their future cash flows cannot be estimated. Those securities’ fair val-
ue is extremely difficult to measure and not included in the table above.

Millions of yen

Year ended March 31, 2018
Carrying 

value
Acquisition 

cost Differences

Securities whose carrying value 
 exceeds their acquisition value:

(1) Equity securities ¥56,978 ¥19,787 ¥37,191

(2) Others 5 5 0

Securities whoes carrying value does 
 not exceed their acquisition value:

(1) Equity securities 644 829 (185)

(2) Others 1 1 (0)

Total ¥57,628 ¥20,622 ¥37,006

Note: �Unlisted equity securities with carrying value of ¥13,065 million and unlisted preferred securities with carrying value of ¥8,000 
million as of March 31, 2018 have no market value and their future cash flows cannot be estimated. Those securities’ fair val-
ue is extremely difficult to measure and not included in the table above.

(2) Other securities sold during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2019 and 2018

Millions of yen
Thousands of

U.S.dollars

Year ended March 31, 2019
Sales  
price

Gain on 
sales

Loss on 
sales

Sales  
price

Gain on 
sales

Loss on 
sales

Equity securities ¥3,050 ¥2,462 ¥(13) $27,480 $22,182 $(117)

Other — — — — — —

Total ¥3,050 ¥2,462 ¥(13) $27,480 $22,182 $(117)

17. Securities
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Millions of yen

Year ended March 31, 2018
Sales  
price

Gain on 
sales

Loss on 
sales

Equity securities ¥1,461 ¥815 ¥(1)

Other — — —

Total ¥1,461 ¥815 ¥(1)

(3) Impairment of investment securities 
For the fiscal years ended March 31, 2019 and 2018, the Group recognized impairment losses on invest-
ment securities of ¥171million (¥171 million on other marketable securities with no market values) and 
¥5,059 million (¥5,059 million on other marketable securities with no market values) respectively.

Regarding loss disposal, typically, when the fair value at the fiscal year end falls 50% or greater compared 
with the acquisition cost, the loss shall be disposed of, in principle. When said fair value falls between 30% 
and 50% of the acquisition cost, if the rate of decrease remains at 30% or above for a two-year period prior to 
the end of the fiscal year-end, or if a significant downturn in performance occurs over an approximately three-
year period, it shall be determined that there is no possibility of recovery and loss disposed of.

The Company and certain of its subsidiaries had the following derivatives contracts outstanding at March 
31, 2019 and 2018.

(1) Derivative transactions to which the Company did not apply hedge accounting
Currency related

Millions of yen
Thousands of

U.S.dollars

Year ended March 31, 2019
Contract 
amount

(Contract 
amount 

over  
one year) Fair value

Unrealized 
gain (loss)

Contract 
amount

(Contract 
amount 

over  
one year) Fair value

Unrealized 
gain (loss)

Off-market transactions:

Forward foreign exchange 
 contracts for

Buying U.S. dollar ¥699 ¥— ¥5 ¥5 $6,298 $— $45 $45

Currency swap transaction for

Receiving CNY and 
 paying U.S. dollar — — — — — — — —

Total ¥699 ¥— ¥5 ¥5 $6,298 $— $45 $45

Note: Fair value is based on information provided by financial institutions at the end of the fiscal year.

Millions of yen

Year ended March 31, 2018
Contract 
amount

(Contract 
amount 

over  
one year) Fair value

Unrealized 
gain (loss)

Off-market transactions:

Forward foreign exchange 
 contracts for

Buying U.S. dollar ¥	 797 ¥	— ¥	(20) ¥	(20)

Currency swap transaction for

Receiving CNY and 
 paying U.S. dollar 419 — (3) (3)

Total ¥	1,216 ¥	— ¥	(23) ¥	(23)

Note: Fair value is based on information provided by financial institutions at the end of the fiscal year.

18. Derivatives

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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(2) Derivative transactions to which the Company applied hedge accounting
1. Currency related

Millions of yen
Thousands of

U.S.dollars

Year ended March 31, 2019
Contract 
amount

(Contract 
amount 

over  
one year) Fair value

Contract 
amount

(Contract 
amount 

over  
one year) Fair value

Principle-based accounting method:

Forward foreign exchange contracts for

(1) �Selling U.S. dollar  
(hedged item—loans receivable) ¥	 178 ¥— ¥(1) $	 1,604 $— $	 (9)

(2) �Selling Swedish Krona  
(hedged item—loans receivable) 358 — 0 3,225 — 0

(3) �Selling U.S. dollar  
(hedged item—accounts receivable) 193 — 0 1,739 — 0

(4) �Buying U.S. dollar  
(hedged item—accounts payable-trade) 357 — (3) 3,216 — (27)

(5) �Buying YEN  
(hedged item—loans payable) 90 — 1 811 — 9

(6) �Buying EUR  
(hedged item—accounts payable—other) 65 — — 586 — —

Alternative method (*):

Forward foreign exchange contracts for

(1) �Selling U.S. dollar  
(hedged item—accounts receivables-trade) ¥	 61 ¥— (Note 2) $	 550 $— (Note 2)

(2) �Buying U.S. dollar  
(hedged item—accounts payable-trade) 164 — (Note 2) 1,477 — (Note 2)

Total ¥	1,466 ¥— ¥(3) $	13,208 $— $	(27)

* �Foreign monetary obligations denominated in foreign currencies for which foreign exchange forward contracts are used to hedge 
the foreign currency fluctuation are translated at the contracted rate, if the forward contracts qualify for hedge accounting.

Notes:
1. Fair value is based on information provided by financial institutions at the end of the fiscal year.
2. �For certain accounts payable-trade, other accounts payable and loans payable denominated in foreign currencies for which for-

eign exchange forward contracts are used to hedge the foreign currency fluctuations, fair value of derivative financial instrument 
is included in the hedged accounts receivables-trade or accounts payable-trade.

Millions of yen

Year ended March 31, 2018
Contract 
amount

(Contract 
amount 

over  
one year) Fair value

Principle-based accounting method:

Forward foreign exchange contracts for

(1) �Selling U.S. dollar  
(hedged item—loans receivable) ¥	 170 ¥— ¥(1)

(2) �Selling Swedish Krona  
(hedged item—loans receivable) 381 — (4)

(3) �Buying U.S. dollar  
(hedged item—accounts payable-trade) 778 — —

(4) �Buying YEN  
(hedged item—loans payable) 181 — 3

Alternative method (*):

Forward foreign exchange contracts for

(1) �Selling U.S. dollar  
(hedged item—accounts receivables-trade) ¥	 53 ¥— (Note2)

(2) �Buying U.S. dollar  
(hedged item—accounts payable-trade) 136 — (Note2)

Total ¥	1,699 ¥— ¥(2)

* �Foreign monetary obligations denominated in foreign currencies for which foreign exchange forward contracts are used to hedge 
the foreign currency fluctuation are translated at the contracted rate, if the forward contracts qualify for hedge accounting.

Notes:
1. Fair value is based on information provided by financial institutions at the end of the fiscal year.
2. �For certain accounts payable-trade, other accounts payable and loans payable denominated in foreign currencies for which for-

eign exchange forward contracts are used to hedge the foreign currency fluctuations, fair value of derivative financial instrument 
is included in the hedged accounts receivables-trade or accounts payable-trade.
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2. Interest related

Millions of yen
Thousands of

U.S.dollars

Year ended March 31, 2019
Contract 
amount

(Contract 
amount 

over  
one year)

Fair  
value

Contract 
amount

(Contract 
amount  

over  
one year)

Fair  
value

Alternative method:

Interest swap contracts  
(hedged item— 
long-term loans payable)

Receiving floating rate and  
paying fixed rate ¥	 96,429 ¥69,629 (Note) $	 868,808 $627,345 (Note)

Currency swap contracts  
(hedged item— 
long-term loans payable)

Receiving floating rate and  
paying fixed rate 30,459 9,804 (Note) 274,430 88,332 (Note)

Total ¥	126,888 ¥79,433 ¥— $	1,143,238 $715,677 $—

Note: �For certain long-term loans payable for which interest swap contracts are used to hedge the interest rate fluctuations, fair value 
of derivative financial instrument is included in accounts payable-trade, other accounts payable and loans payable as hedged.

Millions of yen

Year ended March 31, 2018
Contract 
amount

(Contract 
amount 

over  
one year)

Fair  
value

Alternative method:

Interest swap contracts  
(hedged item— 
long-term loans payable)

Receiving floating rate and  
paying fixed rate ¥100,969 ¥	 96,429 (Note)

Currency swap contracts  
(hedged item— 
long-term loans payable)

Receiving floating rate and  
paying fixed rate 24,915 24,915 (Note)

Total ¥125,884 ¥	121,344 ¥—

Note: �For certain long-term loans payable for which interest swap contracts are used to hedge the interest rate fluctuations, fair value 
of derivative financial instrument is included in accounts payable-trade, other accounts payable and loans payable as hedged.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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(1) �The significant components of the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries’ 
deferred tax assets and liabilities as of March 31, 2019 and 2018 were as follows:

Millions of yen
Thousands of

U.S.dollars

2019/3 2018/3 2019/3

Deferred tax assets:

Net defined benefit liabilities ¥	 23,475 ¥	 23,698 $	 211,506

Accrued bonuses 4,447 4,199 40,067

Depreciation 6,708 3,932 60,438

Accrued enterprise tax 795 798 7,163

Tax loss carryforwards (*2) 41,575 45,206 374,583

Provision for repairs 5,447 5,298 49,076

Unrealized gains on fixed assets 2,386 2,505 21,497

Loss on valuation of inventories 2,921 3,257 26,318

Loss on valuation of investment securities 5,212 5,928 46,959

Impairment loss 5,173 7,518 46,608

Other 10,624 15,779 95,720

Subtotal 108,763 118,118 979,935

Valuation allowance related to tax loss carryforwards (35,953) — (323,930)

Valuation allowance related to the total of 
 deductible temporary differences (33,790) — (304,442)

Total valuation allowance (*1) (69,743) (81,060) (628,372)

Total deferred tax assets 39,020 37,058 351,563

Deferred tax liabilities:

Net defined benefit assets ¥	(13,202) ¥	 (12,870) $	(118,948)

Gain on contribution of securities to retirement 
 benefit trust (3,024) (3,147) (27,246)

Net unrealized holding gain on securities (7,820) (10,187) (70,457)

Deferred gain on real properties (240) (284) (2,162)

Retained earnings of overseas consolidated 
 subsidiaries, etc. (6,650) (5,592) (59,915)

Adjustment of book value based on fair value (5,368) (5,771) (48,365)

Other (2,801) (1,774) (25,236)

Total deferred tax liabilities (39,105) (39,625) (352,329)

Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) ¥	 (85) ¥	 (2,567) $	 (766)

*1 �The valuation allowance decreased mainly because the amount of tax losses carried forward at the parent and consolidated sub-
sidiaries deemed to be recoverable in anticipation of future taxable income was booked as deferred tax assets.

*2 A breakdown of tax loss carryforwards and valuation allowance by expiry date as of March 31,2019 are as follows:

Millions of yen

Year ended March 31, 2019
Due within 
one year

Due over  
one year  

but within  
two years

Due over  
two years  
but within 

three years

Due over 
three years  
but within 
four years

Due over  
four years  
but within  
five years

Due over  
five years Total

Tax loss carryforwards (*a) ¥22,635 ¥10,149 ¥451 ¥1,096 ¥1,659 ¥5,585 ¥41,575

Valuation allowance (18,331) (9,639) (451) (1,096) (1,417) (5,019) (35,953)

Deferred tax asset 4,304 510 — — 242 566 5,622 (*b)

Thousands of U.S.dollars

Year ended March 31, 2019
Due within 
one year

Due over  
one year  

but within  
two years

Due over  
two years  
but within 

three years

Due over 
three years  
but within 
four years

Due over  
four years  
but within  
five years

Due over  
five years Total

Tax loss carryforwards (*a) $203,937 $91,441 $4,063 $9,875 $14,947 $50,320 $374,583

Valuation allowance (165,159) (86,846) (4,063) (9,875) (12,767) (45,220) (323,930)

Deferred tax asset 38,778 4,595 — — 2,180 5,100 50,653 (*b)

*a  Tax loss carried forward is multiplied by the statutory effective tax rate.
*b  �For the tax loss carried forward of ¥41,575 million (the amount multiplied by the statutory effective tax rate), ¥5,622 million was 

booked as deferred tax assets as we deemed it recoverable in anticipation of future taxable income.

19. Income taxes
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(2) �The following table summarizes the significant differences between the statutory tax 
rate and effective tax rates reflected in the consolidated statement of operations for 
the years ended March 31, 2019 and 2018:

2019/3 2018/3

Statutory tax rate 30.6% 30.9%

Non-deductible expenses 0.7 0.7

Permanently non-deductible items including dividend income (0.6) (0.8)

Changes in valuation allowance (8.0) (16.7)

Differences of statutory tax rate in overseas consolidated subsidiaries (4.3) (1.7)

Goodwill impairment and amortization 0.2 2.4

Share of loss (profit) of entities accounted for using equity method (3.2) (2.7)

Other 2.4 4.0

Effective tax rate 17.8% 16.1%

(1) Overview of reportable segments
The reportable segments of the Group comprise those entities for which obtaining separate financial 
reports is possible and those are subject to regular review by the Board of Directors, which decides upon 
the distribution of management resources to said segments.

The Group positions segments distinguished by their products and services within its headquarters. 
Each segment proposes comprehensive domestic and overseas strategies in addition to pursuing business 
expansion in its respective product and service area.

The four reportable segments (distinguished by products and services) that therefore comprise the 
Group’s operations are: Mobility, Health Care, Food & Packaging and Basic Materials.

Segment Major Products

Reportable Segments Mobility Elastomers, performance compounds, functional polymers 
and, polypropylene compounds and comprehensive services 
regarding to the development of automotive and industrial 
products (Solution business)

Health Care Vision care materials, nonwoven fabrics, dental materials 
and, personal care materials

Food & Packaging Coating & engineering materials, performance films and 
sheets and, agrochemical products

Basic Materials Ethylene, propylene, polyethylene, polypropylene, catalysts, 
phenols, PTA, PET, polyurethane materials and, industrial 
chemical products

Others Others Other related businesses, etc.

(2) �Methods to determine net sales, income or loss, sssets, and other items by reportable 
business segment

The accounting methods by reportable business segment herein are almost tha same as those described 
under “significant accounting policies.” Income by reportable business segment is stated on an operat-
ing income basis. Intersegment net sales and transfers are based on the values of transactions undertaken 
between third parties.

20. �Segment 
information

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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(3) Information concerning net sales, income or loss, assets, and other items for each reportable segment

Millions of yen

Reportable Segment

Year ended March 31, 2019 Mobility Healthcare
Food & 

Packaging
Basic 

Materials Total
Others  
(Note 1) Sum total

I.	 Net sales:

Customers ¥	395,365 ¥	146,598 ¥	199,435 ¥	716,524 ¥	1,457,922 ¥	24,987 ¥	1,482,909

Inter-segment 11,652 2,783 1,349 75,760 91,544 58,049 149,593

Total ¥	407,017 ¥	149,381 ¥	200,784 ¥	792,284 ¥	1,549,466 ¥	83,036 ¥	1,632,502

II.	 Segment income (loss) ¥	 42,736 ¥	 13,622 ¥	 17,791 ¥	 27,776 ¥	 101,925 ¥	(1,375) ¥	 100,550

III.	Segment assets ¥	348,824 ¥	195,713 ¥	232,533 ¥	598,707 ¥	1,375,777 ¥	55,129 ¥	1,430,906

IV.	Other items:

Depreciation and amortization (Note 2) ¥	 12,582 ¥	 9,412 ¥	 7,496 ¥	 14,826 ¥	 44,316 ¥	 3,857 ¥	 48,173

Amortization of goodwill 527 86 — — 613 38 651

Invested in equity method affiliate 22,427 5,602 2,849 58,135 89,013 2,451 91,464

Capital expenditures (Note 2) 17,256 6,579 15,019 18,453 57,307 3,870 61,177

Thousands of U.S. dollars

Reportable Segment

Year ended March 31, 2019 Mobility Healthcare
Food & 

Packaging
Basic 

Materials Total
Others  
(Note 1) Sum total

I.	 Net sales:

Customers $	3,562,168 $	1,320,822 $	1,796,874 $	6,455,752 $	13,135,616 $	225,128 $	13,360,744

Inter-segment 104,982 25,074 12,154 682,585 824,795 523,011 1,347,806

Total $	3,667,150 $	1,345,896 $	1,809,028 $	7,138,337 $	13,960,411 $	748,139 $	14,708,550

II.	 Segment income (loss) $	 385,044 $	 122,732 $	 160,294 $	 250,256 $	 918,326 $	(12,389) $	 905,937

III.	Segment assets $	3,142,842 $	1,763,339 $	2,095,081 $	5,394,242 $	12,395,504 $	496,703 $	12,892,207

IV.	Other items:

Depreciation and amortization (Note 2) $	 113,362 $	 84,800 $	 67,538 $	 133,579 $	 399,279 $	 34,751 $	 434,030

Amortization of goodwill 4,748 775 — — 5,523 342 5,865

Invested in equity method affiliate 202,063 50,473 25,669 523,786 801,991 22,083 824,074

Capital expenditures (Note 2) 155,473 59,276 135,318 166,259 516,326 34,868 551,194

Millions of yen

Reportable Segment

Year ended March 31, 2018 Mobility Healthcare
Food & 

Packaging
Basic 

Materials Total
Others  
(Note 1) Sum total

I.	 Net sales:

Customers ¥	331,038 ¥	139,120 ¥	195,840 ¥	637,700 ¥	1,303,698 ¥	24,828 ¥	1,328,526

Inter-segment 10,954 2,376 1,238 66,690 81,258 54,210 135,468

Total ¥	341,992 ¥	141,496 ¥	197,078 ¥	704,390 ¥	1,384,956 ¥	79,038 ¥	1,463,994

II.	 Segment income (loss) ¥	 42,296 ¥	 10,830 ¥	 19,924 ¥	 38,903 ¥	 111,953 ¥	 (906) ¥	 111,047

III.	Segment assets ¥	316,313 ¥	200,684 ¥	221,550 ¥	606,896 ¥	1,342,443 ¥	50,052 ¥	1,395,495

IV.	Other items:

Depreciation and amortization (Note 2) ¥	 10,264 ¥	 9,501 ¥	 6,961 ¥	 14,467 ¥	 41,193 ¥	 3,118 ¥	 44,311

Amortization of goodwill 131 586 — — 717 102 819

Invested in equity method affiliate 17,220 4,920 2,878 54,977 79,995 2,660 82,655

Capital expenditures (Note 2) 32,179 16,018 9,508 15,752 73,457 6,110 79,567

Notes:
1. �“Others” encompasses operations not included in reportable segments.
2. �Depreciation and amortization and capital expenditures include amortization costs and expenditures under long-term prepaid expenses.
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(4) �Reconciliation of differences between total amounts of reportable segments and 
amounts in the consolidated financial statements (adjustments)

Net sales:
Millions of yen

Thousands of
U.S.dollars

2019/3 2018/3 2019/3

Total reportable segment sales ¥1,549,466 ¥1,384,956 $13,960,411

Net sales classified under “Others” 83,036 79,038 748,139

Elimination of intersegment transactions (149,593) (135,468) (1,347,806)

Net sales recorded in Consolidated Statements 
 of Operations ¥1,482,909 ¥1,328,526 $13,360,744

Income:
Millions of yen

Thousands of
U.S.dollars

2019/3 2018/3 2019/3

Total reportable segment income ¥	101,925 ¥111,953 $918,326

Income (loss) classified under “Others” (1,375) (906) (12,389)

Elimination of intersegment transactions (33) 26 (297)

Corporate expenses (Note) (7,090) (7,582) (63,879)

Operating income recorded in Consolidated Statements 
 of Operations ¥	 93,427 ¥103,491 $841,761

Note: Corporate expenses mainly comprise general and administrative expenses not usually attributed to segments.

Assets:
Millions of yen

Thousands of
U.S.dollars

2019/3 2018/3 2019/3

Total reportable segment assets ¥1,375,777 ¥1,345,443 $12,395,504

Assets classified under “Others” 55,129 50,052 496,702

Elimination of intersegment transactions (125,293) (130,898) (1,128,867)

Corporate assets (Notes 1 and 2) 195,461 166,712 1,761,069

Assets recorded in Consolidated Balance Sheets ¥1,501,074 ¥1,431,309 $13,524,408

Notes:
1. �Corporate assets are mainly attributed to the Company’s surplus management funds (cash and savings), long-term investment 

funds (investment securities), deferred tax assets and administrative departments.
2. Asset balance for the previous fiscal year is restated mainly to reflect the impact of amendments to tax effect accounting standards.

Depreciation and amortization:
Millions of yen

Thousands of
U.S.dollars

2019/3 2018/3 2019/3

Total reportable segment amounts ¥44,316 ¥41,193 $399,279

Amounts classified under “Others” 3,857 3,118 34,751

Adjustment amounts (Note) 680 524 6,127

Amounts from Consolidated Financial Statements ¥48,853 ¥44,835 $440,157

Note: Adjustment amounts are Depreciation and amortization expenses related to new businesses development.

Amortization of goodwill:
Millions of yen

Thousands of
U.S.dollars

2019/3 2018/3 2019/3

Total reportable segment amounts ¥613 ¥717 $5,523

Amounts classified under “Others” 38 102 342

Adjustment amounts — — —

Amounts from Consolidated Financial Statements ¥651 ¥819 $5,865

Amount invested in equity method affiliate:
Millions of yen

Thousands of
U.S.dollars

2019/3 2018/3 2019/3

Total reportable segment amounts ¥89,013 ¥79,995 $801,991

Amounts classified under “Others” 2,451 2,660 22,083

Adjustment amounts — — —

Amounts from Consolidated Financial Statements ¥91,464 ¥82,655 $824,074

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Capital expenditures:
Millions of yen

Thousands of
U.S.dollars

2019/3 2018/3 2019/3

Total reportable segment amounts ¥57,307 ¥73,457 $516,326

Amounts classified under “Others” 3,870 6,110 34,868

Adjustment amounts (Note) 747 1,681 6,730

Amounts from Consolidated Financial Statements ¥61,924 ¥81,248 $557,924

Note: Adjustment amounts are capital expenditures related to new businesses development.

Related Information
(Information by Region)

Net sales:
Millions of yen

Thousands of
U.S.dollars

2019/3 2018/3 2019/3

Japan ¥	 810,846 ¥	 740,562 $	 7,305,577

China 182,764 144,699 1,646,671

Asia 198,638 189,448 1,789,693

America 177,594 162,219 1,600,090

Europe 104,639 82,960 942,779

Other regions 8,428 8,638 75,934

Total ¥	1,482,909 ¥	1,328,526 $	13,360,744

Notes:
1. Net sales are classified by country and region based on customer location.
2. �Major countries and regions located in areas outside of Japan and China are as follows: 

(1) Asia: Taiwan, South Korea, Thailand, Malaysia, Singapore, India 
(2) America: The United States, Mexico 
(3) Europe: Germany, France 
(4) Other regions: Oceania, Africa

Property, plant and equipment:
Millions of yen

Thousands of
U.S.dollars

2019/3 2018/3 2019/3

Japan ¥350,860 ¥345,017 $3,161,186

Singapore 36,011 35,920 324,453

Asia 28,068 27,129 252,888

Other regions 28,124 24,842 253,391

Total ¥443,063 ¥432,908 $3,991,918

Note: �Major countries and regions located in areas outside of Japan and Singapore are as follows: 
(1) Asia: China, Taiwan, South Korea, Thailand, Malaysia, India 
(2) Other regions: North America, Europe

(Information by main customers)

Net sales:
Millions of yen

Thousands of
U.S.dollars

2019/3 2018/3 2019/3

Mitsui & Co., LTD. ¥264,168 ¥236,002 $2,380,106

Note: �Related segments are as follows: 
Mobility, Health Care, Food&Packaging, Basic Materials, Others

Information Concerning Impairment Loss of Fixed Assets by Reportable Segment

Impairment loss:
Millions of yen

Thousands of
U.S.dollars

2019/3 2018/3 2019/3

Mobility ¥	 248 ¥	 395 $	 2,234

Health Care 49 14,350 441

Food & Packaging 420 7 3,784

Basic Materials 82 — 739

Others — 150 —

Corporate Expenses 655 110 5,902

Total ¥	1,454 ¥	15,012 $	13,100
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Information Concerning the Amount of Amortization and Unamortized Balance of 
Goodwill by Reportable Segment

Amount of amortization:
Millions of yen

Thousands of
U.S.dollars

2019/3 2018/3 2019/3

Mobility ¥527 ¥131 $4,748

Health Care 86 586 775

Food & Packaging — — —

Basic Materials — — —

Others 38 102 342

Corporate Expenses — — —

Total ¥651 ¥819 $5,865

Unamortized balance:
Millions of yen

Thousands of
U.S.dollars

2019/3 2018/3 2019/3

Mobility ¥4,628 ¥5,110 $41,697

Health Care 416 519 3,748

Food & Packaging — — —

Basic Materials — — —

Others 17 55 154

Corporate Expenses — — —

Total ¥5,061 ¥5,684 $45,599

(1) Related party transactions
Main transactions of the Company with its affiliated company for the year ended March 31, 2019 was as follows:

Name of company Chiba Chemicals Manufacturing LLP

Type of related party Affiliated company

Location Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo

Capital stock ¥200 million ($1,802 thousand)

Business Manufacturing petrochemical materials and supplying to partners

Holding ratio of voting rights Direct 50%

Relationship Supply and purchases of raw materials

Transaction amount 
(Notes 1 and 2)

¥771 million (US$6,947 thousand)

Balance at end of year (Note 2) Other accounts receivable: ¥13,868 million (US$124,948 thousand)

Accounts payable: ¥12,068 million (US$108,731 thousand)

Notes:
1. The trade terms of the above transactions were shown on a net basis in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.
2. The trade terms of the above transactions were determined based on consideration of the market prices and others.

Name of company Shanghai Sinopec Mitsui Chemicals Co., Ltd.

Type of related party Affiliated company

Location Shanghai, China

Investments in capital (Note 4) ¥37,923 million ($341,679 thousand)

Business Manufacturing and sales of phenol, acetone and biphenol A In China

Holding ratio of voting rights Direct 50%

Relationship Loan guarantee, interlocking directors

Transaction amount (Note 3) ¥8,123 million (US$73,187 thousand)

Notes: 
3. The Company conducts loan gurantees for the related party without gurantee fees.
4. �Shanghai Sinopec Mitsui Chemicals, Co., Ltd. increased its capital for the year ended March 31, 2019. Accordingly, investments in 

capital has been increased from the previous fiscal year.

21. �Information on 
related party 
transactions

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Name of company Shanghai Sinopec Mitsui Elastomers, Co., Ltd.

Type of related party Affiliated company

Location Shanghai, China

Investments in capital (Note 6) ¥26,453 million ($238,337 thousand)

Business Manufacturing and sales of ethylene, propylene and  
diene copolymer rubber in China

Holding ratio of voting rights Direct 50%

Relationship Loan guarantee, interlocking directors

Transaction amount (Note 5) ¥9,882 million (US$89,035 thousand)

Notes: 
5. The Company conducts loan gurantees for the related party without gurantee fees.
6. �Shanghai Sinopec Mitsui Elastomers, Co., Ltd. increased its capital for the year ended March 31, 2019. Accordingly, investments 

in capital has been increased from the previous fiscal year.

(2) Summary of financial information for significant affiliated companies
The Company’s significant affiliates are Chemours-Mitsui Fluoroproducts Co., Ltd. and Shanghai Sinopec 
Mitsui Chemicals Co., Ltd. for the year ended March 31, 2019.

Chemours-Mitsui Fluoroproducts Co., Ltd.

Millions of yen
Thousands of

U.S.dollars

2019/3 2018/3 2019/3

Balance Sheet

Total current assets ¥19,126 ¥22,350 $172,322

Total noncurrent assets 13,354 13,585 120,317

Total current liabilities 11,775 9,470 106,091

Total noncurrent liabilities 340 330 3,063

Total net assets 20,365 26,135 183,485

Statement of Operations

Net sales 34,413 30,544 310,055

Profit (loss) before income taxes 9,402 9,443 84,710

Profit (loss) 6,599 6,603 59,456

Shanghai Sinopec Mitsui Chemicals Co., Ltd.

Millions of yen
Thousands of

U.S.dollars

2019/3 2018/3 2019/3

Balance Sheet

Total current assets ¥32,334 ¥	 8,157 $291,324

Total noncurrent assets 23,339 27,721 210,280

Total current liabilities 36,908 39,737 332,534

Total noncurrent liabilities 6,733 9,605 60,663

Total net assets 12,032 (13,464) 108,406

Statement of Operations

Net sales 52,757 40,923 475,331

Profit (loss) before income taxes 2,042 (5,289) 18,398

Profit (loss) 2,061 (5,308) 18,569

There were no applicable items.22. �Subsequent 
events
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Global Network
(As of March 31, 2019)

Major Subsidiaries and Affiliates (Equity-method affiliates indicated with asterisks)

Companies Location Paid-in Capital
(In millions)

Equity 
Interest (%) Major Products or Lines of Business

Mobility

Advanced Composites, Inc. U.S.A. USD 14 61.8 Polypropylene compounds

Grand Siam Composites Co., Ltd. Thailand THB 64 47.1 Polypropylene compounds

Mitsui Elastomers Singapore Pte. Ltd. Singapore USD 96 100.0 Elastomer

Advanced Composites Mexicana S.A. de C.V. Mexico USD 3 61.8 Polypropylene compounds

Mitsui Advanced Composites (Zhongshan) Co., Ltd. China CNY 117 63.0 Polypropylene compounds

Mitsui Chemicals Industrial Products, Co., Ltd. Bunkyo-ku, Tokyo JPY 400 100.0
Civil engineering and construction mate-
rials, and piping materials for synthet-
ic resins

Mitsui Prime Advanced Composites India Pvt. Ltd. India INR 2,450 84.0 Polypropylene compounds

Mitsui Prime Advanced Composites do Brasil 
Indústria e Comércio de Compostos Plásticos S.A. Brazil BRL 107 93.0 Polypropylene compounds

Mitsui Prime Advanced Composites Europe B.V. Netherlands EUR 18 81.5 Polypropylene compounds

ARRK Corporation Osaka City, Osaka JPY 2,000 74.7 Industrial products for automobiles

ARRK Product Development Group Ltd. U.K. GBP 20 74.7 Industrial products for automobiles

Shapers’ France SASU France EUR 26 74.7 Industrial products for automobiles

ARRK Corporation (Thailand) Ltd. Thailand THB 1,180 74.7 Industrial products for automobiles

Chemours-Mitsui Fluoroproducts Co., Ltd.* Minato-ku, Tokyo JPY 2,880 50.0 Fluorocarbon resins and gases, and other 
related chemicals

Dow-Mitsui Polychemicals Co., Ltd.* Minato-ku, Tokyo JPY 6,480 50.0 Ethylene vinyl acetate copolymers and
other ethylenic copolymers

(On April 1, 2019, company name changed from Du Pont-Mitsui Polychemicals Co., Ltd.)

Health Care

Kulzer GmbH Germany EUR 25 80.0 Dental materials

Mitsui Fine Chemicals, Inc. Chuo-ku, Tokyo JPY 400 100.0 Fine chemical products and inorganic 
chemicals

Kulzer, LLC U.S.A. USD 6 80.0 Dental materials

Mitsui Hygiene Materials Thailand Co., Ltd. Thailand THB 1,310 100.0 Hygiene materials

SDC Technologies, Inc. U.S.A. USD 84 100.0 High-performance coating materials for 
plastics and nonferrous metals

Mitsui Chemicals Nonwovens (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. China CNY 470 100.0 Nonwoven fabrics for hygiene materials

 : Countries in which the Group operates

Company data
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Domestic Sites
(As of March 31, 2019)

Companies Location Paid-in Capital
(In millions)

Equity 
Interest (%) Major Products or Lines of Business

Food & Packaging

Mitsui Chemicals Tohcello, Inc. Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo JPY 3,450 100.0 Synthetic resin films

Mitsui Chemicals Agro, Inc. Chuo-ku, Tokyo JPY 350 100.0 Agrochemicals

Japan Composite Co., Ltd. Chuo-ku, Tokyo JPY 1,005 65.0 Unsaturated polyester resins and molding 
materials

Anderson Development Company U.S.A. USD 1 100.0 Specialty chemicals

Basic Materials

Prime Polymer Co., Ltd. Minato-ku, Tokyo JPY 20,000 65.0 Polyethylene and polypropylene

Mitsui Phenols Singapore Pte. Ltd. Singapore USD 120 95.0 Phenol, acetone and bisphenol-A

Prime Evolue Singapore Pte. Ltd. Singapore USD 115 52.0 Polyethylene

Evolue Japan Co., Ltd. Minato-ku, Tokyo JPY 100 48.8 Polyethylene

Shimonoseki Mitsui Chemicals, Inc. Shimonoseki, 
Yamaguchi JPY 490 100.0 Phosphoric acid and gases

Shanghai Sinopec Mitsui Chemicals, Co., Ltd.* China CNY 2,347 50.0 Phenol, acetone and bisphenol-A

Mitsui Chemicals & SKC Polyurethanes Inc.* South Korea KRW 70,006 50.0 Development, manufacturing, and sales of 
polyurethane materials

Others

Mitsui Chemicals Europe GmbH Germany EUR 1 100.0
Sales and marketing of Mitsui Chemicals 
products, representative office function, and 
support of headquarters

Mitsui Chemicals America, Inc. U.S.A. USD 176 100.0
Sales and marketing of Mitsui Chemicals 
products, representative office function, and 
support of headquarters

Mitsui Chemicals (China) Co., Ltd. China CNY 59 100.0
Sales and marketing of Mitsui Chemicals 
products, representative office function, and 
support of headquarters

Taiwan Mitsui Chemicals, Inc. Taiwan TWD 28 100.0 Sales and marketing of Mitsui Chemicals 
products in Taiwan

Kyowa Industrial Co., Ltd. Sanjo City, Niigata JPY 95 100.0 Sales and manufacture of molds

Mitsui Chemicals Asia Pacific, Ltd. Singapore USD 2 100.0
Sales and marketing of Mitsui Chemicals 
products, representative office function, and 
support of headquarters

Head office and branches

	 Head Office (Tokyo)

	 Nagoya Branch

	 Osaka Branch

	 Fukuoka Branch

Works

	 Ichihara Works

	 Mobara Branch Factory

	 Nagoya Works

	 Osaka Works

	 Iwakuni-Ohtake Works

	 Omuta Works

R&D site

	 R&D Center
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Stock Information

Corporate Information
(As of March 31, 2019)

Date of Establishment October 1, 1997

Paid-in Capital ¥125,125,600,699

Number of Employees 17,743 (Consolidated)

Subsidiaries and
Affiliates

Consolidated
subsidiaries	 Domestic 36	 Overseas 88

Equity-method	 Domestic 12	 Overseas 19affiliates

Shares of Common 
Stock Issued and 
Outstanding

204,510,215

Number of Shareholders 66,332

Stock Exchange Listing 1st Section, Tokyo Stock Exchange

Transfer Agent Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank, Limited

Major Shareholders
(As of March 31, 2019)

Major Shareholders
Number of 
shares held 
(Thousands)

Percentage 
of shares 
held (%)

Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd. (Trust account) 16,978 8.70 

The Master Trust Bank of Japan, Ltd. (Trust account) 16,185 8.29 

Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd. (Trust account 4) 4,384 2.24 

Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd. (Trust account 5) 3,496 1.79 

Mitsui & Co., Ltd. 3,474 1.78 

Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd. (Sumitomo Mitsui Trust 
Bank, Limited Re-trust account, Mitsui & Co., Ltd. Pension 
trust account) 

3,474 1.78 

The Nomura Trust and Banking Co., Ltd. (Trust Account) 3,154 1.61 

Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd. (Trust Account 7) 3,035 1.55 

Toray Industries, Inc. 2,985 1.53 

STATE STREET BANK WEST CLIENT – TREATY 505234 2,815 1.44 

Note: �The company’s holdings of treasury stock (9,452,793 shares) are not included in 
the above figures.

Securities Companies 3.1%

Foreign Investors 28.7%

Other Japanese
Corporations 9.5%

Financial Institutions 41.6%

Japanese Individuals 17.1%

Common Stock Price Range

*�On October 1, 2017, Mitsui Chemicals conducted a 5-to-1 share consolidation. Stock 
prices have been recalculated based on this share consolidation.

Composition of Shareholders
(As of March 31, 2019)

Credit Ratings
(As of March 31, 2019)

0

3,000

1,000

2,000

4,000

(Yen) Stock Price (left scale) (Yen)

0

14,000

28,000

321121110987654321121110987654321121110987654321121110987654

20192018201720162015

Nikkei 225 (right scale)

Rating agencies Rating

Japan Credit Rating Agency, Ltd. (JCR) A+

Rating and Investment Information, Inc. 
(R&I) A

Company data

Head Office Shiodome City Center, 1-5-2 Higashi-Shimbashi,
Minato-ku, Tokyo 105-7122, Japan
Phone: +81-3-6253-2100
Facsimile: +81-3-6253-4245

U.S.A. Mitsui Chemicals America, Inc.
800 Westchester Avenue, Suite S306,
Rye Brook, NY 10573, U.S.A.
Phone: +1-914-253-0777
Facsimile: +1-914-253-0790

Germany Mitsui Chemicals Europe GmbH
Oststr. 34, 40211 Düsseldorf, Germany
Phone: +49-211-17332-0
Facsimile: +49-211-17332-701

Singapore Mitsui Chemicals Asia Pacific, Ltd.
3 HarbourFront Place, #10-01 HarbourFront Tower 2, 
Singapore 099254, Singapore
Phone: +65-6534-2611
Facsimile: +65-6535-5161

China Mitsui Chemicals (China) Co., Ltd.
21F, Capital Square, 268 Hengtong Road, 
Jing’an District, Shanghai, 200070, P. R. China
Phone: +86-21-5888-6336
Facsimile: +86-21-5888-6337

Offices
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Corporate Communications Division IR Department
Shiodome City Center, 1-5-2 Higashi-Shimbashi, Minato-ku, Tokyo 105-7122, Japan
Phone: +81-3-6253-2100   Facsimile: +81-3-6253-4245

Please visit our website for more detailed and up-to-date investor relations and sustainability information.

Investor Relations
https://www.mitsuichem.com/en/ir/index.htm

Sustainability
https://www.mitsuichem.com/en/sustainability/index.htm

Supporting a runner in the 250km Sahara Desert marathon

The 250 kilometer-long Marathon Des Sables is said to be one of the tough-
est foot races in the world. Over seven grueling days, competitors aim 
to complete the roughly 250 kilometer-long course through the Sahara 
Desert—the world’s largest—in northern Africa. Mr. Junichi Okubo*1, a 
stage 3 cancer survivor and CEO of NPO 5years*2, brilliantly completed this 
punishing ultramarathon.
	 Mitsui Chemicals sponsored and supported this race because we identify 
with Mr. Okubo’s never-say-die attitude, which embodies the spirit of “chal-
lenge,” one of our core values.
	 For the race, we provided Mr. Okubo with some sunglasses equipped 
with two types of lenses that we developed: (1) NeoContrast™ to reduce 
glare and enhance contrast sensitivity and (2) UrbanPola™ to cut out 
reflected light and bright wavelengths under the fierce desert sun. After the 
race, Mr. Okubo said that he could clearly see the marker lights in the dis-
tance when running through the desert at night and that the sunglasses 
kept his eyes safe in the scorching heat of the desert during the day.

Sunglasses for the race were presented by the 
Vision Care Materials Division

The logos of both Mitsui Chemicals and 
UrbanPola™ are visible on the sunglasses

UrbanPolaTM

https://www.mitsuichem.com/en/service/healthcare/vision/urbanpola/index.htm

NeoContrastTM

https://www.mitsuichem.com/en/service/healthcare/vision/neocontrast/index.htm

*1 �Mr. Junichi Okubo was a company employee in 2007 when he was diagnosed with 
testicular cancer and interstitial pneumonia. Despite a five-year survival rate of 20%, 
he narrowly escaped death and returned to work the following year. In 2013 he made a 
comeback to competitive running by taking part in the 2013 Lake Saroma Ultramarathon 
(100km) and then in 2015 achieved his goal of beating his pre-cancer personal best. He 
currently provides support to cancer patients as CEO of the NPO 5years.

*2 �NPO 5years runs a social networking website where cancer patients can obtain nec-
essary information to carry on working and cancer survivors share their experiences 
that many patients can use as references. Mitsui Chemicals has continued to donate to 
this organization since 2018 through its One Coin Club, a joint CSR initiative between 
employees and the Company.

Following his return to 
Japan, Mr. Okubo 
met with Managing 
Executive Officer 
Yoshinori Ando to talk 
about diversity.

https://www.mitsuichem.com/en/sustainability/feature/diversity.htm
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